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Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022

Meeting will be held in the Council Chamber at Level 2, Philip Laing House
144 Rattray Street, Dunedin
ORC YouTube Livestream

Members:

Cr Andrew Noone, Chairperson Cr Gary Kelliher

Cr Kevin Malcolm, Deputy Chairperson Cr Michael Laws

Cr Hilary Calvert Cr Gretchen Robertson
Cr Michael Deaker Cr Bryan Scott

Cr Alexa Forbes Cr Kate Wilson

Cr Carmen Hope
Senior Officer: Pim Borren, Interim Chief Executive

Meeting Support: Dianne Railton, Governance Support Officer

28 September 2022 10:00 AM

Agenda Topic Page

1. APOLOGIES

No apologies were received prior to publication of the agenda.

2. PRESENTATIONS

21 Otago Rescue Helicopter Trust - Annual Presentation
Mr Graeme Gale (HeliOtago) and Mr Stephen Woodhead (Trustee) will present and respond to questions.

2.2 Port Otago Annual Report Presentation
Chairman Paul Rea, Director Pat Heslin, CE Kevin Winders and CFO Stephen Conolly will present and respond to questions.

3. PUBLIC FORUM

Requests to speak should be made to the Governance Support team on 0800 474 082 or to governance@orc.govt.nz at least 24 hours
prior to the meeting; however, this requirement may be waived by the Chairperson at the time of the meeting.

4. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

Note: Any additions must be approved by resolution with an explanation as to why they cannot be delayed until a future meeting.

5. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of the need to stand aside from decision-making when a conflict arises between their role as an elected
representative and any private or other external interest they might have.

6. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 5

The Council will consider minutes of previous Council Meetings as a true and accurate record, with or without changes.

6.1 Minutes of the 15 September 2022 Council Meeting 5


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC77y56iqIzQYFTyLKUHzQXg
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7. OPEN ACTIONS FROM RESOLUTIONS OF THE COUNCIL 9
Actions from resolutions of the Council will be reviewed.
7.1 Open Actions of Council at 28 September 2022 9
8. MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 10
8.1 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 - ADOPTION 10
8.1.1 Attachment 1: Annual Report 30 June 2022 12
8.2 PORT OTAGO STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 148
The report is provided for Council to receive Port Otago's Statement of Corporate Intent for the three years to June 2025.
8.2.1 Attachment 1: 2022 Port Otago Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025 150
8.3 CONSENT FEES POLICY 169

The 15 September 2022 Regulatory Committee approved the Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees -
Environmental Enhancement Projects Policy, and due to delegations set out in the register, the report is provided for Council

approval.
8.3.1 Attachment 1: Review of Consent Fee Support Policy 171
8.3.2 Attachment 2: Financial Support for Resource Consent Fees Draft Policy for 186
Approval
84 RMA COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT POLICY 191

This report seeks the adoption of minor changes to the RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy. The 15 September 2022
Regulatory Committee adopted the recommended changes and are presented to Council for adoption in accordance with the
relevant delegations.

8.4.1 Attachment 1: ORC RMA Enforcement Policy September 2022 Update 194
8.5 APPROVE MINOR AMENDMENT TO FLOOD PROTECTION MANAGEMENT 205
BYLAW 2022

Minor changes are required to the legend on some of the maps contained in the schedules to the Flood Protection
Management Bylaw 2022 (“Bylaw”). In accordance with the Local Government Act 2002 (“LGA”), approval is sought from
Otago Regional Council (“Council”) for these minor changes or correction of errors.

8.5.1 Attachment 1: Second Schedule original 29 June 2022 210
8.5.2 Attachment 2: Third Schedule original 29 June 2022 222
8.5.3 Attachment 3: Second Schedule revised for approval 233
8.5.4 Attachment 4: Third Schedule revised for approval 245
8.6 APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO WAITAKI DESIGNATION NOTICE OF 256

REQUIREMENTS

The report is provided for Council approval of the amended Notice of Requirement (“NoR”) following public consultation and
for the lodgement of the application for designations with the Waitaki District Council (“‘WDC”) as part of WDC’s Proposed
District Plan (“the Plan”) review. This is to provide for designations of land on which Otago Regional Council (“ORC”) flood
protection works and assets are situated.

8.6.1 Attachment 1: Consultation Outcomes 262




10.

Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - Agenda

8.6.2 Attachment 2: Notice of Requirement 268
8.6.3 Attachment 3: Maps 437
8.7 INTEGRATED CATCHMENT MANAGEMENT (ICM) UPDATE 443

The report provides an update to Council on the progress on decisions made at the 10 August 2022 meeting of the Strategy
and Planning Committee regarding the Integrated Catchment Management (ICM) Programme, and to propose a Terms of
Reference for the proposed ICM Working Group.

8.7.1 Attachment 1: ICM Working Group Terms of Reference 447
8.8 REGIONAL WELLBEING FRAMEWORK PROGRESS UPDATE AND DRAFT 451
REPORT

The report is provided to update Council about progress on ORC’s wellbeing programme, and to provide, for noting, the
current working draft of Otago’s Regional Wellbeing Framework, and a draft version of the accompanying report from our
consultants, Kotata Insight.

8.8.1 Attachment 1: Draft Otago Regional Wellbeing Framework - September 2022 458
8.8.2 Attachment 2: Draft Wellbeing Framework and Indicators Report - September 459
2022
8.9 BUDGETING FOR OPERATIONAL DEFICITS 504

This report was referred to Council at the 21 September 2022 Audit and Risk Subcommittee. The report provides clarity on
steps to take to end the practice of budgeting for operational deficits.

8.10 REPORT TO COUNCIL FROM CHAIR OF AUDIT AND RISK SUBCOMMITTEE 510
SEPTEMBER 2022

The Terms of Reference of the Audit and Risk Subcommittee require the Subcommittee to conduct an annual review of its
work and for the Chairperson to provide a report to Council.

8.10.1 Attachment 1: Report to Council from Chair of Audit and Risk 514
Subcommittee

8.11 INTERREGNUM DELEGATIONS 517

The report is provided for delegated authority for the interregnum period of Council.

8.12 DOCUMENTS SIGNED UNDER COUNCIL SEAL 519

The report informs Council of delegations which have been exercised during the period 29 June 2022 through 28 September
2022.

8.13 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RETIRING COUNCILLORS 521

At the end of this triennium, Councillors Michael Deaker and Hilary Calvert are retiring. This report records its thanks for the
service given by the Councillors for their terms in office and provides the Chair the opportunity to express the Council’s
appreciation for the 21 years of service rendered by Cr Michael Deaker and the 3 years of service rendered by Cr Hilary
Calvert.

RECOMMENDATIONS ADOPTED AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 522

9.1 Recommendations of the Strategy and Planning Committee 522

9.2 Recommendations of the Regulatory Committee 524

9.3 Recommendations of the Governance, Communications and Engagement 525
Committee

CHAIRPERSON'S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORTS o217
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10.1 CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT 527

10.1.1 Attachment 1: A week with Local Government (Cr Forbes) 531

10.1.2 Attachment 2: Letter to Christine Garey - Bus Accident 539

10.1.3 Attachment 3: Letter to MP Michael Wood - Public Transport 544

10.1.4 Attachment 4: Letter to Otago Mayors - Progress on Controlling Wilding 545

Conifers
10.2 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT 546
11. RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC 547

That the Council excludes the public from the following part of the proceedings of this meeting (pursuant to the provisions of the Local
Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987), namely:

- Minutes of the 24 August 2022 public-excluded Council Meeting

- Minutes of the 29 August 2022 Extraordinary public-excluded Council Meeting

- Minutes of the 15 September public-excluded Council Meeting

- 3.1 Public Transport Solutions

- 3.2 Process for Appointing a Permanent Chief Executive

11.1  Public Exclusion Table 547

12. CLOSURE
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Otago
Regional
Council

22

Minutes of an ordinary meeting of Council held in the
Council Chamber on
Thursday 15 September 2022 at 1:00pm

Membership
Cr Andrew Noone (Chairperson)
Cr Kevin Malcolm (Deputy Chairperson)

Cr Hilary Calvert

Cr Alexa Forbes

Cr Michael Deaker

Cr Carmen Hope

Cr Gary Kelliher

Cr Michael Laws

Cr Gretchen Robertson
Cr Bryan Scott

Cr Kate Wilson

Welcome

Chairperson Noone welcomed Councillors, members of the public and staff to the meeting at
1:00pm. Staff present included Pim Borren, (interim Chief Executive), Nick Donnelly (GM
Corporate Services), Anita Dawe (GM Policy and Science), Gavin Palmer (GM Operations),
Richard Saunders (GM Regulatory and Communications), Amanda Vercoe (GM Governance,
Culture and Customer), Dianne Railton (Governance Support), and Warren Hanley (Senior
Resource Planner Liaison). Also present were Simon Anderson (lawyer from Ross Dowling,
Felicity Boyd (consultant from Incite), and Shannon Wallace (MfE).

Chair Noone acknowledged the recent passing of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth 1l on
8 September 2022, and asked attendees to stand for a moments silence.

Minutes Council Meeting 2022.09.15 Page 1of 4
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1. APOLOGIES

Resolution: Cr Noone Moved, Cr Calvert Seconded:

That the apologies for Cr Deaker and Cr Forbes be accepted.
MOTION CARRIED

Cr Hope attended the meeting electronically.

2. PUBLIC FORUM
No public forum was held.

3. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA
The agenda was confirmed as published.

4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST
No conflicts of interest were advised.

5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Resolution: Cr Laws Moved, Cr Wilson Seconded

That the minutes of the (public portion of the) Council meeting held on 24 August 2022 be
received and confirmed as a true and accurate record.

MOTION CARRIED

Resolution: Cr Laws Moved, Cr Wilson Seconded

That the minutes of the (public portion of the) Council meeting held on 29 August 2022 be
received and confirmed as a true and accurate record.

MOTION CARRIED

6. MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION

6.1. Draft submission on Ministry for the Environment’s consultation document “Managing
our wetlands in the coastal marine area”

The paper reported on the Ministry for the Environment’s (the Ministry) consultation

document “Managing our wetlands in the coastal marine area” (the current consultation) and

recommend a draft submission for Council approval. Anita Dawe (General Manager Policy and

Science) and Warren Hanley (Senior Resource Planner Liaison) were present to speak to the

report and respond to question.

Following discussion, the submission will be amended to include the wording 'if further
changes to this instrument are identified as being required, ORC would support that work being
done through the Regional Sector Group'.

Resolution CM22-234: Cr Wilson Moved, Cr Malcolm Seconded
That the Council:

1) Approves the submission on Managing our wetlands in the coastal marine area (as
appended) to be lodged on behalf of Otago Regional Council submission with the Ministry
for the Environment, no later than 21 September 2022.

MOTION CARRIED

Minutes Council Meeting 2022.09.15 Page 2 of 4
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7. RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC

Resolution: Cr Noone Moved, Cr Calvert Seconded:

Chair Noone moved that the public meeting be adjourned and reconvene following the public-
excluded session, to provide the opportunity for RPS discussion to occur in public if required.

Chair Noone also moved that the public be excluded from the following parts of the
proceedings of this meeting, (pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act 1987), and that Simon Anderson (lawyer from Ross Dowling) and
Felicity Boyd (consultant from Incite) be permitted to remain at this meeting, after the public
has been excluded, because of their legal and professional knowledge.

MOTION CARRIED

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason
for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section
48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of
this resolution are as follows:

General subject
of each matter to
be considered

Reason for passing this resolution in
relation to each matter

Ground(s) under section
48(1) for the passing of this
resolution

Minutes of the 24
August 2022
public excluded
Council Meeting

Section 7(2)(a) To protect the privacy of
natural persons, including that of
deceased natural persons;

Section 7(2)(b)(ii) To protect

information where the making available
of the information—would be likely
unreasonably to prejudice the
commercial position of the person who
supplied or who is the subject of the
information.

Section 7(2)(h) To enable any local
authority holding the information to
carry out, without prejudice or
disadvantage, commercial activities;
Section 7(2)(i) To enable any local
authority holding the information to
carry on, without prejudice or
disadvantage, negotiations (including
commercial and industrial
negotiations).

Minutes of the 29 | Section 7(2)(g) To maintain legal

August 2022 professional privilege.

Extraordinary

public excluded

Council Meeting

2.1 RPS Section 7(2)(g) To maintain legal Subject to subsection (3), a
Notification professional privilege. local authority may by

resolution exclude the public
from the whole or any part
of the proceedings of any
meeting only on 1 or more of

Minutes Council Meeting 2022.09.15 Page 3 of 4
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the following grounds:

(a) that the public conduct of
the whole or the relevant
part of the proceedings of
the meeting would be likely
to result in the disclosure of
information for which good
reason for withholding
would exist.

2.2 Process for

appointing a
permanent Chief
Executive

Section 7(2)(i) To enable any local
authority holding the information to
carry on, without prejudice or
disadvantage, negotiations (including
commercial and industrial
negotiations).

Subject to subsection (3), a
local authority may by
resolution exclude the public
from the whole or any part
of the proceedings of any
meeting only on 1 or more of
the  following  grounds:
(a) that the public conduct of
the whole or the relevant
part of the proceedings of
the meeting would be likely
to result in the disclosure of
information for which good
reason  for  withholding
would exist.

This resolution is made in reliance on section 48(1)(a) of the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by
section 6 or section 7 of that Act or section 6 or section 7 or section 9 of the Official
Information Act 1982, as the case may require, which would be prejudiced by the holding of

the whole or the relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting in public are shown above.

8. CLOSURE

The public meeting reconvened at 2:42pm, and as there was no further business and

Chairperson Noone declared the meeting closed at 2:42pm.

Chairperson

Minutes Council Meeting 2022.09.15
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Meeting Date

29/09/2021

23/03/2022

29/06/2022

Iltem

Chairperson's Report

ENG2202 Bylaw
Approval to
Commence
Consultation

CS2233 Annual Plan
2022/23 - Adoption

Status

In Progress

In Progress

In Progress
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OPEN ACTIONS FROM RESOLUTIONS OF THE COUNCIL (PUBLIC) AT 28 SEPTEMBER 2022

Action Required

Undertake a review of the Manuherekia Governance decision making process.
Res CM21-167

Dr Palmer (GM Operations) to develop a policy around construction of walkways on ORC
owned floodbanks by 30 June 2022. Res CM22-132

Staff to report back to Council on alternative catchment based rating systems for river
management (and potentially other catchment funded work streams) in time for
consideration in the 2023/2024 Annual Plan.

Res CM22-196

Assignee/s

Chairperson

General Manager
Operations

General Manager
Corporate Services and
CFO, Manager
Corporate Planning

Action Taken

09/02/2022
Delayed until TAG complete science work.

29/03/2022
Still waiting for TAG to complete the science work.

22/04/2022
A policy is in preparation. The timeframe is unable to be met due to the resolution made by
finance committee on 1 June 2022.

17/08/2022 General Manager Corporate Services and CFO
This will be included in the Annual Plan 2023-24 process.

Due Date

09/12/2021

30/06/2022

30/06/2023
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8.1. Annual Report 2021/22 - Adoption

Prepared for: Council

Report No. GOV2253

Activity: Governance Report

Author: Sarah Munro, Finance Manager Expenditure and Reporting

Endorsed by: Nick Donnelly, General Manager Corporate Services

Date: 28 September 2022

PURPOSE

[11  The Annual Report for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 has been completed and is

presented to Council for adoption.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Council:

1) Receives this report.

2) Approves and adopts the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2022.

3) Authorises the chairperson and Chief Executive to sign the Annual Report and

Representation Letter on behalf of Council.

BACKGROUND

[2] The draft Annual report was presented to the Audit and Risk committee on 21
September 2022 for their review.

3] Council’s Auditor, Mrs Heidi Rautjoki from Deloitte, is currently the appointed Auditor of
the Council. Mrs Rautjoki and Mr Aveshin Govender, an Associate Director for Deloitte,
attended the Audit and Risk Subcommittee meeting and discussed the audit process and
their findings with the Audit and Risk Subcommittee.

(4] Deloitte’s audit opinion will be issued after Council approves the Annual Report and
Financial Statements. Deloitte have indicated there are no matters that have arisen
through the audit that warrant them issuing a modified audit opinion.

[5]  The Audit and Risk Subcommittee endorsed the draft Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022, and recommended that they be presented
to Council for adoption at the 28 September 2022 Council meeting.

[6] The Annual report is attached for consideration and approval of Council. The
representation letter will be circulated via email when available.

[7] The Annual Report includes the Statement of Service Performance for each group of

activities and Financial Statements for Council as a whole, and the Group. The Group
comprises Council and its wholly owned subsidiary, Port Otago Limited, and its
subsidiaries.

Council Meeting 2022.09.28
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[8]  The draft Statement of Service Performance and preliminary financial result for the year
were presented to the Finance Committee on 25 August 2022.

[9] The preliminary financial result for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 included
detail and explanation around the major variances between actual and planned
operating expenditure. The significant adjustments between that preliminary report and
the final financial result included in the Annual Report are detailed below:

a. Re-classification in the Annual Report of councillors’ remunerations of $858,000
from employee benefits expense expenditure in the preliminary result to other
expenses expenditure in the Annual Report.

b. Revaluations had not been completed at the time the preliminary result was
presented. Investment Property was revalued as at 30 June 2022 and resulted in a
$350,000 gain, increasing the value of the asset and revaluation reserve.

c. The shares in subsidiary Port Otago Limited were revalued as at 30 June 2022 and
resulted in a $87,960,000 gain, increasing the value of the asset and revaluation
reserve.

CONSIDERATIONS
Strategic Framework and Policy Considerations
[100 None noted.

Financial Considerations
[11] None noted.

Significance and Engagement
[12] None noted.

Legislative and Risk Considerations
[13] Under section 98 of the Local Government Act council is required to prepare and adopt
an Annual Report within 4 months after the end of the financial year.

Climate Change Considerations
[14] None noted.

Communications Considerations
[15] None noted.

NEXT STEPS
[16] None noted.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Annual Report 30 June 2022 [8.1.1 - 136 pages]

Council Meeting 2022.09.28
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Otago Regional Council
Annual Report

1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Moeraki, Waitaki

Council Meeting 2022.09.28
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Introduction

@ Chairperson, Andrew Noone and Interim Chief Executive, Dr Pim Borren.

Message from our
Chair and Chief

Executive

Tena koutou, there have been many
challenges during the 2021-22 financial
year. The most significant being
ongoing work to develop our Regional
Policy Statement (RPS) and the
proposed Land and Water Regional
Plan (LWRP). Both pieces of work
required enormous workload on the
part of staff and governance.

The challenges are due to a range of reasons, not least
of all the changing landscape the Otago Regional
Council is working within. The proposed Land and Water
Regional Plan (LWRP) is challenging partly because ORC

has not reviewed its existing Plan for such a long time
and partly because this council is now the first “cab off
the rank” in terms of leading the sector to get the new
Plan notified on current timelines.

There have been many changes in both legislation and
national policy statements (NPS) as central and regional
government grapple with the challenges of greater
protections for our environment as well as the onset of
climate change and the range of added concerns such
change creates across all countries.

As a result of ORC stepping up to these significant
responsibilities, the Council has increased resourcing to
meet this increased work requirement. We appreciate
the significant impact this increased commitment
placed on our ratepayers but largely feel our
communities across the region understand the need for
ORC to lift its game.

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Council Meeting 2022.09.28
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Introduction

Another significant achievement has been signing a
new formalised MOU with local mana whenua Kai Tahu
and the closer governance partnership manifested
through regular Mana to Mana meetings, as well as the
contribution of two representatives on our Strategy

and Planning Committee. Our relationship with mana
whenua continues to evolve in positive and constructive
ways and we look forward to continuing progress in the
years ahead.

As we take a breath following a busy year, we notice two
words, ‘ramping up, mentioned repeatedly throughout
this report describing the Otago Regional Council’s
2021-22 performance.

Additional to our increased activity, we have also shared
with the rest of NZ the challenges and delays caused

by the Covid-19 pandemic. Notwithstanding these
challenges our workload increased during this financial
year, as did public-facing engagement, public transport
work and governance and accountability across the
board.

Much of this year’s growth, such as in consents arising
from stricter on-farm grazing requirements, reflects
relatively recent Government policy coming into effect
for the first time. Also, community aspirations for how
waterways should be safeguarded from pollutants.
Other work streams, such as managing plant and
animal pests like wallabies and rabbits and moving to
protect our nationally important wetlands such as Lake
Tuakitoto near Kaitangata, which literally brims with
indigenous bird and plant biodiversity, also reflected the
consulted pathway Otago people set for us.

Moving to online public consultation due to Covid-19
meant we could still press ahead with plans to help
safeguard Otago’s environment and manage the jewels
in Otago’s crown, our rivers and lakes. This occurred for
public consultation for the LWRP.

We are proud that despite the complex, multi-layered
and often controversial nature of this task, the
dedication across ORC teams has been second to none
as we move steadily towards notifying our draft LWRP at
the end of 2023.

We are committed and on track to deliver a robust,
high-quality plan that will help to manage our precious
freshwater resource in the face of climate change and
population growth and provide for the commercial and
recreational needs of Otago in the years to come.

Challenges this year especially affected quarter one,
with Covid-19 alert level 4 (lockdown) restricting
fieldwork activities and impacting planned programmes
for flood protection, biosecurity, environmental
monitoring and some regulatory work.

Although we completed a review of our flood protection
bylaw required after 10 years and gazetted a new 2022

version. We also kept up maintenance on our flood and

drainage infrastructure - although our schemes did not
need testing in what was a dry 12 months.

Covid-19, illness and driver shortages also played havoc

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022

with our public transport services in Dunedin and
Queenstown, reducing patronage numbers and driver
availability in the latter part of the year.

Despite all these challenges, the Council as a whole
nevertheless delivered and met 65% of our service
targets for the year. Also, we saw a massive effort put in
by our staff at the Environment Court as new provisions
were rigorously tested and validated, in most cases.

We would like to thank all ORC staff for their dedicated
mahi, and our public for their support of our work.
Community engagement levels with the council have
continued to be strong, for positive and for negative, and
this is testament to the interest in us our communities
throughout Otago maintain.

It’s important here to acknowledge compliance of new
rules and regulations - especially landowners and
farming communities. The pace of change has been
demanding, with the ORC needing to respond to Central
Government reforms, all the while balancing community
expectations. We are delighted that communities we
represent clearly care as much for our environment as
we do.

We would especially like to acknowledge our Council
members for their ongoing commitment to our
communities across the region. This year we will farewell
Michael Deaker after seven terms and Hilary Calvert
after one term and would like to acknowledge their
contribution to ORC. During the year we also farewelled
Sarah Gardner, Chief Executive and acknowledge her
significant contribution to ORC. We wish all of them well
for their futures.

Next year will be another big year for ORC, and the
words ‘ramping up’ will come back to this report we
have no doubt. Keep an eye out for major restoration
projects of Lake Hayes and the Te Hakapupu/Pleasant
River - the latter courtesy of significant funding from
the Ministry for the Environment. Also, our new Regional
Land and Water Plan!

Ka mihi nui,

Andrew Noone
CHAIRPERSON

Dr Pim Borren
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Council Meeting 2022.09.28
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Introduction

Councillors
and their

® ®
Constituencies |
Your elected Otago Regional CHeR DEPUTY CHAIR

Councillors represent the region's four
constituencies - Dunedin, Dunstan,
Moeraki and Molyneux.

Chair - Andrew Noone. Deputy Chair - Michael Laws
(July-March), Kevin Malcolm (April-June)

Dunedin constituency

Six councillors represent the Dunedin constituency.

Six Councillors represented the Dunedin constituency
for the first four months of the financial year; Cr Marian
Hobbs resigned from her position on 01 November 2021
and was not replaced. Dunedin is comprised of central
Dunedin and the Waikouaiti Coast, West Harbour,
Otago Peninsula and Saddle Hill community board

areas located within the Dunedin City territorial area. Cr Alexa Forbes Cr Carmen Hope

Cr Hilary Calvert, Cr Gretchen Robertson, Cr Bryan
Scott, Cr Michael Deaker, Cr Andrew Noone

Dunstan constituency
Three councillors represent the Dunstan constituency.

Dunstan is comprised of the Central Otago District and
Queenstown Lakes District territorial areas.

Cr Alexa Forbes, Cr Gary Kelliher, Cr Michael Laws Cr Gary Kelliher

Moeraki constituency
One councillor represents the Moeraki constituency.

Moeraki is comprised of the Otago portion of Waitaki
District territorial area, being part of the Ahuriri and
Corriedale wards, and the entirety of the Oamaru and
Waihemo wards.

Cr Kevin Malcolm Cr Gretchen Robertson Cr Bryan Scott

Molyneux constituency
Two councillors represent the Molyneux constituency.

Molyneux is comprised of the Clutha District territorial
area and the Mosgiel-Taieri and Strath-Taieri community
board areas located within the Dunedin City territorial
area.

Cr Carmen Hope, Cr Kate Wilson
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Introduction

Development of Maori
Capacity to Contribute to
Decision Making

He Mahi Rau Rika, Council’s Significance,
Engagement and Maori Participation policy,
expresses our intentions to go beyond our
minimum statutory responsibilities through
engagement with Maori. This includes
actively seeking to provide for meaningful
engagement with mana whenua, based on
the principles of partnership in Te Tiriti o
Waitangi. He Mahi Rau Rika, was adopted in
October, replacing the 2017 Significance and
Engagement policy.

Over 2021-22 we have worked with our iwi partners

and their resource consultancy arms (Aukaha and Te
Ao Marama) to give effect to the Treaty of Waitangi

partnership, strengthen it and acknowledge the unique,
enduring relationship mana whenua have with this land.

The acknowledged practice of Te Rinanga o Ngai Tahu
is that consultation in the first instance is with Papatipu
Rlnanga. There are four Kai Tahu ki Otago Rinaka:

e Te RUnanga Moeraki

e Kati Huirapa Runanga ki Puketeraki
e Te Rinanga o Otakou

e Hokonui Runaka

There are three Ngai Tahu ki Murihiku Rlinanga with
interests in the region as well, which are:

e Awarua Runanga
e \Waihopai Rinanga
o Oraka-Aparima Runanga

This year saw more engagement with Southland
Rlnanga, and representatives were invited to join
Mana to Mana and the Land and Water Regional Plan
Governance Group.

We are committed to supporting and facilitating mana
whenua participation in our workstreams and decision
making, and building the work we do in partnership.

At the governance level this is reflected in the Mana

to Mana group which enables councillors and Runaka
Chairs/Upoko to regularly meet to identify and agree key
areas for engagement and to review the development

of the partnership. In June 2022 refreshed Terms of
Reference for Mana to Mana were signed at Puketeraki
Marae, as a commitment to the partnership.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022

At an operational level there has been increasing,
active engagement on a range of issues, including land,
water and air quality, biodiversity, natural hazards
infrastructure, compliance and consenting, climate
change and emergency management.

For 2021-2022 key opportunities included:

* Implementation of He Mahi Rau Rika (Significance,
Engagement and Maori Participation Policy)

Strengthening governance engagement in the
partnership, via four meetings of Mana to Mana (and
refreshed Terms of Reference)

Iwi representation on the Strategy and Planning
Committee (two iwi seats with full voting rights)

Implementation of the Strategic Directions 2021-31

Rinaka feedback on ORC values translations and
graphic development

Development of Integrated Catchment Management
and Catchment Action Plan frameworks

Land and Water Regional Plan Governance Group
(ongoing)

Members of the Land and Water Regional Plan
project team, including chapter development,
community consultation and the Maori economy
work programme (ongoing)

Partnership with riinaka in Jobs for Nature’ funded
projects, such as Te Hakapupu/Pleasant River
restoration project

e Engagement in Council’s ‘Whare Rinaka Dunedin®
project

e Ongoing working relationships in the consenting,
compliance and regulatory teams

e ‘Te Mana o Taiari’ governance, alongside lwi and the
Department of Conservation (ongoing)

Biodiversity Regional Hui cooperation (ongoing)

Development of improved social procurement
processes and policies

Direct engagement between Civil Defence Emergency
Management, Rinaka and Iwi

We recognised the need to invest in building the
bicultural competence of our staff. ORC entered into an
agreement with the Otago Polytech to provide bicultural
competency training which includes modules on Te Reo,
Tikaka, and the Treaty of Waitangi. There has been strong
interest and uptake amongst staff this year.

Council Meeting 2022.09.28
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Introduction - Strategic Directions

Strategic Directions

Our strategic directions help to set the direction for us as a regional
council and guide us to deliver on our priorities for the good of the region.

Our strategic directions were updated in 2021.

Our Values Our Mission

O MATAU UARA TE KAUPAPA

e Accountable Enriching life in a way that ensures
« Caring positive relationships between

environment, people and place, now

e Creative
and for our future.

o Collaborative
Whakahaumakohia te ao kia whiria te taura

ora ki waeka i te taiao, i te tai-takata, i te
« Open and honest tai-whenua mo naianei, mo te apopo hoki.

e Trustworthy

Vision for ORC — e wHAIKA k1 ORC

Otago’s communities, through engagement, trust us to make well-
informed decisions and enable solutions.

What we will do —«ka anamaTau

Protect, Connect, Enhance, Enable

Ka tawharau, ka whakahono, ka whakaniko,
ka whakamana

The wellbeing of Otago’s communities - now and in the future - is at the heart
of what we do. We strive to ensure communities can rely on the Otago Regional
Council for knowledge about the region’s environment and communities; to

lead environmental management in Otago in partnership with mana whenua; to
collaborate to create resilient and sustainable communities; and to advocate for
Otago communities on issues affecting the region.

6 OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Introduction - Community Outcomes

Community Outcomes
Our Vision for Otago - 1a MATAU WHAIKA KI 6TAKOU

@ Communities that connect
OV with, and care for, Otago’s

@) environment

An environment that
supports healthy people
and ecosystems

Te Ao Maori and Matauranga
Kai Tahu are embedded in
Otago communities

Communities that are resilient
in the face of natural hazards,
climate change and other risks

inclusive transport for everyone in Otago
—~

Sustainable, safe and ;g A sustainable way of life

-|1 N

ORC’s Community Outcomes describe what is valued as important for a good quality of life in Otago. In our 2021-31
Long-term Plan the Otago Regional Council identified these six Community Outcomes which the Council seeks to
achieve through the delivery of our activities. We aspire to improve the wellbeing (social, economic, environmental and
cultural) of our region through our work in these four groups of activities.

This matrix shows the four groups of activities and the Community Outcomes to which they most strongly align:

Regional Leadership

Safety and Resilience

Acknowledgements

We thank the district and city councils, other institutions, urban and rural industries,
Kai Tahu and the communities of Otago for working constructively with us to ensure
the best possible outcomes for our region and its people.

Andrew Noone Dr Pim Borren
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Our Activities and Performance
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Our Activities and Performance — Overview

Overview of our Activities

Otago Regional Council’s ten activities are arranged into four groups of activities:

Regional Leadership

e Governance and Community Engagement
e Regional Planning
e Regulatory

Our Regional Leadership work supports informed decision making and an engaged community.
Our democratic decision-making process and community-elected councillors ensure everyone’s
voices around Otago are heard and that leadership is provided to benefit Otago. Our regional
plans set out objectives, policies and rules for the sustainable use of natural and physical
resources in Otago, and our regulatory work supports the sustainable management of water, land,
air and coast. We also need organisational and functional strategies and plans to support regional
regulation and implementation, promote regional wellbeing and build community capacity and
resilience.

Environment

e Land and Water
« Biodiversity and Biosecurity
o Air

Environmental management is at the heart of what Otago Regional Council does. We have

a responsibility to lead and work with communities in our natural environment. We facilitate

the sustainable use of water, land, air and coasts. We do this in part by protecting our unique
biodiversity, managing pests, and monitoring the state of the environment. We are also reviewing
our regional plans and transitioning towards an integrated catchment management approach to
protect freshwater, land, coastal environment, and ecosystems.

Safety and Resilience

o Natural Hazards and Climate Change
o Flood Protection, Drainage and River Management
o Emergency Management

Risk management and building resilience is a key focus for Otago Regional Council. We identify
and monitor natural hazards and work to support communities to understand the implications
of risk and to make informed decisions. Climate change is a critical issue; our work includes
gathering information to better understand the challenges and risks to the region, as well as
looking at adaptation planning. Our flood protection schemes help protect people and properties
from floods; and our drainage schemes help maintain the productive capability of the land and
waterways. We also respond to flood events and support Otago Civil Defence and Emergency
Management.

e Transport (including Regional Transport and Public Passenger Transport)

Otago Regional Council is responsible for public transport in Otago and through contracted
operators we provide public passenger transport services in Dunedin and Queenstown. We also
provide a regionwide Total Mobility scheme to assist eligible people who are unable to use public
transport. We facilitate wider transport projects in Otago and prepare a Regional Land Transport
Plan in collaboration with Environment Southland. We are also responsible for the servicing and
maintaining three of Otago’s nine stock truck effluent disposals (STEDs).
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Our Activities and Performance — Statement of Service Provision

Statement of
Service Provision

This section reports on Council’s
performance against service measures
adopted in the Long-term Plan 2021-31.

The Long-term Plan contains 36 Level of Service statements, 64 measures
and 72 targets; of these, 64 relate to activities delivered in the 2021-22 year.
Performance against these service measures and targets is reported by
groups of activities and quarterly updates have been presented to Council’s
Finance Committee.

Funding Impact Statements, that identify the costs and funding associated
with each group are included in the financial section of this Annual Report.

Performance results:

Targets fully
achieved

(GREEN)

64

MEASURES
TOTAL

Targets partially
achieved

Targets not
achieved

(RED)

Targets not able
to be measured

(GREY)
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Our Activities - Regional Leadership

Bendigo, Central Otago

Regional
Leadership

This group of activities includes the
following council activities:

o Governance and Community Engagement
 Regional Planning and Urban Development

» Regulatory

Performance
results

Community Outcomes

Our Regional 7T D
Leadership & &£ & iy .
activities

contribute to: o o o o o
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Regional Leadership — Governance and Community Engagement
Bethune's Gully, Dunedin

Governance and
Community Engagement

Connecting our communities in a timely and meaningful way to the work of
the Regional Council is vital.

Through our elected representatives and communication and engagement activities,
the many diverse voices from around Otago can be heard and be part of our decision-
making processes. In turn, we share the stories about our work, to raise awareness of
the results of the investment Otago people make in us.

We aim to provide quality leadership that benefits our region and our work in this activity
supports Otago’s elected Regional Council representatives to carry out their duties.
The key programmes that make up this activity are:

e Media and Communications

 Governance and Democracy
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Regional Leadership — Governance and Community Engagement

Performance and Delivery

Media and Communications

We have a dedicated team providing easy-to-understand
communication that encourages and drives engagement
with communities in Otago. This year our work crucially
provided information people needed to keep doing
business with ORC during Covid-19 restrictions.

We also promoted and drove participation in the online
consultation process for the pivotal first phase of
engagement leading to a new Land and Water Regional
Plan - a priority for ORC, and the 2022-23 Annual Plan.
We maintained our media presence, responding to media
enquiries and telling the positive stories about ORC’s
work and programmes wherever possible. Our media
releases and promotion of council papers assisted ORC’s
profile in a dynamic year.

Our responsibility under the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act is to provide the public
with transparency about our work. This year we
responded to 24 media enquiries and issued 103 releases
to media. We received 124 requests under LGOIMA and
fulfilled 121 (97.5%) within the statutory time frame.

We conducted Council’s inaugural community
perceptions survey to understand community
awareness, perceptions and expectations of the

Council. This will provide a baseline for understanding
community perceptions of the organisation, the work we
do and the impact it is having for the Otago communities
and the environment. The research consultants
recommended four key considerations and a subsequent
action plan was developed and is being implemented.

Enviroschools

Council coordinates the Enviroschools programme

in Otago, which aims to foster a generation of young
people who instinctively think and act sustainably. Our
support of over 100 schools and Early Childhood Centres
throughout Otago continued this year, although Covid-19
restrictions limited the number and types of events we
were able to run.

Customer Experience

Although there were challenges from the pandemic and
Council’s in-person customer service points were closed
during Covid-19 alert levels three and four, we continued
to provide services and respond to enquiries online and
via phone. Our two public facing offices at Queenstown
and Dunedin reopened to the public in September. Over
the year, general enquiries continued at a steady rate
with over 57,000 enquiries via phone, email, social media
and in person. As in other years, the main focus for our
customer interactions continued to be transport, rates,
and consents.

Governance and Democracy

The year saw a sustained pace of governance work to
support Council priorities, we held 17 Council meetings,
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33 committee meetings, plus four subcommittee
meetings. There was change around the council table
during the year with Councillor Marian Hobbs resigning
on 1 November 2021 and after considered options under
the Local Government Act, the Council decided not to fill
the vacancy. Councillor Michael Laws resigned as Deputy
Chair in May, with Councillor Kevin Malcolm voted in as
the new Deputy Chair. Council also reviewed its Code of
Conduct, adopting a new version, which added mediation
as a requirement and established an independent
person to run the process.

The Council also kept an eye on Local Government
reform driven by Central Government. This meant
briefings, submissions and engagement on Three
Waters, Resource Management and the Future for
Local Government Review. ORC continued to submit
six-monthly reports to the Minister for the Environment,
David Parker on progress towards achieving his
November 2019 recommendations related to the Land
and Water Regional Plan.

In December Council initiated an independent inquiry
into demolition material deposited into the Clutha
Mata-Au River in March 2021. Sir Graham Panckhurst
was appointed to lead this and in June, following a review
of the relevant information and interviews, he delivered
his findings. The inquiry resulted in learnings for the
organisation.

Iwi Engagement

We are particularly proud of our committed support

of mana whenua participation in ORC workstreams, in
our decision-making, and building the work we do in
partnership. This year there were 19 projects or outputs
from the Council’s partnership with iwi. More detail on
our partnership work is included earlier in this Annual
Report.

An important aspect of working in partnership is building
bicultural competency. Bicultural competence is the
ability to work alongside Te Ao Maori (Maori worldview)
with confidence and understand how it is relevant to
Council’s work. Biculturally competent people can

relate to varied ideas and people in a more flexible and
adaptable manner. So in addition to working towards a
greater relationship between Council and mana whenua,
it is also a fantastic soft skill for our staff.

Council entered into an agreement with Otago
Polytechnic to provide bicultural competency training
over three years. This includes training modules on

Te Reo, Tikaka, and the Treaty of Waitangi, with
associated assessment and micro-credentials to
demonstrate learning. Interest and uptake has been
strong this year with 57 participants, some enrolled in
multiple courses.
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Regional Leadership — Governance and Community Engagement

Performance Results

Provide and promote governance processes and democratic
decision making that is robust and transparent for the community.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of council agendas that are publicly 100% 100%
available two working days or more before a meeting. O
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of official information requests responded 100% 97.5%
to within 20 working days of being logged. Q

NOTE: 124 requests received and 121 responded to within the statutory time frame. Three requests fell outside
of 20 days due to issues with internal processes; to address these issues we have initiated a LGOIMA training
programme for staff.

Develop and deliver robust and effective corporate planning
and reporting.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Deliver our statutory requirements with acceptable Unmodified audit reports

process and deliverables to decision-makers and the received. G
community.
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Regional Leadership — Governance and Community Engagement

Build mana whenua participation in Council decision making
through a treaty-based partnership approach in our engagement.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Work done in partnership with iwi; increase the Establish baseline. 19
number of outputs and groups working together on Q
projects.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Build the bicultural competency of ORC staff and 250 participants in 57
Councillors. programme per year. O

Provide relevant, timely and accessible communications
and engagement activities which enable the community to understand and
participate in ORC's programmes and decision making.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Annual survey is conducted to understand and Survey completed to 9 December
improve community awareness, perceptions and establish baselines and a 2021 Council
expectations of ORC. report made public. g“g
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Customers express high levels of satisfaction with Determine methodology and

customer service provision. conduct benchmarking of 0

customer satisfaction.

NOTE: Project was not progressed and has been deferred until the next financial year due to staff turnover and
prioritisation.

Bendigo, Central Otago
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Regional Leadership — Regional Planning

Regional Planning

We set strategic direction on Otago’s natural resources through a robust
resource planning framework that guides how people interact with the
environment. Our regional plans set out objectives, policies and rules for
sustainably using natural and physical resources in Otago, including water,
land, air, and the coast.

The Otago Regional Council also needs organisational and functional strategies

and plans to support regulation, on-ground action and community capacity-
building. Strategic direction and collaboration on important regional issues, such as
climate change and community wellbeing, help support better outcomes for Otago
communities.

Another important component of this activity is working with Otago’s city and district
councils on resource management and urban development.
The key programme that makes up this activity is:

 Regional Planning

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Regional Leadership — Regional Planning

Performance and Delivery

The Regional Policy Statement (RPS)
identifies the significant resource
management issues for Otago and explains
how national direction on resource
management will be applied. It sets out
what we want for Otago, what’s stopping us
achieving this, and how we will solve those
problems.

In recent years much work was done to review the RPS,
with a draft notified at the end of 2020-21. However,
the next steps in the processes were put on hold after
interested parties made procedural challenges. Council
subsequently brought proceedings in the High Court to
determine whether the proposed RPS was a freshwater
planning instrument, in its entirety, in terms of the
Resource Management Act.

Although the hearings process was suspended awaiting
the outcome of the High Court declaratory proceedings,
an RPS Hearings Panel was appointed in January. In

April the Panel directed parties to undertake pre-hearing
discussions to resolve or narrow points of difference. ORC
led this process with interested parties and pre-hearing
discussions started in June. At the end of 2021-22 the
High Court decision was still pending and the RPS
Hearings were expected to start in September 2022.

Plan Changes

Our wider planning programme progressed this year with
continued work on a range of plan changes. In May the
Environment Court endorsed Plan Change 1 provisions
and Council subsequently ratified proposed changes

to the Regional Plan: Waste, set to become operative

in July 2022. This was the result of a constructive
mediation process and has meant a good environmental
and policy outcome. Plan Change 7 to the Water Plan is
operative and the rural provisions of Plan Change 8 to
the Water Plan have also taken effect.

Urban Development

There has been important work in urban development
with the Housing Bottom Lines for Queenstown and
Dunedin added to the partially operative RPS in April.
Staff provided support for QLDC and DCC Future
Development Strategies (FDS).

Partnership agreements have progressed and these are
expected to be formalised in July 2022. Support was
also provided to the Waitaki District Council on an urban
focused growth strategy.

Responding to Issues

It has been a busy year for our staff responding to
potential issues arising from new government standards
and legislation. Council has lodged submissions on a
range of central government proposed policies and laws,
including the National Environmental Standards for
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Drinking Water, Environmental Monitoring and Reporting
Act, the National Waste Strategy, and proposed changes
to the Emissions Trading Scheme. Also, the Council was
involved in two district plan reviews and concluded a
complex appeal process involving significant natural
hazard risk management matters.

Strategy Work

Our strategy team has provided oversight to ORC
responses to legislative reforms, including Council
briefings, and led collaborative work with district
councils responding to Resource Management Act
reform. With approval of the Council’s Strategic
Directions in October, work began to incorporate these
across the organisation.

Strategy work on the Land and Water Regional Plan
focused on improving understanding of the interaction
between natural resources and the economy. This work
has multiple workstreams including a farmer/grower
workstream to develop a baseline economic report

on Otago’s primary industries, plus establishing an
Industry Advisory Group; a “catchment stories” project
to understand how Otago’s communities manage land
and water; a project in partnership with Aukaha and Te
Ao Marama to understand the Maori economy; and an
economic profile of land and water in Otago. Reports
from these workstreams will feed into the economic
impact assessment of the Land and Water Regional Plan.

We have been working collaboratively on a wellbeing
framework for Otago with Kai Tahu, Te Ao Marama,
District Councils, and others including the Southern
District Health Board and Kainga Ora. The work will
inform development of community wellbeing indicators
and although a planned report on the project was not
available before the end of the year, it is expected in
September 2022.

Climate Change

Climate change is a major focus for the Council and a
Principal Advisor Climate Change was appointed this
year. Work has included programme development and
workshops with local councils. An inventory of local
government climate change initiatives is complete, and
a Council stocktake underway, all of which support
development of a climate change road map expected
early in the new financial year. We also submitted on
the draft National Adaptation Plan and the Emissions
Reduction Plan.

Integrated Catchment Management
Good progress has been made towards our integrated
catchment management framework. Six key work areas
for developing Catchment Action Plans (CAPs) were
identified and ongoing consultation is underway to
finalise this framework, and collaboration options, with
the community.
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Regional Leadership — Regional Planning

Performance Results

Support Otago’s councils and communities to manage
environmentally sustainable urban growth.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Develop an integrated planning framework that Establish partnership
enables well managed urban growth across Otago. agreements with DCC and QLDC

by 30 June 2022.

NOTE: Partnership agreements, although significantly progressed by 30 June, were formalised at the Strategy
and Planning Committee on 13 July 2022. Council endorsed an interim governance structure, to work in
partnership with Dunedin City Council (DCC) to deliver the FDS for Dunedin, following a workshop on 26 May
2022. Council also endorsed the use of the existing Grow Well Whaiora Partnership to deliver the Future
Development Strategy (FDS) in partnership with QLDC. ORC had been invited by QLDC to join the partnership
in October 2021 and ORC committed to it in January 2022.

Develop and maintain an environmental planning framework
that aligns with national directions and enables sustainable management of
natural and physical resources.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Complete review of existing Regional Policy Respond to hearing
Statement (RPS). recommendations within

specified timeframes.

NOTE: Hearings were delayed and therefore no recommendations were confirmed for ORC to respond

to, however Council completed every task set by the panel since notification including the summary of
submissions, preparation of S.42a reports, and conducting pre-hearing discussions. Hearings are schedule to
commence in 2022-23.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Lead the development, implementation and Commence development of an

review of Integrated Catchment Plans (ICP), in Integrated Catchment Planning 0
collaboration with iwi and community. programme and report to

Council on progress by 30 June.

Collect information on Otago regional wellbeing (economic,
social, cultural, and environmental) and identify significant issues.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Report on community wellbeing indicators. Develop baseline wellbeing
indicators and report to Council.

NOTE: A draft of the wellbeing framework has been developed but not yet finalised. Progress was slower
than anticipated due to taking a collaborative approach and accounting for the impacts of Covid-19, and the
capacity and availability of ORC and our partners. A final report is expected to be presented in September
2022.
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Regional Leadership — Regulatory

Regulatory

As a Regulatory authority, ORC supports the sustainable management of
water, land, air and the coast. We process resource consents, develop rules
for how natural resources are used and managed, monitoring them and
ensuring the rules are applied. We investigate activities that don’t comply,
providing services to ensure activities in Otago are consistent with both
national and regional rules in the Resource Management Act.

Regulation is not the only way to get results. ORC has an educational and awareness-
raising role, collaborating with Otago communities on campaigns to increase
knowledge and understanding of environmental matters.

We are also responsible for maritime activity and navigational safety on lakes, rivers
and harbours and for the regulation of ports under the Maritime Transport Act. In
Queenstown and Wanaka, navigational safety is delegated to the Queenstown Lakes
District Council.

The key programmes that make up this activity are:

« Consent Processing
» Compliance Monitoring and Contaminated Sites

« Incident Response, Investigation
and Enforcement

e Harbours and Waterway
Management
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Regional Leadership — Regulatory

20

Performance and Delivery

Regulatory work ramped up this year, processing

more consents and exceeding targets for compliance
monitoring audits. The quality of our regulatory
processes was endorsed by the Courts, which ruled in
ORC’s favour on some notable cases related to consent
conditions and enforcement.

Consent Processing

This year saw an increase in both consent applications
and number of consents processed. ORC received 603
consent applications, compared to 587 in 2020-21, and
we processed 55 resource consents each month on
average. Despite the high workload, our Consent team
met performance targets, processing 100% of resource
consents within legislative timeframes. Decisions were
issued on 665 consents, up from 404 the year before.

The higher volume of consents issued largely resulted
from Plan Change 8, requiring consents for activities
such as residential earthworks and discharges from
dairy farms. Most applications that were related to
deemed permits had been lodged in the previous year,
but decisions came this financial year following the Plan
Change 7 outcome. Since the Court approved this plan
change, we issued decisions on 40 related applications
to replace 58 deemed permits.

New consent requirements resulting from the National
Environmental Standard for Freshwater (NES-FW) also
contributed to a busy year. In preparation for the new
requirement of consent applications for intensive winter
grazing (IWG), the team developed information, held
public workshops on dairy farm storage and provided
landowners with advice. We also had a strong focus

on staff training to prepare for the changes and meet
demands.

The team received more than 200 enquiries a month
on average, responding to over 80% within two working
days and resolving 99% within seven working days. This
is the first year we tracked response times and results
will inform future baseline targets. We also provided
more information on our website about the consents
process and made copies of consent documents
available online.

The quality of our consent processing was endorsed
following a High Court appeal on consent duration for
water takes by the Clutha District Council. The court
found in ORC's favour and supported our approach

to these types of applications. Our investigation and
enforcement work was similarly recognised when the
Court of Appeal dismissed an application by Wanaka
developer Northlake Investments to overturn a 2017
conviction and fine for polluting the Clutha River. The win
is not only important for ORC but for others involved in
resource management compliance and enforcement.

Compliance Monitoring
As with other areas, compliance monitoring and
enforcement also increased this year. We exceeded

compliance monitoring targets and graded 6,945
performance monitoring returns. Compliance monitoring
included 1,097 onsite audits and site inspections, 243
dairy inspections, and 37 forestry inspections. All
non-compliance found was followed up by staff and
appropriate action taken, or investigations are ongoing.

Investigations and Enforcement
Significant investigations and enforcement followed
pollution incidents or breaches of consent conditions.
These ranged from sediment discharge and outdoor
burning to aerial spraying, waste and septic discharge.
This year ORC issued 104 formal enforcement actions
and an interim enforcement order relating to a domestic
wastewater discharge across a neighbouring property.
We completed one prosecution, with six prosecutions
ongoing. Standard operating procedures for incident
responses were developed, improving consistency of
service delivery and prioritisation of incident responses.

Incident Response

High demand for our incident response service continues,
with 1,454 service requests through the Pollution

Hotline related to 1,206 incidents. Water pollution (326),
outdoor burning (278), and odour (174) were the most
common issues reported. Our response to all incidents
ranged from phone calls and desktop assessments to
on-site investigations. Staffing for incident response has
increased to better reflect high demand and provide
coverage across Otago. Our ability to respond to oil spills
has been maintained, with 20 responders attending two
training exercises this year. A plan for responders to
attend three exercises was untenable this year due to
Covid-19 impacting training availability.

Harbour and Waterway Management
Managing our harbours and waterways involved
upgrades to navigation aids and signage across Otago's
waters, including in Otago Harbour and Lake Dunstan.
Education and engagement included five days on the
water for safety campaigns such as the national ‘No
Excuses’ campaign, as well as time spent on the water
around Otago interacting with recreational boating
users. Educational presentations were made to various
groups, and we improved our media campaign around
boating safety. The Harbourmaster and/or Deputy
Harbourmaster responded to all major and serious
incidents within an hour of notification, however these
incidents are not yet formally reported to Council.

ORC has improved the infringement and enforcement
process to support the navigational bylaws, and this is with
the Minister for Transport for final approval. We maintained
compliance with the Port and Harbour Marine Safety Code
and completed an internal review in May, which found
safety management systems were fully compliant.
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Regional Leadership — Regulatory

Performance Results

Provide effective, efficient and customer centric consenting
processes under the Resource Management Act (RMA) 1991 to enable the lawful
use of natural and physical resources.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of resource consent applications processed 298% 100%

within Resource Management Act 1991 legislative Q
timeframes.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of public enquiries for consent information Establish baseline. Baseline: 99%
completed within 7 working days. O

Provide effective and efficient compliance monitoring,
investigations and enforcement services and take appropriate actions to ensure
the lawful use of natural and physical resources.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of performance monitoring returns 290% 116%
completed each year, as per the Compliance Audit and

Performance Monitoring Schedule targets. Q
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of programmed inspections/audits 285% 116%
completed each year, as per the Compliance Audit and

Performance Monitoring Schedule targets. 0
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of significant non-compliances identified where ~ 100% 100%
action is taken in accordance with Compliance Policy. 0

(1374 K734 Provide effective and efficient environmental response
services to pollution incidents or notifications of non-compliant activities.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Maintain 24-hour/7-day-a-week response for Pollution hotline staff 0
environmental incidents. available/on call 24/7.
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Maintain 20 appropriately trained responders for maritime 20 responders attend

oil pollution incidents. 3 exercises per year.

NOTE: We maintained 20 appropriately trained responders who have been re-validated throughout the year by
Maritime New Zealand (MNZ) when attending two exercises; the plan for three exercises was untenable due to
Covid-19 impacts and MNZ agreed that two exercises only were required this year.
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Regional Leadership — Regulatory

(83937« ] Develop and maintain robust regulations and procedures
to enable safe use and navigation of our region's ports, harbours, coastal areas
and inland waterways.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Maintain compliance with Port and Harbour Marine ~ Annual self-review is
Safety Code. completed by ORC and

POL and signed off by the

Chief Executives.

83771 {9] Promote and encourage safe use of ports, harbours, coastal
areas and inland waterways and take appropriate action in response to non-
compliance and incidents.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Major incidents on Otago’s harbours and waterways  Major incidents and ORC's
will be responded to. response are reported to

Council quarterly.

NOTE: Major incidents occurred in March and June and were responded to but not yet reported to Council.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
On-water engagement, education of recreational Report to Council by 30
users and safety campaigns are documented and June.

reported annually.

Karitane, North Otago
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Our Activities - Environment

Matau branch of the Clutha River, South Otago

Environment

This group of activities includes the
following council activities:
e Land and Water

« Biodiversity and Biosecurity
* Air

Performance
results

Community Outcomes

Our
Environmental @%o’j@ % @ “{@ I%
activities

contribute to: o o (V] o V]
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Environment - Land and Water

Land and Water

Our role involves working with Otago communities to manage water quality
and quantity. To do this well we need robust, integrated and consistent
regional plans and strategies. Our current work includes an ambitious
planning programme to develop a new Land and Water Regional Plan by 2023.

Lake Tuakitoto Wetland, South Otago

We also assess water quality and quantity through our network of monitoring sites
across the region, and this data informs planning and future decision-making. Our water
monitoring and science programmes have expanded to include monitoring estuaries, the
coast, groundwater, biomonitoring, land-use and soil monitoring.

We collaborate with communities to protect Otago’s water resource through education,
engagement and action. Our implementation programme includes education and support
for landowners and catchment groups, as well as involvement in community-led projects
and remediation works.

The key programmes which make up this activity are:

e Land and Water Planning
e Land and Water Science and Monitoring

e Land and Water Implementation

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Environment - Land and Water

Performance and Delivery

Land and Water Planning

Our planning programme this year has focused on
developing a new Land and Water Regional Plan (LWRP).
This is due to be publicly notified by the end of 2023,
so we are working steadily towards this deadline. This
important task to replace an outdated water plan has
involved a huge volume and wide range of tasks. We
are working in a partnership approach with iwi, which
at staff level involves a close working relationship with
Aukaha and Te Ao Marama. At a governance level, the
partnership is evident through the establishment of
the Land and Water Governance Group, which includes
Councillors and iwi representatives.

As part of the work to build the LWRP, an economic
impact assessment took place, with phase one
completed in June and a resulting regional economic
profile underway. Work to understand the Maori
economy, including a socio-economic narrative on the
impacts of freshwater management in Otago on Kai
Tahu, has been scoped.

LWRP development has been split across two key
workstreams: developing specific provisions for
Freshwater Management Units (FMU), and developing
region-wide plan provisions. Work on the region-wide
provisions is ongoing, with the bulk of the tasks,
including engagement with internal and external
stakeholders and drafting the provisions, anticipated to
be completed by December 2022.

Public Engagement

In October 2021 we launched an advertising and
engagement campaign as the first public step towards
developing the new Land and Water Regional Plan.

In this first stage of consultation we wanted to find out
what the public and stakeholders knew about land and
water, and what they valued most about lakes, rivers,
streams, wetlands and groundwater in their areas. We
appreciated that people all over Otago engaged with us
and gave their time and feedback.

Over the year the Council’s approach to developing
FMU specific provisions pivoted, and the initial target to
complete proposed management options for three FMUs
was revisited. Rather than working through the multi-
staged consultation process with FMUs in sequence, we
instead completed the first stage of consultation in all
FMUs in parallel. This change was intended to achieve
greater efficiency in the science modelling work while
also limiting the impacts of Covid-19 on the roll-out of
the public consultation. This resulted in the completion
of the first round of engagement in all of Otago’s five
FMUs, including the five rohe (sub-areas) of the Clutha/
Mata-au FMU.

Science modelling work to support the second round of
engagement is progressing well and the consultation will
take place in the new financial year.
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Science work related to the Manuherekia catchment
in Central Otago has continued throughout the year,
with the Technical Advisory Group (TAG) contracting
additional studies. The results will be presented to
Council in the new financial year and will also inform
development of provisions in the LWRP.

Interim Planning Provisions

As well as developing a new LWRP, we have also worked
to strengthen the Council’s existing policy framework.
This has included bringing in interim provisions to the
operative Regional Plan: Water for Otago (Water Plan)
and the Regional Plan: Waste for Otago (Waste Plan).

Plan Change 7 to the Water Plan and Plan Change 1to
the Waste Plan were made operative in March and July
respectively, while Plan Change 8 which affects the Water
Plan is scheduled to be fully operative in September
2022. These plan changes are intended to facilitate the
transition from the existing Water and Waste Plans to a
new fit-for-purpose Land and Water Regional Plan.

Science and Monitoring

The Council’s science team has grown, and this year
carried out an enormous amount of work to build the
knowledge required for development of the Land and
Water Regional Plan. This covered a wide range of areas
including hydrology modelling, wetlands mapping,
bio-monitoring and developing an urban water work
programme.

Our land work has involved contaminant reduction
scenarios, collecting groundwater and surface water
data, and learning more about land use and soil
attributes. As well supporting the LWRP process, we
have also continued our state-of-the-environment
monitoring and expanded our network.

Our water monitoring programme covers 107 river and
eight lake sites across Otago and measures indicators
such as rainfall, flow, water level, groundwater as well as
water quality attributes and macroinvertebrates.

Our monthly State of the Environment (SOE) testing was
conducted via our network of monitoring sites which
measure water quality state and trends across the
region. SOE monitoring results are based on five years of
data. Current water quality results show that most sites
retained the same quality grade as the prior year, with
nine sites improving and eight sites degrading.

During the summer months we also carried out weekly
recreational water quality monitoring at 25 popular
swimming spots around Otago.

We have continued to grow our environmental
monitoring programmes. This year we carried out
extensive estuary monitoring; however, a planned
report was not finalised due to a delay in macrofauna
processing. This report will be available in the new
financial year.
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Environment - Land and Water

Our coastal monitoring programme advanced, and

a marine mapping project was completed which will
inform further development of our coastal state of the
environment monitoring programme. A report was
presented to Council in June 2021 outlining the draft
programme and a follow-up report is expected in the
new financial year.

Our groundwater monitoring programme progressed
with 95% of sites sampled during the year and additional
bores added to the existing network.

The development of a land-use monitoring programme is
underway, and a soil SOE monitoring network was
established, which includes soil mapping, monitoring
and nutrient base load mapping.

Land and Water Implementation

Our science and monitoring work feeds not only into
planning but also into our environmental implementation
programmes. These ramped up this year with an
expanded team and extensive community education,
engagement and remediation works.

Additional staff were recruited in biodiversity,
biosecurity, freshwater and integrated catchment
management which has enabled us to do more across
the region.

We supported landowners and community-led projects
reinforcing best-practice land management and
intensive winter grazing practices. We also supported
catchment groups and continued grant funding to the
Otago Catchment Community.

Water Quality Remediation Projects
We made significant progress this year on key restoration
programmes and met the target to deliver 90% of
priority actions. Key restoration programmes focused
on Tomahawk Lagoon, Lake Tuakitoto and Lake Hayes.
In order to make informed decisions and implement
high-value actions we developed a strategic framework
to assist in prioritisation, before starting on-the-ground
restoration works. We engaged with the community
about Tomahawk Lagoon in Dunedin, resulting in
options being developed and prioritised. Community
engagement for Lake Tuakitoto in the Clutha district,
which was initially delayed due to Covid-19 impacts, has
commenced along with an ecological assessment of the
catchment.

The work programme to restore water quality in Wai
Whakaata (Lake Hayes) has progressed. A cultural values
assessment for the project has been commissioned and
will inform a refreshed Lake Hayes strategy. Preparatory
work detailing the proposed lake levels and the target
range for the lake was completed, along with surveying
works and preliminary geotechnical investigation for the
culvert site at State Highway 6. Consenting and design of
the culvert is underway, with the project expected to be
completed in the new financial year.

Through the Jobs for Nature scheme we have received
funding for a multi-year remediation programme for Te
Hakapupu/Pleasant River. This exciting initiative will
see us working in partnership with Kati Huirapa Rinaka
ki Puketeraki and also working closely with the local
community and other stakeholders.

Bob's Cove, Queenstown
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Environment - Land and Water

Performance Results

Monitor the state of Otago's freshwater resources and
coastal environment and make accurate, relevant and timely information
publicly available.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Implement a regional coastal environment Develop regional coastal monitoring
monitoring programme. programme and report to Council.

NOTE: Regional coastal monitoring programme was defined and developed, however a report was not presented
to Council during the financial year. Report will be presented to Council in the new financial year.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Implement freshwater and estuarine Annual report on monitoring
environment monitoring programmes. programme completed and reported

to Council.

NOTE: Estuarine monitoring conducted but report was not presented by 30 June. Report will be presented to
Council in the new financial year.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of data from the water 295% data capture achieved. 98%
monitoring network that is captured

quarterly. 0

Monitor Otago's land use and make accurate, relevant and
timely information on sustainable land-use publicly available.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Develop and implement a regional land- Develop regional land-use monitoring Public briefing 8
use monitoring programme. programme and report to Council. December 2021

v

837/ I\ [o ] Provide a robust and integrated environmental planning
framework for Otago’s land, water and coast resources.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT

Complete the Land and Water Regional Report to Council on proposed

Plan (LWRP). management options for 3 Rohe or 0
FMUs by 30 June.

NOTE: A change of approach has meant consultation was conducted in all Freshwater Management Units (FMUs)
across the region in parallel, rather than working through the process with FMUs in sequence. As a result, stage
one consultation has been completed in all of Otago’s FMUs, including the five rohe (sub-areas) of the Clutha/
Mata-au.
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Environment - Land and Water

Support Catchment Groups in Otago to deliver their
environmental outcomes and objectives.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
‘Otago Catchment Communities’ is Funding is administered as per agreement.
supported to meet deliverables and

targets of funding agreement.

Report to Council on deliverables and
targets achieved by 30 June.

Promote and enable best practice land management for
soil conservation, water quality preservation, the efficient use of water and to
enhance Otago’s biodiversity and ecosystems.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Landowner/community led projects Three or more projects supported per 3
promoting best practice land year.

management for soil conservation, water Q

quality and the efficient use of water are
identified and supported.

Collaborate with iwi, communities and landowners to
develop and deliver a programme of actions to improve water quality and
indigenous biodiversity in selected degraded water bodies.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
At least three site specific action plans Projects confirmed and priority 9 priority
for selected degraded water bodies are actions identified by 30 September. actions
developed, prioritised, and implemented. O

90% of priority actions undertakenas ~ 100%

scheduled. Q

Supporting information:

Water quality

Summary of results showing variation in water quality grades across three five-year periods.
Rivers 2014-19 2015-20 2016-21 Lakes 2014-19 2015-20 2016-21
Excellent 37 37 41 Excellent 3 3 4
Good 32 34 32 Good 2 3 2
Fair 18 19 17 Fair 0 0 0
Poor 19 16 17 Poor 3 2 2
TOTAL 106 106 107 | TOTAL 8 8 8

28 OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Environment - Land and Water

Results of the State of Environment water-quality monitoring 2016-2021:
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Environment - Biodiversity and Biosecurity

Biodiversity and
Biosecurity

Otago is home to unique species that we need to look after. Our Regional
Pest Management Plan (Pest Plan) sets out the framework for how

pest plants and animals will be managed in Otago. It is supported by a
Biosecurity Strategy that looks at how we will work with other organisations
and the community to achieve the goals set out in the pest plan.

Our biosecurity work supports the control of prolific pests, such as feral rabbits.

We do this by educating our communities, facilitating compliance and through
funding projects. Council also plays a lead role in facilitating government funding and
overseeing projects such as wilding conifer removal and wallaby eradication.

Council’s biodiversity work programme is growing and our monitoring programme
is under development. We are strengthening partnerships across the region and we
encourage and empower communities to take local action through our Ecofunding
round.

The key programmes which make up this activity are:

« Biodiversity Science and Monitoring
« Biodiversity Implementation
« Biosecurity (Pest Management)

 Wilding Conifers

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Council Meeting 2022.09.28




Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Environment - Biodiversity and Biosecurity

Performance and Delivery

Biodiversity Science and Monitoring
This year important steps were taken towards
developing a monitoring framework and increasing our
knowledge of indigenous biodiversity. We established

an approach for prioritising ecosystems, an important
step that will help focus our resources and actions in
order to support biodiversity effectively across Otago.
Habitat modelling in waterways began, however, was not
completed due to weather and water-flow conditions. A
biomonitoring programme to help assess environmental
health was established and includes monitoring of
macroinvertebrates at 33 sites around Otago. Further
development of our biodiversity monitoring programme
is ongoing and will feed into our environmental
implementation work.

Biodiversity Implementation

The biodiversity implementation programme this year
focused on a regional partnership approach to maintain
and enhance indigenous biodiversity in Otago. Our
leadership role in the region included facilitating and
coordinating regional biodiversity hui in November and
April. We engaged with key partners and participated

in a National Biodiversity Working group and a sub-
group for the National Policy Statement on Indigenous
Biodiversity (NPSIB) response. Our commitment to
mana whenua saw the Council assisting landowners from
Otakou ranaka with their application to Nga Whenua
Rahui, a contestable fund for protection of indigenous
ecosystems on Maori land. Our continued involvement
in partnerships projects, such as the government-funded
Jobs for Nature projects including Nga Awa Taieri (DOC
led) and Te Hakapupu (the Pleasant River Catchment)
Restoration, are set to benefit Otago.

Our EcoFund continued to foster community-led
projects that protect and enhance our flora, fauna and
environment across Otago. We had 53 applications, with
groups asking for $1,108,239 — a new high for the fund.
More money was on offer than usual as the pool was
increased to target community rabbit initiatives, water
quality enhancement as well as native planting following
wilding pine removal. This brought total funding available
to $470,000. In all, 25 groups had funding applications
approved, with projects from Dunedin and Oamaru to
Mt Aspiring and Queenstown, and onwards to Tautuku
and the Catlins in the south. Initiatives will benefit a
range of environmental objectives such as water quality,
predator control, native revegetation and environmental
education. As well as the EcoFund, Council contributed
financially to Predator Free Dunedin, Orokonui
Ecosanctuary and Wakatipu in the Wild.

We are working to meet our Biodiversity Action plan
targets; however, some work is on hold to ensure
alignment with the National Policy Statement for
Indigenous Biodiversity (NPSIB) once finalised. Work
has been initiated to develop a common platform to
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share biodiversity and biosecurity information, and

we continued to build on initiatives to develop and
implement large, landscape scale programmes. We
participated in regional and national level engagement,
while our community-based outreach included work to
integrate education and awareness of biodiversity into
our farm support programmes.

Biosecurity

This year we have also increased the resourcing and
delivery of biosecurity education, engagement and
enforcement. Our work programme has ramped up with
more pest inspections along with additional monitoring
and support for local rabbit control groups. There have
been 2389 pest plant inspections, 66 rook inspections,
and 800 rabbit inspections undertaken this financial
year. Staff also surveyed 880 freshwater users as part of
Council’s delivery of the national Check, Clean, Dry (CCD)
Programme which aims to prevent the spread of invasive
freshwater pests.

While we've implemented our Biosecurity Operational
Plan and exceeded inspection targets in some areas,
we didn’t fully meet all targets due to Covid-19
impacts and ongoing development of processes. The
Biosecurity Operational Plan includes five priority areas:
rabbits, wallaby wilding conifers, lagarosiphon and the
exclusion pest programme. This year we completed,
or mostly achieved, 35 of our 37 targets in these
areas. Additionally, we are leading work to establish
community-led responses to rabbit management,
using our resources to facilitate eight community-led
responses in places such as Gibbston, Lake Hayes,
Moeraki, Queensberry and the Otago Peninsula. More
broadly, we attended 22 community events to provide
pest-specific advocacy and education.

Wallaby Eradication

Our wallaby eradication programme accelerated this
year with additional national funding. Wallaby control
progressed across seven management units with four
ground-based contractors using a range of surveillance
methods. The successful wallaby search and eradication
programme covered around 300,000 hectares. The
public reporting 38 sightings of wallaby, of which 24 were
confirmed and followed up by contractors, with eight
destroyed. Wallaby sightings occurred across the region,
with most sightings in North Otago.

Wilding Conifers

Our wilding conifer programme has also received
ongoing Government investment and continued
activity. Despite delays due to Covid-19 restrictions and
contractor pressures, we enabled control operations
across 68,000 hectares in Otago, funded through the
National Wilding Conifer Control Programme.
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Environment - Biodiversity and Biosecurity

Performance Results

Collaborate with iwi, DOC and other key organisations to
develop, coordinate and deliver a programme of actions to enhance indigenous

biodiversity.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE
Actions listed in the Biodiversity Action Plan
(BAP) are prioritised and progressed.

TARGET

Priority actions achieved within
timeframes specified in annual work
plan.

RESULT

NOTE: The Biodiversity Action Plan (2019-2024) consists of 15 actions. Five of these actions are ongoing and work
is underway across all of them. Completed actions include employment of a Biodiversity Programme Leader and
initial biodiversity mapping and prioritisation. Two actions are collaborative and need to be progressed through
the Otago Biodiversity Forum. There are three actions which are reliant on the National Policy Statement for
Indigenous Biodiversity (NPSIB), which is yet to be finalised. Remaining actions are due for completion in 2024-25

and work has commenced on the majority of these.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Partnerships established in line with the
Biodiversity Action Plan and joint projects
developed.

TARGETS

Establish baseline number of
partnership engagement activities
and events, and report to Council.

RESULT
Baseline: 4

v
v

Joint projects scoped and milestones
identified and reported to Council.

Provide support and funding to selected initiatives and
organisations across the region which deliver biosecurity, biodiversity and
environmental outcomes that align with our strategic objectives.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Complete a report on the initiatives and Report to Council by 30 June.

organisations supported and the key 0
deliverables achieved.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of funding administered as per 100% 100%

agreements.

v

Develop and deliver practices and programmes that give
effect to the Regional Pest Management Plan (RPMP).

32

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Priority targets within the Biosecurity
Operational Plan (BOP) are identified and
achieved.

TARGET

Priority actions achieved within
timeframes specified in annual work
plan.

RESULT

NOTE: Some Biosecurity Operational Plan targets were exceeded; however, not all were fully met. Over 85% of
priority targets were fully or substantially achieved however, Covid-19 restriction and process issues impacted on
results. A significant system change will roll out in the new financial year which will assist with processes.
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Environment - Biodiversity and Biosecurity

Supporting information:

Contains data sourced from the LINZ Data

Service licensed for reuse under CC BY 4.0.

. Biosecurity Property Inspection
Biosecurity Surveillance Flight
( - Catchment Advisor Activity
| I:l Wallaby Control Operations
I:l Wilding Pine Control Operations
) Ecofund Project Recipient

&/

o J4N Te Hakapupu Catchment Restoration
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Q Community Rabbit Programme
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Environmental Implementation Activity
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Environment - Air

Air

Good air quality is necessary for health and well-being. We are responsible
for making sure our region complies with the government’s National
Environmental Standard for Air Quality and, under the Resource
Management Act, for controlling the discharge of contaminants into the air.

Meeting air quality standards is especially challenging in areas with extremely cold
winter weather and temperature inversions. Otago’s air quality often degrades during
winter when domestic heating emissions increase with cold and calm weather and
inversion layers occur.

We monitor air quality at sites across Otago, including Milton, Mosgiel, Dunedin,
Alexandra, Clyde, Cromwell and Arrowtown. These sites measure the concentration of
particles in the air and capture a mixture of PM10 and PM2.5 pollutants*.

ORC also contributes to clean air and healthy homes as a Trustee of the Cosy Homes
Trust.

The key programme which makes up this activity is:

« Air Science and Monitoring*

* PM™ are solid or liquid particles in the air, smaller than 10 micrometres,
and although they include vehicle and industry emissions, and natural
sources such as dust and pollen, the main source in Otago is from
home heating emissions. PM2® (particles smaller than 2.5
micrometres) is a more direct indicator of the smaller
particles that are emitted during combustion.

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Environment - Air

Performance and Delivery

ORC'’s air science and monitoring this year
focused on monitoring site upgrades and
region-wide monitoring in winter, the results
of which will help inform the review of our
Regional Plan Air.

Our monitoring programme operated across four
continuous sites in Alexandra, Arrowtown, Dunedin and
Mosgiel, and two winter-monitoring sites in Cromwell
and Milton. We met our target of 95% data-capture for all
sites. The data is publicly available on the LAWA website
and all air quality exceedances were reported through
news media during the winter months as required.

We made good progress on upgrades to air quality
monitoring sites and equipment, despite challenges
with availability of consultants, contractors, and
consent delays. The upgrades represent a significant
improvement to our monitoring network after many
years of deferred work and will enable full-year

Performance Results

monitoring and data collection at all locations, once
completed.

Four new instruments for the year-round monitoring

of particulate matter in the air, PM2® were installed at
Arrowtown, Clyde, Cromwell and Milton. This will help us
understand emissions and particulate matter sources

in Otago, as well as prepare for upcoming amendments
to the National Environment Standards for Air Quality
(NESAQ). The remaining upgrades to the network are
scheduled for 2022-23.

The State of the Environment (SOE) State and Trends
2010-2019 report was released this year. The PM™ trends
for this time indicate improving air quality at most
monitored sites. However, more work is required to reduce
emissions from home heating and meet the NESAQ.

As well as our standard SOE air monitoring programme,
Council undertook a PM2 monitoring campaign in winter
2021 with data collected from 14 airsheds around Otago.
This information will help inform the Air Plan review.

Monitor Otago’s air quality and make accurate, relevant and

timely information publicly available.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Implement regional air Annual report on monitoring programme Data and Information
monitoring programme. completed and reported to Council. Committee 9 March 2022
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT

97%

Percentage of data from the
air monitoring network that is
captured quarterly.

Supporting information:

295% data capture achieved.

50 Number of exceedances of NESAQ for PMio
40
30

NUMBER OF DAYS

Alexandra Arrowtown Cromwell
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Carey's Bay Wharf, Otago Harbour

Safety and
Resilience

This group of activities includes the
following council activities:

» Natural Hazards and Climate Change
 Flood Protection, Drainage and River Management

e Emergency Management

Performance
results

Community Outcomes

Our Safety 47T D
and Resilience /@SO’;Q\ % ﬁ@“ I%
© V]

activities
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Our Activities - Safety and Resilience
Taieri River, Outram Glen

Natural Hazards and
Climate Change

We set direction on the management of natural hazard risks in Otago.
We support decision making to mitigate, or reduce the effects of natural
hazards, climate change, and other risks.

We identify, monitor, and investigate natural hazards to provide intelligence that
supports community resilience and the ability to adapt to environmental change. Our
work includes monitoring rainfall, river and lake levels, and providing public information
on water levels and flows, all of which help inform responses to flood events.

We engage with people, communities, iwi partners, and other stakeholders in Otago
to develop partnerships and implement projects to address hazard risks, as well as
increasing awareness and understanding.

We’re working to understand more about the future impacts of climate change on
natural hazards so we can collaborate with territorial authorities and communities
to prepare and adapt. We’re developing a comprehensive spatial approach to natural
hazards to inform future priorities, at the same time as undertaking projects for the
risks we already know about.

The key programmes that make up this activity are:

 Natural Hazards
* Flood and Low Flow Risk Management
e Climate Change

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022
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Safety and Resilience - Natural hazards and climate change

Performance and Delivery

We have worked closely with communities
across Otago to provide hazard information,
technical support and guide adaption to
natural hazards. Work started on a natural
hazard risk assessment and prioritisation
approach to help inform adaptation planning
and actions. This year we defined the
problem, scoped the resource requirement,
and drafted an initial programme plan.

The natural hazard and climate change adaptation
programme in 2021-22 focused on South Dunedin, the
Head of Lake Wakatipu in the Glenorchy area, and the
Clutha Delta, with excellent progress. Planned natural
hazard investigation and management for Roxburgh and
Henley progressed more slowly than expected. Delays
were due to internal resourcing, prioritising extra Head of
Lake Wakatipu work, and providing technical assistance
to unplanned Environment Court appeals. The work in
Roxburgh and Henley is expected to be completed in the
new financial year.

South Dunedin

Our team continued to lead the South Dunedin climate
change adaptation project, the South Dunedin Future
programme (SDF) in partnership with the Dunedin
City Council (DCC). A programme manager for SDF
was appointed by the DCC and part-funded by Otago
Regional Council.

We progressed with a technical programme to better
understand South Dunedin’s physical environment

and expected changes, with additional groundwater
monitoring bores installed and potential sites for vertical
ground movement assessment identified. We also
initiated a Dynamic Adaptive Pathways Planning (DAPP)
process along with DCC. Groundwater modelling was
part of the NZ SeaRise research programme; however,
due to the complexity of the modelling and Covid-19
related delays, the scope was adjusted and therefore not
sufficiently progressed for further interrelated modelling
to be commissioned. This is now expected to take place
in the new financial year.

A comprehensive update on the South Dunedin Future
programme was made public in June and approved by
DCC and ORC in July 2022.

Glenorchy and Head of Lake Wakatipu
We conducted a large body of work to better understand
natural hazards around the head of Lake Wakatipu and
Glenorchy. Technical studies assessed the liquefaction
and flood hazards, as well as flood mitigation options.

The liquefaction investigation was not planned but
was prioritised given the potential significance of this
hazard for Glenorchy, along with its importance to the
development of the natural hazard adaptation strategy.
The results of the liquefaction investigation confirmed
the severity of this hazard for parts of Glenorchy.

Community engagement sessions were held in April

and June, and a Dynamic Adaptive Pathways Planning
approach begun to support community engagement and
develop the way forward.

Clutha Delta

Clutha Delta natural hazard and climate change
adaptation work progressed well. Work focused on
establishment of an initial groundwater monitoring
network to better understand the geological and
groundwater characteristics of the area. This work
complemented a coastal hazards investigation
presented to the ORC Data and Information Committee
in December.

Flood Response

We operated a 24-hour flood management and response
system during the year. Although no significant flood
events occurred, our monitoring helped provide timely
forecasts, warnings and relevant weather, flow and water
level information to Emergency Management Otago,
district and city councils and the public. The information
also helped inform decisions on the preparedness and
management of flood protection schemes.

We expanded our monitoring, installing additional flow
recorders in the Lower Clutha and Rees Rivers and a new
rain gauge in the Mt Teviot area in collaboration with
NIWA. Using radar data in our flood forecasting models
also progressed.

Capturing Data

We continued to progress our LIDAR mapping
programme as planned. This year we captured elevation
data across about 4,000 sq. km of the Otago coast,
including Dunedin and Mosgiel urban areas. Much of
this information is now available to the public and the
remainder is undergoing further processing, and will be
available early in the new financial year.

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Safety and Resilience - Natural hazards and climate change

Performance Results

Provide information on natural hazards and risks, including
the effects of climate change, so that communities and stakeholders can make

informed decisions.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Relevant and up to date natural hazards Database information is checked and

information is available via the web-based updated monthly. Q
Otago Natural Hazards Database.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Percentage of flood warnings that are issued 100% 100%

in accordance with the flood warning manual.

v

Collaborate with communities and stakeholders to develop
and deliver natural hazards adaptation strategies.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Complete regional natural hazards risks
assessment (NHRA) and develop a regional
approach for prioritising adaptation*

to inform adaptation planning and
implementation.

TARGET

Commence natural hazard risk
assessment and investigation of
prioritisation approach.

RESULT

v/

PERFORMANCE MEASURE
Implement prioritised natural hazard risks
adaptation works.

TARGETS
Work in priority areas* is delivered as
per plan by 30 June.

RESULT

The Head of Lake Wakatipu natural

hazards adaptation strategy O
progresses as per annual work plan.
Collaboration framework for South

Dunedin and Harbourside natural

hazards adaptation strategy is defined

by 30 June 2022.

NOTE: Work progressed well in South Dunedin, the head of Lake Wakatipu and the Clutha Delta. Due to the
high degree of risk additional work around the head of Lake Wakatipu/Glenorchy was prioritised. Planned
natural hazard investigation and management work for Roxburgh and Henley therefore progressed more

slowly than originally anticipated..

* Priority areas are: Head of Lake Wakatipu, South Dunedin/Harbourside, Clutha Delta, Roxburgh, and Henley
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Safety and Resilience - Flood Protection, Drainage and River Management

Flood Protection, Drainage
and River Management

Otago has large, developed areas situated on low-lying river flats often
close to sea-level. Our flood protection schemes help protect people and
their livelihoods in adverse weather events, and our drainage schemes help
maintain the productive capability of land.

Around 43,000ha of rural and urban land in Otago has council-provided flood
protection and drainage infrastructure. Three flood protection schemes, three drainage
schemes and one combined flood protection and drainage scheme are council owned
and managed. We also own but commission external management for parts of the
Lower Waitaki River Control Scheme.

Under the Soil Conservation and Rivers Control Act 1941, the council also has important
responsibilities. We conduct river and waterway management works to maintain
channel capacity, channel stability and environmental outcomes in scheduled rivers
and waterways.

Looking after our rivers and waterways sustainably is more than simply managing the
risk of floods. It’s also about meeting community expectations for the safe, enjoyable,
and respectful use of rivers and streams. Working together with communities, our goal
is to prepare for future environmental challenges and retain the characteristics of our
rivers and waterways that make Otago such a great place to live for everyone.

The key programmes which make up this activity are:

« Alexandra flood protection o Wakatipu rivers and waterways

« Leith flood protection o Wanaka rivers and waterways
 Lower Clutha flood and drainage » Waitaki rivers and waterways
 Lower Taieri flood protection » Lower Waitaki river control scheme
« West Taieri drainage (Environment Canterbury)
« East Taieri drainage

» Tokomairiro drainage

« Shotover River delta

« Designations and bylaws

» Dunedin rivers and waterways

e Clutha rivers and waterways

« Central Otago rivers and waterways

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Safety and Resilience - Flood Protection, Drainage and River Management

Performance and Delivery

Flood Protection Works

2021-22 has been a mixed year delivering our flood
protection works. We achieved most of our planned
maintenance for flood protection and drainage and met
our performance target of 80%.

Schemes have continued to perform to their constructed
design standards, with no breaches. Pumps were
available as specified in our outage plan, with 100%
compliance.

However, our planned capital renewals programme was
not fully delivered. Although we actioned priority works
our renewals did not progress as planned and most
projects did not fully meet targets. The team focused

on projects with a high priority and known scope, where
positive progress could be made. The remaining projects
required further investigations into scope and delivery
requirements. Where consenting or more detailed
scoping have prevented full delivery, the projects will be
prioritised for the new financial year.

We are pleased our schemes remained resilient in
weather events, and we monitor this as part of our
maintenance work. The deferral of some renewal works
is not critically detrimental to scheme performance.

Climate Resilience Projects

A priority has been delivering the Climate Resilience
programme, and we have made considerable progress.
These multi-year projects are part-funded through a
national programme, led by the Ministry of Business,
Innovation and Employment (MBIE), which is investing
in infrastructure to support New Zealand’s economic
recovery from Covid-19.

Four projects make up our Climate Resilience
programme; two located within the Lower Clutha flood
protection scheme (Robson’s Lagoon and Riverbank Rd)
and two within the Lower Taieri flood protection scheme
(Outram and Contour Channel).

Work largely progressed as planned. The Riverbank Rd
project was completed in December 2021, with major
instream structures for Robson's Lagoon completed
ahead of schedule. The Contour Channel stages 5 and 6
flood-bank works were also finished.

The Outram Climate Resilience project has progressed
slowly due to further design considerations along with
a lengthy consenting process, which required diligent
landowner negotiations and permissions. While the
project has progressed, this has been slower than
anticipated, resulting in some of the programme being
deferred to the new financial year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022

Taieri Scheme Review

The Taieri scheme review has been under development
for several years and was officially launched in June
2021. The first phase of the project involved scoping and
assessing scheme performance and reviewing existing
information and modelling data. We engaged with

the community on this, with a successful workshop in
November. However, the scheme review has faced some
delays, which is being addressed by a focused project
management resource.

A risk analysis and assessment are scheduled for
completion early in the new financial year.

New Flood Protection Bylaw

A 2022 Flood Protection Management Bylaw was
adopted in June after community consultation and
hearings. This replaces the 2012 bylaw and helps the
Council manage, regulate and protect the effective
operation of flood protection works. The bylaw controls
activities which may affect the integrity or operation

of flood protection works, such as plantings and
earthworks and will take effect from September 2022.

River Management Works

The Council's river and waterway management
programmes also faced challenges. In order to support
fish-passage and biodiversity in waterways, our
maintenance programme has a narrow time frame when
work can occur. The Covid-19 alert level four restrictions
in quarter one reduced this operating window. There
were also delays to the heavily committed programme in
some catchments due to weather and river conditions,
low-flows, accessibility, gravel consent requirements,
contractor availability and staff shortages. This resulted
in 78% of our planned programme being delivered, below
the 90% target for the year.

After multiple years of weather events resulting in
flooding, this year proved stable with no significant
events. This meant less unplanned work than previous
years, contributing in part to reduced expenditure.
However, unplanned action was still required, with 33
reactive works prioritised due to risk. Reactive works
may take place following erosion, or gravel build-up, or
blockages, which can occur at any time but especially
during higher flow or weather events such as high
winds. Reactive work is often identified through staff
inspections or public information.

We responded to all 103 public enquiries relating to
blockages and obstructions in rivers and waterways,
assessing 94% of these within 20 days.
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Work Programme Progress

AREA PROGRESS/PERFORMANCE

ALEXANDRA FPS 100% of planned maintenance completed.
No capital works projects.

LEITH FPS 100% of planned maintenance completed.
Two capital works projects; neither progressed as planned, further scoping and
investigation is required.

LOWER CLUTHA FP&DS 68% of planned maintenance completed.

13 capital works projects; four progressed as planned, others experienced delays.

LOWER TAIERI FPS

39% of planned maintenance completed.

Six capital works projects; two progressed as planned, others experienced delays.

WEST TAIERI DS

85% of planned maintenance completed.

Seven capital works projects; two progressed as planned, others experienced delays.

EAST TAIERI DS

100% of planned maintenance completed.

Nine capital works projects; one progressed as planned, others experienced delays.

TOKOMAIRIRO DS

74% of planned maintenance completed.

One capital works project; progressed as planned.

DUNEDIN RIVERS AND
WATERWAY MANAGEMENT

92% of planned works completed.

CLUTHA RIVERS AND
WATERWAY MANAGEMENT

72% of planned works completed.

CENTRAL OTAGO RIVERS AND
WATERWAY MANAGEMENT

80% of planned works completed.

WAKATIPU RIVERS AND
WATERWAY MANAGEMENT

100% of planned works completed.

WANAKA RIVERS AND
WATERWAY MANAGEMENT

89% of planned works completed.

WAITAKI RIVERS AND
WATERWAY MANAGEMENT

52% of planned works completed.

FPS: Flood Protection Scheme
DS: Drainage Scheme

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Performance Results

Provide the standard of flood protection and control agreed
upon with communities.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Major flood protection and control works are 280% of planned maintenance 80%
maintained, repaired, and renewed to the programme completed.

key standards defined in relevant planning 0
documents.

Schemes function to their constructed
design standards.

290% of renewals programme 30%

completed. Q

NOTE: The renewals programme did not progress as planned and the majority of projects have not fully met
their targets, due to challenges with scoping, consenting and prioritisation. The team focused on projects with
a high priority and known scope, where positive progress could be made.

Respond efficiently and effectively to damage from natural
hazard events.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Damage identified, prioritised and a repair Programme developed and

programme communicated with affected communicated within 3 months of @
communities in a timely manner. the event.

NOTE: Not able to be measured as there were no flood events in 2021-22 which required a repair programme to
be developed.

Maintain channel capacity and stability, while balancing
environmental outcomes and recognising mana whenua values in rivers.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Percentage of identified and reported issues 100% 94%
that have been investigated and appropriate o
action determined and communicated to

affected landholders within 20 working days.

NOTE: 97 of 103 customer issues were responded to within the 20 days. Six issues were responded to outside
of target time frame in the first half of the year. Processes were revised and all subsequent issues have been
responded to within target time frame; quarters 3-4 achieved 100%.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Percentage of planned maintenance actions 290% 78%

achieved each year. o

NOTE: 105 of the planned 135 river maintenance actions were completed. Performance was affected by Covid-
19 restrictions, staff shortages, delays with global consent renewals, weather and river conditions.
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Safety and Resilience - Emergency Management

CDEM Vehicle, Otago Peninsula

Emergency Management

Maintaining and improving our communities’ resilience to emergencies is
the fundamental reason for ORC’s work in emergency management.

Together with territorial authorities we have responsibilities under the Civil Defence
Emergency Management Act 2002 to ensure Otago’s exposure to hazards is reduced,
that we are prepared to respond to emergencies, and can recover effectively. ORC
administers and coordinates the work of the Otago CDEM Group, operating through a
shared service agreement with councils across Otago, while the Coordinating Executive
Group (CEG) and the Otago CDEM Joint Committee oversee governance and operations.

Our programmes across the region are centred on national CDEM priorities of
reduction, readiness, response, and recovery.

The key programme that makes up this activity is:

 Emergency Management

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Safety and Resilience — Emergency Management

Performance and Delivery

This year we embedded a new operational
structure, created and implemented a new
community engagement framework, and
participated in national sector reform. We
clarified and reaffirmed shared service
partnership arrangements between all
Otago’s councils.

We have delivered a Regional Coastal Tsunami Plan
and integrated Alpine Fault preparations into our
annual planning. We developed and delivered a regional
solution that will support welfare registration and
needs assessments during emergencies. We supported
national education campaigns such as the ‘Shake Out’
earthquake drill and tsunami hikoi in October and also
delivered the Clued-up Kids programme to primary
school-age children in Queenstown Lakes, Waitaki and
Clutha districts.

However, Covid-19 restrictions impacted planned
community engagement activities, meaning a 50%
reduction in delivery. This allowed for extra work to
overhaul our community response group framework with
refreshed resilience plans, community emergency hub
guides and community response plans.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022

Readiness outcomes have historically been difficult to
quantify, but as an outcome of our work this year, we can
more objectively measure community groups’ capability
across all Otago’s districts.

Emergency Events

There were no emergency events this year that required
the regional Emergency Coordination Centre (ECC)

to be activated. However, we now have the resources
and processes for any activation of the ECC to be
instantaneous and connected online.

We also enabled operational collaboration between all
the regions council’s through funding and providing a
common operating platform, D4H.

Staff Training

It has been challenging to build staff capability through
training as Covid-19 restrictions prevented many
planned activities. Staff turn-over and recruitment
challenges further impacted the number of trained staff.
ECC trained staff were below target numbers for fully
trained Function Leads and Team Members; however, we
exceeded targets for fully trained controllers.

Aftermath of wildfire, Lake Ohau - 2020
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Safety and Resilience - Emergency Management

Performance Results

Support the Otago CDEM Group in improving the resilience of
Otago to civil defence emergencies.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
Support is provided to the Otago CDEM Fulfil all requirements as the
Group as per the CDEM Act and Otago CDEM  administering authority.

Partnership Agreement.

(837 E71(48] Provide resources to coordinate an efficient and effective
region-wide response to a civil defence emergency.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
An adequate Emergency Coordination Centre Adequate staff who are trained and
(ECC) facility and staffing are available. available for any activation of the ECC. 0

An appropriate facility is available for
activation at all times.

NOTE: Due to staff turnover and Covid-19 restrictions impacting training availability, the number of trained staff
was below target. Adequate staffing consists of staff who are trained (two staff trained as leads across each of
the six functions) and available (a minimum of four staff per function) for any activation of the ECC.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET RESULT
ECC activated in a timely manner. ECC activated within 1 hour of Group
Controller’s decision to activate.

NOTE: No emergency events which required the ECC to be activated; time frame not able to measured.

Multi-purpose shelter deployment training exercise, Dunedin Army Hall
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Our Activities — Transport

_EV Bus Open Day, Dunedin

Performance
results

Community Outcomes
Our Transport o@o % @ 4@ %
activities /Q@JQ ~T .
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Transport — Transport Planning and Public Passenger Transport
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Like elsewhere in New Zealand, this has

been a challenging year to provide public
transport. Driver shortages, coupled with
seasonal illness and Covid-19, affected
service reliability, particularly in the last
quarter of the year. Covid-19 negatively
influenced patronage rates and affected Total
Mobility scheme uptake. The Government’s
introduction of half-price fares in April, along
with easing border restrictions, resulted

in some recovery from these impacts. An
extra challenge was a delay in Waka Kotahi
adopting the National Land Transport Plan
(NLTP) with flow-on effects for the timing and
implementation of the approved Regional
Land Transport Plan (RLTP). Despite the
challenges in 2021-22, we’ve achieved a great
deal towards sustainable, safe and inclusive
transport for Otago.

Public transport services were delivered in Dunedin and
Queenstown throughout the year, along with customer
experience initiatives such as free travel to key events,
allowing pets on buses (off-peak and enclosed in
carriers), continuation of the $2-fare trial, improvements
to our Transit app which shows bus movements, and
installing an e-stop at Arthurs Point, Queenstown. The
Council also continued to contract a ferry service on
Lake Wakatipu. Ferry service patronage for the 2021-22
year topped 60,000 users, a 12% increase on 2020-21.

Steps were taken to reduce our carbon footprint. In
October 2021 Council trialled an electric ‘e-bus’. The trial,
a collaboration between the Otago Regional Council and
Go Bus Transport, tested the viability of the e-bus on
Dunedin’s public transport routes, including some of our
steeper hills, the city centre and motorways. The e-bus
travelled 3,148km and carried over 3,000 passengers,
proving popular with passengers. It is estimated to have
saved 2,511kg of CO2 emissions over the course of the
trial. The trial results will support scoping a path to
transition to a zero-emission public transport fleet in
future.

Our current fleet was 100 per cent compliant with
Regional Passenger Transport Vehicle quality standards
at the annual audit. With a specialist accessibility advisor
we conducted an extra set of accessibility inspections

to ensure the standard of public transport we were
providing was consistently high.
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Council is proud of its responsiveness to community
feedback, particularly when we stepped in extending
Orbus services to fill the gap when a commercial
company ceased operating services to Dunedin schools,
affecting Mosgiel, Taieri, Brighton and Green Island
students. Also in response to community demand,

and to the delight of bus travellers, a new weekend

bus service was introduced between Palmerston and
Dunedin in May.

Positive results of annual passenger surveys show high
levels of satisfaction. In Queenstown overall passenger
satisfaction was 98%. Dunedin had 89% passenger
satisfaction, a reduction from 91% in 2021 and slightly
below target for this year. It was great to see that more
than 97% of respondents across the network thought
catching the bus was value for money. Staff also
initiated a new survey to understand users’ perceptions
of the Total Mobility scheme, with 87 per cent overall
satisfaction with the service.

Bus services were punctual and reliable for most of

the year, with increasing challenges in quarter four as
cancelled services escalated following driver illness

and driver shortages. Just 92% of trips operated in
April-June. In March, Council approved services to run
on a reduced timetable if reliability rates dropped below
90 per cent for three consecutive weekdays. Although
this wasn’t required in the 2021-22 financial year, this
threshold was triggered in July 2022, the new financial
year.

The higher level of missed services has had a minor
impact on patronage rates. However, in the first half

of the year major factors hit patronage, mostly related
to the Covid-19 pandemic. Despite some recovery, the
network and the region remain impacted with annual
patronage rates below target. Queenstown patronage
was down by 9 per cent to 806,820 compared to 2020-
21; and Dunedin patronage was down by 13 per cent to
2,367,099 compared to 2020-21. Half-price fares from
central government in April led to a slight increase in
patronage, but not sufficient to counteract the patronage
shortfall from earlier in the year.

This was the first year of the Council’s 2021-31 Regional
Land Transport Plan (RLTP). The RLTP enables Waka
Kotahi NZ Transport Agency to provide financial
assistance to regional and district councils for
qualifying transport activities, such as public transport.
Throughout the year, the Otago and Southland Regional
Transport Committees continued to meet productively.
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Transport — Transport Planning and Public Passenger Transport

Performance Results

(8371 T{9H] Advocate for Otago's regional transport planning priorities
and aspirations at a national level.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
The Regional Land Transport Plan (RLTP) RLTP implementation

is reviewed and submitted in line with the progress is reported O
Land Transport Management Act 2003 and annually to Regional

any guidance issued by the New Zealand Transport Committee.

Transport Agency (NZTA).

Provide efficient, reliable and accessible public transport
services that meet community needs.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Annual public transport boardings in Increase (from prior Decreased 9%
Queenstown per capita. year).

NOTE: Covid-19 has impacted patronage and in Queenstown in 2021-22 there were 806,320 boardings; a
decrease of 9% when compared to 2020-21. On a boardings per capita basis this is a decrease from 56 trips per
person to 52.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Annual public transport boardings in Dunedin  Increase (from prior Decreased 13%
per capita. year).

NOTE: Covid-19 has impacted on patronage and in Dunedin in 2021-22 there were 2,367,099 boardings; a
decrease of 13% when compared to 2020-21. On a boardings per capita basis this is a decrease from 26 trips
per person to 23.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Overall passenger satisfaction with Wakatipu 97% 98%
public transport system at annual survey. O
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS RESULT
Overall passenger satisfaction with Dunedin 93% 89%

public transport system at annual survey.

NOTE: Dunedin had 89% passenger satisfaction, which is a reduction from 91% in 2021, but an increase from
88% in 2019 (survey not conducted in 2020 due to Covid-19).

50
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Percentage of scheduled services delivered 95% 98%

(reliability).** Q

Percentage of scheduled services on-time 95% 96%

(punctuality - to five minutes).*** Q
Percentage of users who are satisfied with Establish baseline. Dunedin: 70%
the provision of timetable and services Queenstown: 88%

information. Q

Percentage of users who are satisfied with Establish baseline. 87%
the overall service of the Total Mobility Q
scheme.

**Reliability is based on scheduled trips completed in full. A service trip leaving the origin stop >59 seconds early or >9
minutes and 59 seconds late is deemed not to have operated.

***Punctuality is based on scheduled service trips leaving origin stop between 59 seconds before and four minutes and 59
seconds after the scheduled departure time.

Council Meeting 2022.09.28

64



Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Transport — Transport Planning and Public Passenger Transport

52

Public Transport Satisfaction Survey

Dunedin

Survey taken from 7 July to 10 July 2022

89 %

The overall level of satisfaction
with the Dunedin public
transport system has decreased
from 2021.

Overall satisfaction

W 94%in2021 A\ 88%in2019

Participants

o aged 18-24
22 /O aged 45-59
22% of participants were aged 18-24

and 45-59 followed by 13% aged 35-44
years.

19 %

19% of participants were supergold
card holders.

45 %

45% of participants used the bus to
get towork. 19% used the bus for
shopping and 15% used for other.

o would

86 A) recommend
using bus

86% of participants would likely or

very likely recommend public transport
to friends or colleagues

supergold
cardholders

travelling
to work

use the bus for 2
to 4 trips per

28 % week

28% of participants use the bus for 2 to
4 trips per week. 27% use the bus for 2
or more trips per day.

"

Passenger satisfaction

89 %
9 %
73 %
82 %
97 %
A
93 %
v
95 %

AL
94 %

91 %
v

96 %

96 %
YA

70 %
vy

90 %

Va

95 %
AL

86 %
YA

exterior of the bus
92 %in 2021 /91% in 2019

interior of the bus
93%in 2021/ 92%in 2019

bus is on time
89%in 2021/ 79 %in 2019

how often the services run
85%in2021/86 %in 2019

value for money of fare
94 %in 2021/82 % in 2019

having enough seats available
97 %in 2021/ 94 % in 2019

ease of getting on and off the bus
95%in 2021/ 94 %in 2019

comfort of inside temperature
92 %in 2021/94 %in 2019

helpfulness and attitude of driver
92%in 2021/ 91%in 2019

personal security during trip
95 %in 2021/ 95 %in 2019

satisfaction with current trip
98 %in 2021/ 95 %in 2019

information about services and delays
81%in2021/70 % in 2019

travel time
92 %in 2021/ 85 %in 2019

convenience of paying
95%in2021/84 %in 2019

ease of getting route information
90 % in 2021/85 % in 2019
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Public Transport Satisfaction Survey

Wakatipu

Survey taken from 7 July to 10 July 2022

98 %

The overall level of satisfaction
with the Wakatipu public
transport system has increased
from 2021.

A 96%in2021

Participants

Overall satisfaction

A 97%in2019

48 % aged 25-34

48% of participants were aged 25-34
followed by 18% aged 18-24 years.

93 O/ non supergold
O cardholders
93% of participants were
not supergold card holders.

51 %

51% of participants used the bus to
get towork.

travelling
to work

would
recommend

(o)
96 /O using bus

96% of participants would likely or
very likely recommend public transport
to friends or colleagues

30 %

30% of participants use the bus for 5 or
more trips per week, followed by 24%
using the bus 2 or more times per day.

use the bus for 5
or more trips per
week

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022
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Passenger satisfaction

96 % exterior of the bus
A 88 %in 2021 /95 %in 2019
93 % interior of the bus
v 98 %in 2021/ 97 %in 2019
80 %  busisontime
v 86 %in 2021/ 81 %in 2019
75% how often the services run
AV 72 %in 2021 / 84 %in 2019
98 % value for money of fare
A 89 %in 2021/ 95 %in 2019
98% having enough seats available
v } 100 %in 2021/ 98 % in 2019
98 % ease of getting on and off the bus
AD 96 % in 2021/ 98 %in 2019
98 % comfort of inside temperature
A 96 %in 2021/ 92 % in 2019
93 % helpfulness and attitude of driver
v 94 %in 2021/ 94 %in 2019
96 % personal security during trip
v 99 %in 2021/ 99 %in 2019
0, . . . .
98 % satisfaction with current trip
AV 96 %in 2021/ 99 % in 2019
o, . .
88 % information about services and delays
A 70%in 2021/75 %in 2019
o, .
93 % travel time
v 94 %in 2021/ 96 %in 2019
97 % convenience of paying
A 86 %in 2021/89 %in 2019
96 % ease of getting route information
A 88 %in2021/93%in 2019
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Funding Impact Statements
for Otago Regional Council

Activities

The council is required to include Funding Impact statements in its annual
report in accordance with the Local Government (Financial Reporting and
Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations). Refer to the regulations for more
information, including definitions or some of the terms used in this statement.

Council Funding Impact Statement for

the year ended 30 June 2022

$000s

SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDING
General rates, uniform annual general charge and rate penalties
Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)
Subsidies and grants for operating purpose
Fees, charges and targeted rates for water supply

Interest and dividends from investments

TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING (A)

APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Other operating funding applications
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING (B)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF OPERATING FUNDING (A-B)

SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C)

APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Capital expenditure:
— to meet additional demand
— to improve the level of service
— to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves

Increase (decrease) of investments
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (D)

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C-D)

Long
Annual Plan Actual Term Plan Actual
2020/21 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22
11,180 1,768 19,577 20,386
15,777 15,814 20,462 20,555
1,474 19,007 18,856 21,691
5,050 2,748 11,231 4,50
11,100 10,576 6,158 13,813
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts 1,702 12,060 13,750 6,234
66,282 71,973 90,034 86,829
68,732 81,443 88,217 85,886
104 - 350 224
651 - 465 -
69,487 81,443 89,032 86,110
(3,204) (9,470) 1,002 719
- - - 15,000
410 1,610 410 255
410 1,610 410 15,255
1,965 2,660 1,995 3,543
4,936 2,886 6,050 1,011
(9,695) (16,626) (6,633) 11,420
(2,794) (11,080) 1,412 15,974
3,204 9,470 (1,002) (719)

FUNDING BALANCE ((A-B) + (C-D))
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Reconciliation of Council Funding Impact Statement to

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for the

year ended 30 June 2022

Schedule of Capital Expenditure

56

$000s

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) OF OPERATING FUNDING IN FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT

ADD/(DEDUCT):

Increase /(Decrease) in the fair value of investment property

Increase /(Decrease) in the fair value of investment portfolio

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment (loss)/reversal on property plant and equipment

Write-off of property plant and equipment work in progress

Other

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) BEFORE TAXATION IN STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE

$000s

REGIONAL LEADERSHIP
Compliance
Harbour Management

ENVIRONMENTAL
Water monitoring sites
Pest management
Biodiversity
Air monitoring

SAFETY AND RESILIENCE
Climate Change
Emergency Management
Hazards
Alexandra flood protection
East Taieri drainage
Leith flood protection
Lower Clutha flood and drainage
Lower Taieri flood protection
Tokomairiro drainage
West Taieri drainage
Wakatipu river management
Wanaka river management
Sundry

TRANSPORT
Transport

CORPORATE
Property
Motor vehicles
Computers and software
Plant
Sundry

TOTAL

Annual Plan
2020/21

(3,204)

417
(2,967)

586

(5,168)

Annual Plan
2020/21

30

525

60

218
680
740

1,600
80
563

600

100
675
955
20
50

6,901

Actual
2020/21

(9,470)

1,542
2,458
834
(3,360)
121

(579)

(8,454)

Actual
2020/21

45

480
20

110

94

1,306
264

106

797
21

849

346
332
75
23
37

5,545
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Long
Term Plan Actual
2021/22 2021/22
1,002 719
- 305
- (2,412)
740 196
(3,574) (3,949)
- (42)
400 (106)
(1,433) (5,289)
Long
Term Plan Actual
2021/22 2021/22
30 1
20 2
1,295 629
90 48
45 150
- 163
- 20
470 -
380 -
1,000 607
1,865 996
30 -
350 34
- 2
- 3
100 261
675 972
1,625 625
20 gl
50 -
8,045 4,554

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL



Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Funding Impact Statements

Funding Impact Statement:
Regional Leadership

Funding Impact Statement for the year ended 30 June 2022

Long Long
$000s Term Plan Actual Term Plan Actual
2020/21 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22
SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDING
General rates, uniform annual general charge and rate penalties 5,388 5,037 15,706 16,125
Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply) - 188 188 191
Subsidies and grants for operating purpose 202 129 75 43
Fees, charges and targeted rates for water supply 2,679 2,751 5,300 4,156
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 43 - 40
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts 4,372 5,333 260 167
TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING (A) 12,641 13,481 21,529 20,722
APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING
Payments to staff and suppliers 3,138 13,893 15,230 14,428
Finance costs - - - -
Internal charges and overheads applied 9,412 6,261 6,352 7,874
Other operating funding applications 6 - 8 -
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING (B) 12,556 20,154 21,590 22,302
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF OPERATING FUNDING (A-B) 85 (6,673) (61) (1,580)
SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions - - - -
Increase (decrease) in debt - - - -
Gross proceeds from sale of assets - - - -
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - - - -
TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C) - - - -
APPLICATION OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Capital expenditure:
— to meet additional demand - - - -
— to improve the level of service 21 51 30 3
— to replace existing assets 21 - 20 -
Increase (decrease) in reserves 43 (6.724) ) (1,583)
Increase (decrease) of investments - - - -
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (D) 85 (6,673) (61) (1,580)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C-D) (85) 6,673 61 1,580
FUNDING BALANCE ((A-B) + (C-D)) = - . .
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Funding Impact Statement:
Environment

Funding Impact Statement for the year ended 30 June 2022

$000s

SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDING
General rates, uniform annual general charge and rate penalties
Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)
Subsidies and grants for operating purpose
Fees, charges and targeted rates for water supply

Internal charges and overheads recovered

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts

TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING (A)

APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING (B)

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF OPERATING FUNDING (A-B)

SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C)

APPLICATION OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Capital expenditure:
— to meet additional demand
— to improve the level of service
— to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (D)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C-D)

FUNDING BALANCE ((A-B) + (C-D))

Long
Term Plan

2020/21

4,902
1,840
55
381

4,948
12,126

4,674

8,227

12,901

(775)

176
3N
(1,262)
(775)

775

Long
Actual Term Plan Actual
2020/21 2021/22 2021/22
5,125 13,938 14,309
891 3,373 3,386
6,204 3,877 6,160
- 200 (29)
288 - -
5,297 964 134
17,805 22,352 23,960
18,081 19,472 19,052
4,336 4,412 5,242
22,417 23,884 24,294
4,612 (1,532) (334)
462 1,090 521
148 340 306
4,002 (2,962) (1,160)
4,612 (1,532) (334)
(4,612) 1,532 334
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Funding Impact Statement:

Safety and Resilience

Funding Impact Statement for the year ended 30 June 2022

$000s

SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDING
General rates, uniform annual general charge and rate penalties
Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)
Subsidies and grants for operating purpose
Fees, charges and targeted rates for water supply
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts

TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING (A)

APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING (B)

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF OPERATING FUNDING (A-B)

SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C)

APPLICATION OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Capital expenditure:
— to meet additional demand
— to improve the level of service
— to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (D)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C-D)

FUNDING BALANCE ((A-B) + (C-D))

Long Long
Term Plan Actual Term Plan Actual
2020/21 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22
981 1,283 3,116 3,199
8,673 8,867 9,61 9,668
- 732 1,700 1,230
208 “) 408 30
- - - 524
1,051 2,065 245 349
10,913 12,943 15,081 15,000
4,363 8,157 9,338 8,558
4,909 2,650 2,565 3,633
9,272 10,807 11,903 12,191
1,641 2,136 3,177 2,809
- 1,522 - -
- 1,522 - -
583 351 100 1,345
2,381 2,256 3,995 478
(1,323) 1,051 (918) 986
1,641 3,658 3,177 2,809
(1,641) (2,136) (3,177) (2,809)
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Funding Impact Statement for the year ended 30 June 2022

$000s

SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDING
General rates, uniform annual general charge and rate penalties
Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)
Subsidies and grants for operating purpose
Fees, charges and targeted rates for water supply
Internal charges and overheads recovered

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts

TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING (A)

APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied

Other operating funding applications
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING (B)

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF OPERATING FUNDING (A-B)

SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C)

APPLICATION OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Capital expenditure:
— to meet additional demand
— to improve the level of service
— to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves

Increase (decrease) of investments
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (D)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C-D)

FUNDING BALANCE ((A-B) + (C-D))

Long Long
Term Plan Actual Term Plan Actual
2020/21 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22
275 323 745 765
5,722 5,869 7,290 7,309
8,888 11,093 13,203 14,239
139 - 250 -
8,853 9,673 8,517 4,522
23,877 26,958 30,005 26,835
23,965 28,513 31,573 27,988
1,039 712 727 710
25,006 29,225 32,300 28,698
(1,129) (2,267) (2,294) (1,863)
- 849 - -
- 849 - -
- 846 - -
- 3 - 3
(1,129) (2,267) (2,294) (1,866)
(1,129) (1,418) (2,294) (1,863)
1,129 2,267 2,294 1,863
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Financial
Statements

This section reports the results of the Otago Regional Council
as a separate entity and the consolidated results of the Group
comprising the Council and Port Otago Limited.

Port Otago Limited

The Council is the 100% shareholder of Port Otago Limited. The
Council views its shareholding role as one of trustee for the people
of Otago, a position widely supported throughout the region.

Each year Port Otago Limited produces a Statement of Corporate Intent, which is then formally approved by
Council. As its owner, the Council does not participate in the management and operation of the company; this is
left in the care of the Directors of Port Otago Limited and its management. Port Otago Limited reports to Council
on a six-monthly basis its performance results for the period.

The results of Port Otago Limited for the year ended 30 June 2022 have been incorporated into the Group
results included within these financial statements.

Overview of Financial Performance
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses

The total comprehensive revenue and expense gain of $82.771 million comprises an operating deficit for the year
of $5.189 million and a revaluation gain of $87.960 million. The deficit of $5.189 million is $3.756 million greater
than the budgeted deficit of $1.433 million.
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The following major items contributed to this variance:

e Grants revenue and subsidies is $2.835 million greater than budgeted revenue of $18.856 million due to the
following two main factors.

- Additional grant funding from the Ministry of Primary Industries (MPI) for the wilding conifer and wallaby pest
control programs from budget of $1.896 million.

- Additional grant funding from Waka Kotahi NZTA of $0.557 million for Dunedin and $0.757 million for Wakatipu
transport to fund the 50% fare revenue discount scheme that was introduced in April 2022.

o Other revenue is $5.976 million below budgeted revenue of $12.649 million due to the following major factors

- The first being public transport fare revenue which was $2.171 million and $1.591 million below budget
for Dunedin and Wakatipu. This decrease in fare revenue was caused by the continuation of $2 fares, the
funding of 50% of the fare revenue in grant funding from Waka Kotahi NZTA and reduced patronage numbers
compared to budget.

- Public transport revenue for totally mobility and RTPT planning was $597,000 below budgeted revenue.
- Budgeted funds of $0.600 million for the Lakes Hayes remediation work were not received.
- Consent processing revenue was $0.414 million below budgeted revenue of $3.599 million.

- Compliance monitoring revenue was $0.585 million below budgeted revenue of $1.535 million.

o Employee benefits expense is $1.725 million below budget due to vacancies in budgeted positions.

o Other gains and losses is $2.693 million above budget due to poor share market conditions and low interest rates
affecting the performance of the managed fund with a loss of $2.412 million made in the current year.

Revaluation Gain

The revaluation gain of $87.960 million reflects the gain on the revaluation of the Council’s shareholding in the Port
Otago Limited Group at 30 June 2022 and is greater than the gain of $20.935 million provided for in the budget

by $67.025 million. The budgeted increase is a nominal estimate only, as the major factors contributing to the
valuation are not able to be forecast with any significant degree of accuracy. The quantum of the gain does not
impact directly on the operations of the Council during the year.

Statement of Financial Position

TOTAL ASSETS
Total assets at $964.325 million exceeds the budgeted amount of $738.648 million by $225.677 million.

The following major items contributed to this variance:

e Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets (our managed investment fund) have a combined amount of
$36.677 million and are $5,811 million below the budget amount of $42.488 million.

e Shares in subsidiary: The valuation of the Council shareholding in Port Otago Limited at 30 June 2022 of $700.290
million, exceeded the budgeted amount of $564.299 million by $135.991 million.

Intangible assets is $1.450 million and is $5.237 million below the budgeted amount of $6.687 million. This
variance from budget is caused by the re classification as expenditure of some software projects.

Investment property of $16.795 million is $1.276 million great than budget of $15.519 million due to the increased
valuation of Council’s investment property.

In the current year Council borrowed funds from the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency (NZLGFA)
of $15.196 million to fund deficit reserves for Council and $99.960 million to provide loan facilities for Port Otago
Limited. Borrowings are held as current borrowing of $67.956 million and non current borrowing of $47.200 million
in the Statement of Financial Position. Borrowing with the NZLGFA was budgeted to be $25 million for Council
only.

The loan facilities lent to Port Otago Limited of $99.960 million are classified as a non current related party
receivable due to the Council and Port Otago Limited loan agreement allowing settlement after giving 24 months
notice. It is intended that the borrowing with Port Otago Limited will continue as roll over financing.

All other assets and liabilities are in line with budget.
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EQUITY

Public equity and reserves at $828.565 million exceed the budgeted amount of $699.515 million by $212.05 million.
The major factor in the variance is the Available for Sale revaluation reserve, which records the accumulated
revaluation gains on the annual revaluations of the Council’s shareholding in Port Otago Limited.

The budgeted balance of the reserve at 30 June 2022 was $592.330 million, whereas the actual balance is $544.299
million, a variance of $48.03 million.

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Council Council Council Group Group
$000s NOTES 2022 Budget 2021 2022 2021

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Rates revenue 1 40,21 40,039 27,015 40,106 26,957
Grant revenue and subsidies 21,691 18,856 19,007 21,691 19,007
Other revenue 1 6,673 12,649 12,014 6,673 12,014

REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Dividends 16 13,469 13,000 10,439 469 339
Interest and investment revenue 344 750 138 209 138
Other revenue 1 4,44 4,740 3,361 92,397 93,182
TOTAL REVENUE 86,829 90,034 71,974 161,545 151,637

EXPENDITURE

Employee benefits expense 2 (25,692) (27,417) (21,956) (56,845) (54,109)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 (3,949) (3,574) (3,360) (15,924) (15,395)
Finance costs 22 (224) (250) - (3,012) (2,608)
Other expenses 4 (60,300) (60,964) (60,067) (82,055) (83,533)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURE (90,165) (92,206) (85,383) (157,836) (155,645)

Share of surplus from equity accounted joint ventures - - - = -

Other gains/(losses) 5 (1,953) 740 4,955 58,267 86,980
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) BEFORE TAX (5,289) (1,433) (8,454) 61,976 82,972
Income tax benefit/(expense) 6 100 - 100 (9,757) (6,942)
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR (5,189) (1,433) (8,354) 52,219 76,030

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSES
Items that may be reclassified to surplus/(deficit):

Available-for-sale financial assets:
Revaluation gain/(loss) - shares in subsidiary 16 87,960 20,935 75,966 - -

Available for sale financial asset gains reclassified
to surplus/(deficit) during the year

Cashflow hedges:
Unrealised movement in hedging interest rate swaps - - - 2,385 1,598

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive revenue and expenses

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE 87,960 20,935 75,966 2,385 1,598

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2022

$000s vores  Copnd Comal coel
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 13,243 8,466 4,380
Trade and other receivables 8 11,140 11,398 8,318
Investment property inventories 13 - - -
Other financial assets 15 23,434 34,022 25,313
Property held for sale 17 - - -
Other financial instruments - - -
Other current assets 883 514 698
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 48,700 54,400 38,709
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Shares in subsidiary 16 700,290 564,299 612,330
Property, plant and equipment n 97,032 97,646 96,236
Intangible assets 14 1,450 6,687 1,888
Non Current related party receivable 16 99,960 - -
Investment property 12 16,795 15,519 16,490
Other financial instruments - - -
Borrower notes 21 - - -
Income tax receivable - - -
Deferred tax asset 33 98 98 98
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 915,625 684,248 727,042
TOTAL ASSETS 964,325 738,648 765,751
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 9 18,196 1,918 17,031
Provisions - - 783
Borrowings 21 67,956 - -
Employee entitlements 10 2,408 2,215 2,143
Other financial instruments 23 - - -
Tax payable - - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 88,560 14,133 19,957
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee entitlements 10 - - -
Borrowings 21 47,200 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 33 - - -
Other financial instruments 23 - 25,000 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 47,200 25,000 ©
TOTAL LIABILITIES 135,760 39,133 19,957
NET ASSETS 828,565 699,515 745,794
EQUITY
Reserves 18 723,546 577,330 635,622
Public equity 19 105,019 122,185 110,172
TOTAL EQUITY 828,565 699,515 745,794

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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1,003,403 896,904
27,017 23,980

- 783
76,206 5,240
7,145 6,315

= 636

848 =
111,216 36,954
903 956
47,200 73,850
21,357 16,404

= 619
69,460 91,829
180,676 128,783
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

TOTAL COUNCIL 2022

Other

$000s z Opening  comprehensive Closing
= Balance Revenue and Balance Council
7] 1July 2021 Expense Transfers In Transfers Out 30 June 2022 Budget
EQUITY
General Rate Equity 63,761 (5,189) 56,963 (54,314) 61,221 77,676
Targeted Rate Equity 46,41 - 50,704 (53,317) 43,798 44,509
TOTAL PUBLIC EQUITY 110,172 (5,189) 107,667 (107,631) 105,019 122,185
RESERVES:
Asset Replacement Reserve 2,937 - 2,514 (2,911) 2,540 2,316
Asset Revaluation Reserve 14,429 - 305 - 14,734 13,458
Available for Sale 592,330 87,960 - - 680,290 544,299
Revaluation Reserve
Building Reserve 13,573 - 267 - 13,840 7,235
Emergency Response Reserve 4,476 - 87 - 4,563 4,059
Hedging Reserve - - - - - -
Water Management Reserve 905 - 18 (239) 684 -
Kuriwao Endowment Reserve 6,962 - 197 (303) 6,856 6,003
Environmental
Enhancement Reserve ° B 472 (443) 38 40
TOTAL RESERVES 635,622 87,960 3,860 (3,896) 723,546 577,330
L EQUITY AND RESERVES 745,794 82,771 11,527 (11,527) 828,565 699,515
TOTAL GROUP 2022
. Other .
$000s 4 Opening  comprehensive Closing
=1 Balance Revenue and Balance
a3 1July 2021 Expense Transfers In Transfers Out 30 June 2022
EQUITY
General Rate Equity 334,091 52,219 56,963 (114,079) 329,194
Targeted Rate Equity 46,335 - 50,704 (53,317) 43,722
TOTAL PUBLIC EQUITY 380,426 52,219 107,667 (167,396) 372,916
RESERVES:
Asset Replacement Reserve 2,937 - 2,514 (2,911) 2,540
Asset Revaluation Reserve 359,270 - 60,070 - 419,340
Available for Sale R R R R R
Revaluation Reserve
Building Reserve 13,573 - 267 - 13,840
Emergency Response Reserve 4,476 - 87 - 4,563
Hedging Reserve (438) 2,387 - - 1,949
Water Management Reserve 906 - 18 (239) 684
Kuriwao Endowment Reserve 6,962 - 197 (303) 6,856
Environmental
Enhancement Reserve ® : 2 &8 &
TOTAL RESERVES 387,695 2,387 63,625 (3,896) 449,811
L EQUITY AND RESERVES 768,121 54,604 171,292 (171,292) 822,727
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Financial Statements

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2021

COUNCIL 2021
) Other .
$000s z Opening  comprehensive Closing
El Balance Revenue and Balance Council
» 1July 2020 Expense Transfers In Transfers Out 30 June 2021 Budget
EQUITY
General Rate Equity 72,647 (8,354) 52,919 (53,451) 63,761 71,770
Targeted Rate Equity 47,884 - 48,510 (49,983) 46,41 45,600
TOTAL PUBLIC EQUITY 120,531 (8,354) 101,429 (103,434) 110,172 17,370
RESERVES:
Asset Replacement Reserve 3,756 - 1,736 (2,555) 2,937 3,81
Asset Revaluation Reserve 12,887 - 1,542 - 14,429 12,262
Available for Sale 516,364 75,966 - - 592,330 528,235
Revaluation Reserve
Building Reserve 13,440 - 133 - 13,573 13,768
Emergency Response Reserve 3,901 - 575 - 4,476 4,544
Hedging Reserve (2,036) 1,598 - - (438) -
Water Management Reserve 897 - 8 - 905 354
Kuriwao Endowment Reserve 6,397 - 946 (381) 6,962 6,266
Environmental
Enhancement Reserve 8 . 251 (250) 9 4
TOTAL RESERVES 557,650 5,191 (3,186) 635,622 569,244
TOTAL EQUITY AND RESERVES 106,620 (106,620) 745,794 686,614
GROUP 2021
: Other .
$000s z opening  comprehensive Closing
! Balance Revenuaand Balance
» 1July 2020 Expense Transfers In Transfers Out 30 June 2021
EQUITY
General Rate Equity 340,758 76,030 53,169 (135,866) 334,091
Targeted Rate Equity 47,884 - 48,434 (49,983) 46,335
TOTAL PUBLIC EQUITY 388,642 76,030 101,603 (185,849) 380,426
RESERVES:
Asset Replacement Reserve 3,756 - 1,736 (2,555) 2,937
Asset Revaluation Reserve 275,488 - 83,782 - 359,270
Available for Sale B B B B B
Revaluation Reserve
Building Reserve 13,440 - 133 - 13,573
Emergency Response Reserve 3,901 - 575 - 4,476
Water Management Reserve 897 - 9 - 906
Hedging Reserve (2,036) 1,598 - - (438)
Kuriwao Endowment Reserve 6,397 - 946 (381) 6,962
Environmental
Enhancement Reserve 3 B 22l (250) 9
TOTAL RESERVES 301,851 1,598 87,432 (3,186) 387,695
T L EQUITY AND RESERVES 690,493 77,628 189,035 (189,035) 768,121
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2022

z
o Council Council Council Group Group
$000s a 2022 Budget 2021 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from non-exchange transactions
Receipts from customers 38,086 40,039 25,147 91,242 13,737
Grant income and subsidies 21,691 18,856 19,007 21,691 19,007
Other receipts 6,673 17,396 12,014 6,673 12,014
Receipts from exchange transactions
Interest and investment income 153 750 138 153 138
Rental income 1,145 - 1,022 32,519 1,022
Subvention payment 100 - 100 - -
Dividends 13,000 13,000 10,439 - 339
Other receipts 2,613 - 5,290 2,613 5,290
Payments to suppliers and employees (85,085) (88,382) (72,761) (132,766) (129,430)
Interest and other costs of finance paid (224) (250) - (3,135) (2,562)
Income tax received/(paid) - - - (3,878) (6,596)
Donations (350) - (350) (350) (350)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,198) 1,409 46 14,762 12,609
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest capitalised - - - (159) (190)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 255 410 1,399 569 1,435
Sale of held for sale assets - - - - -
Sale of investment property - - - 214 2,433
Advances (to)/from joint operations - - - - 27
Proceeds from other financial assets - (10,000) 581 - 581
Purchase of/improvements to investment property - - - (29,912) (14,144)
Purchase of property in development - - - - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,315) (6,224) (5,376) (19,792) (12,048)
Purchase of intangible assets (75) (1,525) (168) (86) (1,087)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (4,135) (17,339) (3,564) (49,166) (22,993)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings 115,156 25,000 - 223,411 59,600
Lending to Port Otago Ltd (99,960) - - - -
Repayment of borrowings - - - (180,305) (52,800)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 15,196 25,000 e 43,106 6,800
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 8,863 9,070 (3,518) 8,702 (3,584)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 4,380 (604) 7,898 4,621 8,205
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 13,243 8,466 4,380 13,323 4,621

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and
investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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The following terms are used in the Statement of Cash Flows:

e operating activities are the principal revenue producing activities of the Group and other activities that are not investing
or financing activities;

e investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in cash
equivalents; and

« financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and
borrowings of the entity.

Reconciliation of Surplus for the year to Net Cash Flows from
Operating Activities

Council Council Group Group
$000s 2022 2021 2022 2021
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR (5,189) (8,354) 52,219 76,030

ADD/(LESS) NON-CASH ITEMS:

Depreciation and amortisation 3,949 3,360 15,924 15,396
(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (196) (834) (296) (865)
Write off of intangible assets - 686 - 686
Provision for doubtful debts (12) 10 (12) 9
(Gain)/loss on revaluation of investment property (305) (1,542) (60,070) (83,782)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of investment property - - - -
Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments - - (1,203) (602)
Net change in fair value of financial assets 2,412 (2,458) 2,412 (2,458)
Share of surpluses retained by joint ventures - - - -
Movement in non-current employee entitlements - - 53] (101)
Deferred tax - - 4,026 2,035
Impairment of property plant and equipment 42 @21 42 727
Write-off of property plant and equipment work in progress - 564 - 564

701 (8,689) 13,095 7,639

MOVEMENT IN WORKING CAPITAL:

Trade and other receivables (2,822) 1,094 3,559 5,392

Inventories - - (5,067) 6,059

Other current assets (185) (184) (1,362) (3,005)

Trade and other payables 1,165 6,713 3,037 5,490

Provisions (783) 784 (783) 555

Employee entitlements 265 328 830 (1,185)

Tax Payable - - 848 (1,594)

Movement in working capital items classified as investing activities (539) - 605 (6,742)

(2,899) 8,735 1,667 4,970

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,198) 46 14,762 12,609
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of Reporting

This section contains the significant accounting policies of the
Otago Regional Council that relate to the financial statements as a
whole. Significant accounting policies relating to specific account
balances are also included in the related note disclosures.

Reporting Entity
The Council is a regional local authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002.

The Council Group (Group) consists of the Council and its subsidiary Port Otago Limited (100% owned). The Port
Otago Limited Group consists of Port Otago Limited, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The primary objective of the Council is to provide goods or services for the community or social benefit rather than
making a financial return. The principal activities of the Group entities are described in Note 16. Accordingly, the
Council has designated itself and the Group as public benefit entities for financial reporting purposes.

The Financial Statements of Council are for the year ended 30 June 2022 and were authorised for issue by Council
on 28 September 2022.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act
2002: Part 6, Section 98 and Part 3 of Schedule 10, which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand
generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP).

The financial statements comply with Public Benefit Entity Public Sector (PBE (PS)) standards. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with Tier 1 PBE standards.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain
non-current assets and financial instruments (including derivative financial instruments). Cost is based on the fair
values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The financial statements are presented in thousands of New Zealand dollars. New Zealand dollars are the Council’s
and Group’s functional currency.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions
or other events is reported.

All foreign currency transactions during the financial year are brought to account using the exchange rate in effect at
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items at reporting date are translated at the exchange rate
existing at reporting date. Exchange differences are recognised in the surplus/(deficit) in the period in which they
arise.

The financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables in the Statement of
Financial Position which are recognised inclusive of GST. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash
flows in the Cash Flow Statement.

The budget amounts in these financial statements are for Council only and are those approved by the Council in
the Long-Term Plan / Annual Plan and have been prepared using accounting policies that are consistent with those
adopted by the Council for the preparation of the financial statements.
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Adoption of New and Revised Standard and Interpretations

All mandatory new or amended accounting standards and interpretations were adopted in the current year. None
had a significant impact on these financial statements.

Standards and interpretations issued and not yet adopted

The following are new, revised, or amended standards that are applicable to the Group which are in issue by are
not yet required to be adopted for the year end 30 June 2022.

e PBE IPSAS 41: Financial Instruments effective for periods commencing 1 January 2022

e PBE FRS 48: Service Performance Reporting effective for periods commencing 1 January 2022

Council expects to adopt the above standard in the period in which they become mandatory. Council anticipates
that the above standard are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements in the period of
initial application; however, a detailed assessment has yet to be performed.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by combining the financial statements of all the entities that
comprise the Group, being the Council entity and its controlled entities as defined in PBE IPSAS 35 Consolidated
Financial Statements. A list of controlled entities appears in Note 16 to the financial statements. Consistent
accounting policies are employed in the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Council and entities controlled by
the Council and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Council:

e Has power over the other entity
e Has exposure, or rights, to variable benefits from its involvement with the other entity

« Has the ability to use its power over the other entity to affect the nature or amount of the benefits from its
involvement with the other entity

The Group financial statements are prepared by combining the financial statements of all the entities that comprise
the Group, being the Council and its subsidiaries as defined by PBE IPSAS 35: Consolidated Financial Statements.
Consistent accounting policies are employed in the preparation and presentation of the Group financial statements.

On acquisition, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a controlled entity are measured at their fair values
at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recognised as goodwill. If, after reassessment, the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
exceeds the cost of acquisition, the deficiency is credited to profit and loss in the period of acquisition.

The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and
liabilities recognised.

The consolidated financial statements include the information and results of each controlled entity from the date on
which the Council obtains control and until such time as the Council ceases to control the entity.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-company balances and transactions, and unrealised
profits arising within the Group, are eliminated in full.

Accounting Policies

Accounting policies that summarise the measurement basis used and are relevant to the understanding of the
financial statements, are provided throughout the accompanying notes.

The accounting policies adopted have been applied consistently throughout the periods presented in these financial
statements.

Critical Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

In preparing these financial statements the Council has made estimates, assumptions and judgements concerning
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the future. These estimates, assumptions and judgements may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations or future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates,
assumptions and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed below:

e Estimate of Fair Value of Investment Property - refer to Note 12
e Estimate of Fair Value of Shares in Subsidiary - refer to Note 16
e Property, Plant and Equipment - refer to Note 11

o Classification of Property - refer to Note 11

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions may differ
from the subsequent actual results and are continually being evaluated based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are expected to be reasonable under the circumstances. Other
than the COVID-19 impacts, referred to below, there are no estimates or assumptions in the view of Council that have
a risk of causing a significant adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within the next financial year.

Further information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty that have the most significant effect on the
amount recognised in the financial statements is disclosed in the relevant notes:

e Fair value measurements of property portfolio assets refer to Note 12

o Property, plant and equipment refer to Note 11
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This section focuses on the financial performance of the Otago Regional Council
and Group during the year. It outlines significant accounting policies adopted

in the recognition of revenue and expenditure and provides detail about rates
and other revenue, as well as significant expenditure such as employee benefits,
goods and services purchased, depreciation, amortisation, and other costs.

The notes in this section are as follows:
Revenue

Employee Benefits Expense

Schedules of Depreciation and Amortisation

Other Expense

Other Gains/Losses

o o P w N =

Income Taxes
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1. Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential will flow to the
group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made

Revenue from non-exchange Transactions

TYPE

Rates revenue

Grants and subsidies

Other fee income

RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Rates revenue is recognised as income when levied. Council levies general rates for those functions
that are assessed as providing benefits to all ratepayers within each of the constituent districts and
city, and levies targeted rates where functions benefit a defined group of ratepayers.

Grants and subsidies are recognised upon entitlement, as conditions pertaining to expenditure have
been fulfilled.

Other fee income from non-exchange transactions is recognised when the supplies and services
have been rendered.

Revenue from exchange Transactions

TYPE

Dividend income
Interest revenue

Revenue from
port services

Revenue from the
rendering of services

Rental income from
operating leases

Fees and charges

Other Revenue

RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Dividend income is recognised on the date of the dividend declaration.
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method.

Revenue from port services is recognised in the accounting period in which the actual service is
provided.

Revenue from the rendering of services, including relating to contracts and consent application
that are in progress at balance date, is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at balance date, based on the actual service provided as a percentage of the total
services to be provided.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Fees and charges are recognised as income when supplies and services have been rendered. Fees
received from the following activities are recognised as revenue from exchange transactions:
resource consent processing, pest animal and plant contract work, grazing leases and licenses and
enforcement work.

$000s Council Council Group Group
2022 2021 2022 2021
REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Port revenue - - 56,582 60,238
Consents and regulatory fees 3,296 2,338 3,296 2,338
Investment property rental income 810 673 32,184 27,822
Other property rental income 335 350 335 2,784
4,414 3,361 92,397 93,182

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Consents and regulatory fees 962 904 962 904
Other activity fees and charges 5,71 17,110 5,71 11,110
6,673 12,014 6,673 12,014

OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Rates Revenue

$000s - Bl TR 5

RATES REVENUE COMPRISES:
General rates 19,656 11,201 19,627 11,143
Targeted rates 20,555 15,814 20,479 15,814
40,211 27,015 40,106 26,957

2. Employee Benefits Expense

Employee entitlements for salaries and wages, annual leave, long service leave and other similar benefits are
recognised as expenditure and liabilities when they accrue to employees.

Council Council Group Group

$000$ 2022 2021 2022 2021
Salaries and wages 24,187 20,886 55,340 51,487

Defined contribution plans 1,077 916 1,077 2,468

Termination benefits 428 154 428 154

25,692 21,956 56,845 54,109

3. Schedule of Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment except for land, endowment land, capital work in
progress, floodbanks, protection works, drains and culverts. Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost or
revalued amount of the assets on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives.

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets, except rights to acquire, and is calculated to write down the cost of the
assets on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives.

$000s vores Copel comel cme o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1 3,450 3,025 14,118 14,138
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 499 335 1,641 1,136
Amortisation of leasing costs - - 165 121

3,949 3,360 15,924 15,395

Depreciation and Amortisation by Activity (Council Only)

As required by the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014, the Council’s
depreciation and amortisation by group of activities is as follows:

Actual Long Term Plan Actual Annual Plan

$000s NOTES 2021/2022 2021/2022 2020/2021 2020/2021
Environment 277 350 235 271
Regional Leadership 166 121 175 206
Safety and Resilience 948 1,01 882 IM
Transport 786 580 700 282
Corporate 1,772 1,512 1,368 1,297
3,949 3,574 3,360 2,967
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4. Other Expenses

Council Council Group Group
$000s NOTES 2022 2021 2022 2021
Net bad and doubtful debts (12) 16 (12) 16
Donations 350 350 612 544
Operating lease rental expenses:
- Minimum lease payments 651 454 522 252
Company Directors’ remuneration - - 500 387
Purchased materials and services 58,750 58,311 74,938 77,988
Fuel and electricity 443 372 4,082 2,795
Other 18 - 18 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment - 564 - 564
60,300 60,067 82,055 83,533

2021: Included in the write-off of property, plant and equipment work in progress are assets which were vested to
Dunedin City Council and the Otago community.

Remuneration of Auditors

Council Council Group Group

$000s 2022 2021 2022 2021
Audit fees for financial statement audit 125 125 125 125
Audit fees for audit of Annual Plan/Long-Term Plan - 70 - 70
Other services - - - -
Fees for tax and advisory services - Council - - - -
125 195 125 195

Audit fees to other auditors for audit of financial statments of group entities - - 223 127
Audit fees to the other auditors for other services to group activities - - 62 -
= = 285 127

125 195 410 322

The auditor for and on behalf of the Controller and Auditor-General, of the Otago Regional Council, is Deloitte
Limited, and of the Port Otago Limited Group is Ernest and Young.

5. Other Gains/(Losses)

Gains or losses on the sale of investment property and property, plant and equipment are recognised when an
unconditional contract is in place, it is probable that the Group will receive the consideration due, and significant
risks and rewards of ownership of assets have been transferred to the buyer.

Council Council Group Group
$000s NOTES 2022 2021 2022 2021

Unrealised net change in value of investment

property and property in development 12 305 1,542 C0.070 88752
Gain/(loss) on disposal of investment property - - -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 154 834 254 865
et change v sl of francil s cares e aem e 26
Impairment of Property, plant and equipment n - 121 (848) (727)

Net change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments classified at fair value through - - 1,203 602
surplus or deficit (interest rate swaps)

TOTAL OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) (1,953) 4,955 58,267 86,980

GAINS 459 4,955 61,527 87,707

LOSSES (2,412) - (3,260) (727)
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6. Income Taxes

Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

$000s vores Gl Comelt cmp e
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/BENEFIT COMPRISES:
Current year - current tax R - (5,816) (4,914)
Current year - deferred tax 100 100 (4,026) (2,035)
Prior period adjustment current tax - - 85 7

Prior period adjustment deferred tax

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/BENEFIT REPORTED IN THE
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE 100 100 (9,757) (6,942)

The prima facie income tax expense on pre-tax
accounting surplus reconciles to the income tax
expense in the financial statements as follows:

Surplus/(deficit) before income tax (5,289) (8,454) 61,976 82,972
Imputation credits - - - -
(5,289) (8,454) 61,976 82,972
Income tax expense (credit) calculated at 28% (1,481) (2,367) 17,353 23,232
Non-deductible expenses 25,146 23,807 25,182 23,856
Non-assessable income (20,125) (18,712) (20,154) (40,348)
Unrealised change in investment property - - (13,146) (100)
Deferred tax expense relating to the origination
and reversal of temporary differences - - 505 o2
Prior period adjustment - - 15 210
Imputation credits utilised (3,640) (2,828) o =
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (100) (100) 9,757 6,942

Council entered into an agreement for the Council to transfer 2021 tax year losses to its subsidiary Port Otago
Limited. In conjunction with the tax loss transfer of $257,364 (2021 tax year: $257,857), by way of a tax loss offset,
Port Otago Limited made a subvention payment of $100,086 (2021 tax year: $100,278) to the Council.

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax expense is also recognised in equity.

Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net surplus/(deficit) before
tax, as reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense, because it excludes items of income

or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Council’s and Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Imputation Credit Account Balances

Group Group
$000s 2022 2021
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 47,211 47,693

Imputation credit balances available directly and indirectly to the Council through subsidiaries are $47,309,000 as at
30 June 2022 and $47,791,000 as at 30 June 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022 77

Council Meeting 2022.09.28

90



Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements:

Working Capital

This section provides information about the operating assets and liabilities
available for the Otago Regional Council and Group’s day-to-day activities.

The notes in this section are as follows:
7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

8.  Trade and Other Receivables

9.  Trade and Other Payables

10. Employee Entitlements
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7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and deposits in money market instruments, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the Cash Flow
Statements are reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

$000s Council Council Group Group
2022 2021 2022 2021

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash at bank and on hand 13,243 4,380 13,323 4,621

Term deposits with maturities less than 3 months - - - -

13,243 4,380 13,323 4,621

8. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less impairment.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for doubtful debts is established when there
is objective evidence that the Council or Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
expensed in the surplus/(deficit).

$000s Council Council Group Group
2022 2021 2022 2021

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Trade receivables (i) 2,277 2,270 14,207 13,329
Provision for doubtful debts (75) (103) (455) (348)
2,202 2,167 13,752 12,981

Sundry accruals - - -
Goods and Services Tax receivable 975 298 975 298
3177 2,465 14,727 13,279

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade receivables (i) 4,774 4,754 4,774 4,753
Provision for doubtful debts (28) (12) (28) (12)

4,746 4,742 4,746 4,741
Accrued Income 3,217 1M 3,217 ,m

Goods and Services Tax receivable - - = -

7,963 5,853 7,963 5,852

TOTAL 11,140 8,318 22,690 19,131

(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on monthly terms.
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9. Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Council and Group becomes obliged to make
future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services. Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

$000s Counct
Trade payables for Exchange transactions (i) 10,867

Other accrued charges 7,329

Property deposits received -

18,196

(i) The average credit period on purchases is 30 days.

10. Employee Entitlements

Council
2021

1,519
5,512

17,031

Group Group
2022 2021
19,688 14,042
7,329 9,938
27,017 23,980

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, long service
leave, and sick leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured

reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their
nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are
measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Council and Group in respect

of services provided by employees up to reporting date.

$000s Counet
Accrued salary and wages 395
Annual leave 2,002
Long service leave -
Retiring allowances n
Sick leave -
2,408

Disclosed in the fi ial statements as:
Current 2,408
Non-current -
2,408

Council
2021

PALX]

2,143

PALX]
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Group Group
2022 2021
1,342 933
5,659 5,230
866 919
48 59
133 130
8,048 7,27
7145 6,315
903 956
8,048 7,27
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Notes to the Financial Statements:

Investments and

Long-term Assets

This section provides information about the investments the Otago Regional
Council and Group have made in investments and long-term assets.

The notes in this section are as follows:

1.  Property Plant and Equipment
12. Investment Property
13.  Investment Property Inventories
14. Intangible Assets
15.  Other Financial Assets
16.  Shares in Subsidiary and Dividend Income
17.  Property Held for Sale
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1. Property, Plant and Equipment

Council 2022
Cost Cost
$000s 1July 2021 Additions Disposals Transfers Reclass 30 June 2022
COUNCIL OPERATIONAL ASSETS
Land 12,550 - - - - 12,550
Endowment land 780 - - - - 780
Buildings 7,287 188 = 66 - 7,542
Plant and vehicles 10,890 2,482 (1,968) 107 - 11,51
Capital work in progress 515 101 - 173) (82) 361
TOTAL OPERATIONAL ASSETS 32,022 2,772 (1,968) - (82) 32,744
COUNCIL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS
Floodbanks 28,432 32 - 6 - 28,470
Protection works 9,741 - - - - 9,741
Structures 43,265 140 - 38 - 43,443
Drains 3,760 - - - - 3,760
Bridges 1,455 - - - - 1,455
Culverts 1,320 456 - 189 - 1,965
Transport Infrastructure & hardware 5,299 - (64) - - 5,235
Capital work in progress 822 1,023 - (233) - 1,612
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS 94,094 1,651 (64) - o 95,681
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 126116 4423 (2033) - E2) 128,425
Council 2021
$000$ 1July 2‘:’;0[ Additions Disposals Transfers Reclass 30 June 'E;::
COUNCIL OPERATIONAL ASSETS
Land 12,550 - - - - 12,550
Endowment land 1,495 - (715) - - 780
Buildings 7172 m ) 7 - 7,287
Plant and vehicles 9,540 1,483 (272) e 23 10,890
Capital work in progress 337 365 (64) (123) - 515
TOTAL OPERATIONAL ASSETS 31,094 1,959 (1,054) o 23 32,022
COUNCIL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS
Floodbanks 27,548 884 - - - 28,432
Protection works 9,741 - - - - 9,741
Structures 41,796 615 - 854 - 43,265
Drains 3,760 - - - - 3,760
Bridges 1,509 - (54) - - 1,455
Culverts 1,278 48 (6) - - 1,320
Transport Infrastructure & hardware 2,723 640 2) - 1,938 5,299
Capital work in progress 746 1,230 (300) (854) - 822
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS 89,101 3,417 (362) o 1,938 94,094
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT | 1207195 5376 (1416) - 1961 126,116

Council infrastructural assets represent Flood Protection and Control Works as defined in the Local Government
(Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014. All infrastructure assets acquired during the year were
constructed by Council. There were no infrastructural assets transferred to the Council from external entities.
Capital work in progress reclassed (to prepayments) relates to a deposit paid in the 2021 financial year for the
purchase of lake buoys, which will now be leased.

82 OTAGO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Council Meeting 2022.09.28

95



Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Notes to the Financial Statements - Investments and Long-term Assets

Accumulated
Depreciation and

Impairment recovery/

Accumulated

Accumulated
Depreciation and

Impairment Charges (losses) Charged Depreciation Reversed Impairment Charges Book Value

1July 2021 in Profit or Loss Depreciation Expense on Disposal 30 June 2022 30 June 2022

- - - - - 12,550

- - - - - 780

(2,135) - (384) - (2.519) 5,023

(6,338) - (1,335) 1,925 (5,748) 5,763

- - - - - 361

(8,473) - (1,719) 1,925 (8.267) 24,477

(44) - - - (44) 28,426

- - - - - 9,741

(19,190) - (916) - (20,106) 23,337

- - - - - 3,760

(1,085) - (43) - (1,128) 327

- - - - - 1,965

(1,088) - (772) 13 (1,847) 3,387

- - - - - 1,612

(21,407) - (1,731) 13 (23,126) 72,555

(29,880) = (3,450) 1,938 (31,392) 97,032
Accumulated Accumulated

impament Charges  MPmentrecovery/ peprecat T e Charges Book Value

1July 2020 in Profit or Loss Depreciation Expense on Disposal 30 June 2021 30 June 2021

- - - - - 12,550

- - - - - 780

(1,816) - (320) 1 (2,135) 5,152

(5,440) - (1,124) 226 (6,338) 4,552

- - - - - 515

(7,256) = (1,444) 227 (8,473) 23,549

(165) 121 - - (44) 28,388

- - - - - 9,741

(18,340) - (850) - (19,190) 24,075

- - - - - 3,760

(1,087) - (45) 47 (1,085) 370

- - - - - 1,320

(402) - (686) - (1,088) 4,21

- - - - - 822

(19,994) 121 (1,581) 47 (21,407) 72,687

(27,250) 121 (3,025) 274 (29,880) 96,236

IPSAS 21 Impairment of a non-cash generating assets requires an impairment assessment if there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. During the February 2020 flood, flood protection assets in the Clutha and
Queenstown regions were damaged. In 2020 the book value of the damaged flood assets was impaired using the
restoration cost approach. During the 2021 financial year the assets were repaired, and the impairment was reversed.
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Group 2022
$000s
OPERATIONAL ASSETS
Land - Council
Endowment land - Council
Buildings - Council
Plant and vehicles - Council
Capital work in progress - Council
Land - Port
Buildings and improvements - Port
Wharves and berths dredging - Port
Plant, equipment and vehicles - Port
Capital work in progress - Port

TOTAL OPERATIONAL ASSETS

COUNCIL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS
Floodbanks

Protection works

Structures

Drains

Bridges

Culverts

Transport Infrastructure & hardware
Capital work in progress

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS

TOTAL GROUP PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group 2021

$000s

OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Land - Council

Endowment land - Council
Buildings - Council

Plant and vehicles - Council

Capital work in progress - Council
Land - Port

Buildings and improvements - Port
Wharves and berths dredging - Port
Plant, equipment and vehicles - Port
Capital work in progress - Port

TOTAL OPERATIONAL ASSETS

COUNCIL INFRA-STRUCTURAL ASSETS
Floodbanks

Protection works

Structures

Drains

Bridges

Culverts

Transport Infrastructure & hardware
Capital work in progress - Council

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS

TOTAL GROUP PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
1July 2021

12,550
780
7,287
10,890
515
36,300
88,855
91,335
120,706
3,752
372,970

28,432
9,741
43,265
3,760
1,455
1,320
5,299
822
94,094
467,064

Cost
1July 2020

12,550
1,495
7,172
9,540
337
36,300
86,256
91,030
116,884
4,845
366,409

27,548
9,741
41,796
3,760
1,509
1,278
2,723
746
89,101
455,510

Additions

188
2,482
101

15,485
18,256

32

140

456

1,023
1,651
19,907

Additions

m
1,483
365

3,359
305
4,101

9,724

884

615

48

640

1,230

3,417
13,141

Disposals

(1,968)
(95)
(675)
(1,289)

(4,027)

(64)
(64)
(4,091)

Disposals

(715)
3)
(272)
(64)

(760)
(279)
(1,093)
(3,186)

2
(300)
(362)

(3,548)

Transfers

66
107
73)

2,707
3,170
(5,888)
(W)

(233)

(1)

Transfers

7
e
(123)

(854)
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Reclass

(82)

(82)

(82)

Reclass

Cost
30 June 2022

12,550
780
7,541
1,51
361
36,205
90,887
91,335
122,587
13,349
387,106

28,470
9,741
43,443
3,760
1,455
1,965
5,235
1,612
95,681
482,787

Cost
30 June 2021

12,550
780
7,287
10,890
515
36,300
88,855
91,335
120,706
3,752
372,970

28,432
9,741
43,265
3,760
1,455
1,320
5,299
822
94,094
467,064
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Accumulated
Depreciation and

Impairment recovery/

Accumulated

Accumulated
Depreciation and

Impairment Charges (losses) Charged Depreciation Depreciation Impairment Charges Book Value

1July 2021 in Profit or Loss Expense Reversed on Disposal Transfers 30 June 2022 30 June 2022

- - - - - - 12,550

> > o = = = 780

(2,135) = (384) = = (2.519) 5,023

(6,338) - (1,335) 1,925 = (5,748) 5,763

> > o = = = 361

= = o = = = 36,205

(29,032) - (3,001) 530 = (31,503) 59,384

(27174) = (1,839) = = (29,013) 62,332

(64,661) > (5,828) 1,315 = (69,174) 53,413

o o o = = = 13,349

(129,340) = (12,387) 3,770 = (137,957) 249,149

(44) = o = = (44) 28,426

o o o = = = 9,741

(19,190) = (916) = = (20,106) 23,337

= = o = = = 3,760

(1,085) o (43) = = (1,128) 327

= = o = = = 1,965

(1,088) > (772) 14 = (1,847) 3,389

= = S = = = 1,612

(21,407) = (1,731) 14 = (23,126) 72,557

(150,747) (14,118) 3,784 = (161,081) 321,706

Accumulated Accumulated

mpamentCharges o moSiment beprecation e LA Book Value

1July 2020 in Profit or Loss Expense Reversed on Disposal Transfers 30 June 2021 30 June 2021

> > o = = = 12,550

= = S = = = 780

(1,816) - (320) 1 = (2,135) 5,152

(5,440) > (1,124) 226 = (6,338) 4,552

= = o = = = 515

o o o = = = 36,300

(26,590) = (3197) 755 = (29,032) 59,823

(24,327) (848) (1,999) = = (27,174) 64,161

(59,022) - (5,917) 278 o (64,661) 56,045

= o o = = = 3,752

(117,195) (848) (12,557) 1,260 (129,340) 243,630

(165) 121 - = = (44) 28,338

= = o = = = 9,741

(18,340) = (850) = = (19,190) 24,075

o o o = = = 3,760

(1,087) = (45) 47 = (1,085) 370

= > = = = = 1,320

(402) = (686) = = (1,088) 4,211

= o o = = = 822

(19,994) 121 (1,581) 47 = (21,407) 72,687

(137,189) (727) (14,138) 1,307 = (150,747) 316,317
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of:

Operational Assets
Operational assets include:

e Council-owned land, endowment land, buildings, and plant and vehicles; and

e Port owned land, buildings and improvements, wharves and berths dredging, and plant, equipment and vehicles.

Infrastructural Assets

Infrastructural assets deliver benefits direct to the community and are associated with major flood protection and
land drainage schemes. Infrastructural assets include floodbanks, protection works, structures, drains, bridges,
culverts, bus hubs and shelters.

Transport infrastructure assets and hardware deliver benefits to the transport bus network in Wakatipu and
Dunedin.

Restricted Assets

Endowment land is vested in the Council by the Otago Regional Council (Kuriwao Endowment Lands) Act. The Act
restricts disposition of this land to freeholding initiated by lessees.

(A) cCOsT
Land and Buildings are recorded at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Other property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Where an asset is acquired for no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value at the date of
acquisition. When significant, interest costs incurred during the period required to construct an item of
property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part of the asset’s total cost.

(B) DEPRECIATION
Operational assets with the exception of land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis to write-off the cost of
the asset to its estimated residual value over its estimated useful life.

Infrastructural assets including floodbanks, protection works and drains and culverts are constructions or
excavations of natural materials on the land and have substantially the same characteristics as land, in that
they are considered to have unlimited useful lives, and in the absence of natural events, these assets are not
subject to ongoing obsolescence or deterioration of service performance, and are not subject to depreciation.
Other infrastructural assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of the asset to its
estimated residual values over its estimated useful life.

Expenditure incurred to maintain these assets at full operating capability is charged to the surplus/(deficit) in
the year incurred.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Buildings - Council 10-50 years Floodbanks Unlimited
Plant and vehicles - Council 3-20 years Protection works Unlimited
Buildings and improvements - Port 10-50 years Drains Unlimited
Wharves - Port 15-70 years Culverts Unlimited
Vessels and Floating Plant - Port 5-30 years Structures 8-100 years
Plant, equipment and vehicles - Port 3-30 years Bridges 33-100 years

Transport infrastructure and hardware 5-15 years
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The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period.

(C) DISPOSAL
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or recognised as impaired when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the surplus/(deficit) in the period the asset is
derecognised.

Critical Judgements and Assumptions

(A) COUNCIL AND GROUP
The Council owns a number of properties that are held for service delivery objectives as part of the Council’s
various flood protection schemes. The receipt of market-based rental from these properties is incidental to
holding these properties. These properties are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

(B) GROUP ONLY
Port Otago Limited owns a number of properties that are classified and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment rather than investment property if the property is held to meet the strategic purposes of the port,
or to form part of buffer zones to port activity, or to assist the provision of port services, or to promote or
encourage the import or export of goods through the port.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Council and Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Council and Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is
recognised in the surplus or deficit whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Useful Lives and Residual Values

At each balance date, the Group reviews the useful lives and residual values of its property, plant and equipment.
Assessing the appropriateness of useful lives and residual value estimates of property, plant and equipment requires
the Group to consider a number of factors, such as the physical condition of the asset, expected period of use of the
asset by the Group, and expected disposal proceeds from the future sale of the asset.

An incorrect estimate of the useful life or residual value will impact on the depreciable amount of an asset, therefore
impacting on the depreciation expense recognised in the surplus/(deficit), and carrying amount of the asset in the
Statement of Financial Position. The Group minimises the risk of this estimation uncertainty by physical inspection
of assets, asset replacement programmes and analysis of prior asset sales. The Group has not made significant
changes to past assumptions concerning useful lives and residual values.
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12. Investment Property

$000s nores  Comel Comel e cow
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,490 14,948 495,780 393,437
Acquisitions - - - -
Subsequent capital expenditure - - 28,661 10,328
Interest capitalised - - 10 190
Disposals - - - -
Net movement in incentives - - 376 121
Net movement in prepaid leasing costs - - 512 7m
Transfer to investment property inventories 13 - - 5,531 7,751
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale 17 - - (2,060) -
Transfer from investment property inventories 13 - - - -
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments 5 305 1,542 60,070 83,782

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 16,795 16,490 588,980 495,780

$000s Council Council Group Group
2022 2021 2022 2021

Valuation Analysis

VALUED AT 30 JUNE BALANCE DATE AS DETERMINED BY:

Jones Lang LaSalle - - 65,936 55,371
Bayleys Valuations Limited - - 248,755 -
CVAS (NZ) Limited (Colliers) - - 209,350 182,075
Savills (NZ) Limited (Savills) - - - 208,725
CBRE Limited (CBRE) - - 31,900 31,900
Tay and Tay Limited 16,795 16,490 16,795 16,490

16,795 16,490 572,736 494,561
Plus: investment property under construction and carried at cost - - 16,244 1,219

16,795 16,490 588,980 495,780

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment property is
measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are reported in the surplus/(deficit) in the period in which they arise.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The fair
value of investment property reflects the Director’s assessment of the highest and best use of each property and,
amongst other things, rental income, from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions. The fair value also reflects the cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property.

No depreciation or amortisation is provided for on investment properties. However, for tax purposes, depreciation is
claimed on building fit-out and a deferred tax liability is recognised where the building component of the registered
building exceeds the tax book value of the building. The deferred tax liability is capped at the amount of depreciation
that has been claimed on each building. Gains or losses on the disposal of investment properties are recognised

in the surplus/(deficit) in the period in which the risks and rewards of the investment property have been fully
transferred to the purchaser.

Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying
property. Capitalisation of borrowing costs will continue until the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.
The rate at which borrowing costs are capitalised is determined by reference to the weighted average borrowing
costs and the average level of borrowings.
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Critical Judgements

Fair Value of Property Portfolio Assets (includes investment property,
property held for sale and property in development)

The fair value of the Council’s and Group’s investment property at 30 June 2022 requires estimation and judgement
and has been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at that date by independent registered valuers who
conform with the New Zealand Property Institute Practice Standards. The valuers have extensive market knowledge
in the types of investment properties owned by the Council and Group.

The fair value was determined using valuation techniques via a combination of the following approaches:

o Direct Capitalisation: The subject property rental is divided by a market derived capitalisation rate to assess the
market value of the asset. Further adjustments are then made to the market value to reflect under or over renting,
additional revenue and required capital expenditure.

Discounted Cash Flow: Discounted cash flow projections for the subject property are based on estimates of future
cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and by external evidence such as market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Sales Comparison: The subject property is related at a rate per square metre as a means of comparing evidence.
In applying this approach a number of factors are taken into account, such as but not limited to, size, location,

zoning, contour, access, development potential / end use, availability of services, profile and exposure, current use of

surrounding properties, geotechnical and topographical constraints.

Significant inputs used together with the impact on fair value of a change in inputs:

COUNCIL GROUP
Range of Significant Unobservable Inputs Range of Significant Unobservable Inputs
Market capitalisation rate (%) (i) 4.5% 6.0% 4.0% 9.0%
Market rental ($ per Sqm) (ii) $48 $245 $12 $396
Discount rate (%) (iii) 6.5% 8.0% 6.1% 9.5%
Rental growth rate (%) (iv) 2% 25% 1.0% 25%
Terminal capitalisation rate (%) (v) 5.0% 6.5% 41% 9.3%
Profit and risk rate (vi) N/A N/A 5.0% 5.0%
Development sell down period (years) (vii) N/A N/A 0.25-0.5 years 0.75 years

(i)  The capitalisation rate applied to the market rental to assess a property’s value, determined through similar
transactions taking into account location, weighted average lease term, size and quality of the property.

(ii) The valuer assessment of the net market income that a property is expected to achieve under a new arm’s
length leasing transaction.

(iii) The rate applied to future cash flows relating transactional evidence from similar properties.
(iv) The rate applied to the market rental over the future cash flow projection.
(v) The rate used to assess the terminal value of the property.

(vi) The rate providing an allowance for the risks and uncertainties associated with similar activities in conjunction
with current market conditions.

(vii) The length of time in years anticipated to complete the sell down of developed land.
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13. Investment Property Inventories

Council Council Group Group

$000s NOTES 2022 2021 2022 2021
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR @ ] 21,495 27,554
Transfer (to) from investment property 12 - - - -

Transfer to investment property 12 - - (5,531) (7,751)

Land acquired from joint venture partner - - - 2,499

Disposals - - - (1,640)

Subsequent capital expenditure - - 464 833

Interest capitalised - - - -

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR - - 16,428 21,495

Council Council Group Group

$000s 2022 2021 2022 2021
COMPRISING:

Developed land for sale - - 16,428 21,371

Units and warehouse developments - - - 124

- - 16,428 21,495

Transfers to investment property from investment property inventories occur when there is a change in use
evidenced by the commencement of a development with a view to sale. Future development stages that have not yet
commenced and are being held for capital appreciation are accounted for in investment property.

Investment property inventories are accounted for as inventory and initially recognised at deemed cost represented
by the fair value at the time of commencement of the development. Further costs directly incurred through
development activities are capitalised to the cost of the investment property inventories.

Investment property inventories are valued annually and are measured at the lower of cost and fair value. Where
costs exceed the fair value of the investment property inventories the resulting impairments are included in the
Income Statement in the period in which they arise.

Developed Land for Sale

The $16.4 million carrying value at balance date reflects the cost of 7.3 hectares of developed land for sale. In their
June 2022 valuation, Jones Lang LaSalle stated a net realisable value of $42.1 million for this land on hand. At June
2021, the $21.5 million carrying value of developed land reflected the Groups 10.4 hectare share of the developed
land. Jones Lang LaSalle stated a net realised value for the Groups share of developed land on hand at June 2021 of
$33.2 million.
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14. Intangible Assets

Council Council Group Group Group
$000s Computer Total Computer Resource Total
Software Software Consents
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT
Balance at 30 June 2020 8,358 8,358 16,090 5,645 21,735
Additions 1,070 1,070 1,984 5 1,988
Capital WIP additions 40 40 40 - 40
Capital WIP write off - - - - -
Transfer to complete asset (941) (941) (941) - (941)
Transfer to Property plant and equipment (1,961) (1,961) (1,961) - (1,961)
Write off to statement of comprehensive income (686) (686) (686) - (686)
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2021 5,880 5,880 14,526 5,650 20,175
Additions 75 75 - - 75
Capital WIP additions - - - - -
Capital WIP write off - - - - -
Transfer to Property plant and equipment (14) (14) n s n
Disposals - - - - -
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2022 5,941 5,941 8,657 5,650 20,248
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Balance 30 June 2020 (3,659) (3,659) (10,087) (1,687) (11,774)
Amortisation expense (335) (335) (881) (255) (1136)
Disposals 2 2 - - 2
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2021 (3,992) (3,992) (10,966) (1,942) (12,908)
Amortisation expense (499) (499) (1,386) (255) (1,641)
Disposals - - - - -
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2022 (4,491) (4,491) (12,352) (2,198) (14,549)
NET BOOK VALUE
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022 1,450 1,450 2,246 3,452 5,698
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 1,888 1,888 3,560 3,707 7,267

The cost of acquiring an intangible asset is amortised from the date the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis
over the periods of expected benefit.

Computer Software

Computer software assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairment. The amortisation
periods range from 1to 5 years.

Resource Consents

For resource consents the amortisation periods range from 3 to 25 years. Where the periods of expected benefit or
recoverable values have diminished, due to technological change or market conditions, amortisation is accelerated
or the carrying value is written down.

Resource consents relate to the granting of the consents which will allow Port Otago Limited to deepen to 15 metres
and widen the channel in Otago Harbour so larger ships will be able to call at Port Chalmers. Consents were granted in
January 2013 and were activated in March 2015. Amortisation of the carrying amounts commenced on the activation
of the consents and will be amortised over the life of the consents which is either 3 years or 20 years. An additional 25
year consent was granted in June 2017 to undertake maintenance dredging and disposal of dredge spoil.
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Impairment

At each reporting date, the Council and Group reviews the carrying amounts of intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Council and Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

15. Other Financial Assets
Council Council Group Group

$000s 2022 2021 2022 2021
HELD FOR TRADING - CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE

Current:

Managed funds - cash (i) 1,713 2,113 1,713 2,113
Managed funds - bonds (i)(ii) 10,340 10,108 10,340 10,108
Managed funds - equities (i) 1,381 13,092 1,381 13,092

23,434 25,313 23,434 25,313

Other financial assets are classified on initial recognition at fair value through surplus of deficit or loans and
receivables.

Loans and Receivables at Amortised Cost

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Surplus of Deficit
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit where the financial asset:
e Has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future;

e Isa part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Council and Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e |s aderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense. The net gain or loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense and incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset. Fair value is determined in the manner described later in this note.

(i) The Council and Group have classified their managed funds held for trading. The Group holds a portfolio of
floating and fixed interest deposits, bonds and equity securities that is managed externally. This classification
has been determined as all assets within this category are available for trading at any point. Financial assets
held for trading purposes are classified as current assets and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in the surplus/(deficit).

(ii) The Group holds fixed interest bonds via its managed fund portfolio, the maturity dates range between 2022-
2038.

Fair Value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

Level 1- the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets is determined with reference to quoted market prices. Financial assets in this category include
managed fund equities and shares in listed companies.

Level 2 - the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.
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Level 3 - fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

COUNCIL GROUP
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2022 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
1 H 1.
Financial aS§ets at FVTSD: 23,434 : : 23,435 23434 : R 23,435
Other financial assets
2021
i i 1.
Financial assets at FVTSD*: 25313 B B 25,313 25,313 B ~ 95,313

Other financial assets

1 FVTSD: Fair Value through the surplus or deficit

16. Shares in Subsidiary and Dividend Income

Port Otago Limited is a 100% subsidiary of the Council.

Recognition and Measurement

The Council’s investment in Port Otago Limited is carried at fair value in the Council entity’s financial statements. At
each balance date the Council obtains an annual valuation of the Council’s shareholding in its subsidiary Port Otago
Limited. The Port Otago group consists of Port Otago Limited, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The annual valuation is determined by an independent firm of chartered accountants and business advisors.

In assessing the valuation, the valuers adopt methodologies appropriate for the components of the Port Otago
Limited group, employing the discounted cashflow methodology for Port Otago port operations and net tangible
assets approach for Chalmers Properties Limited. Changes in forecast cashflows and property values and other
factors that the fair value assessment is based on may result in the fair value of the shares in the subsidiary being
different from previous estimates. The fair value is a level 3 fair value measurement, as the valuation technique
includes inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Significant Assumptions Used in Determining Fair Value
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The valuation for the shares in Port Otago Limited is a combination of a discounted cashflow and net tangible assets
approach based on information provided by the entity and investment property valuations. The fair value of the
shares in subsidiaries at 30 June 2022 was based on cashflows discounted using a weighted average cost of capital
of 8.6% (2021: 7.6%), terminal growth rate 3% (2021: 3%) and discount for lack of marketability 3% (2021: 5%). Refer to
Note 12 for revaluation inputs associated with the investment properties.

Sensitivity to WACC
o Adecrease of 0.5% in WACC to 8.1% would result in a $27.53 million increase in fair value

e Anincrease of 0.5% in WACC to 9.1% would result in a $22.972 million decrease in fair value

Sensitivity to terminal growth rate
o Adecrease of 0.5% in the terminal growth rate to 2.5% would result in a $14.85 million decrease in fair value

e Anincrease of 0.5% in the terminal growth rate to 3.5% would result in a $17.76 million increase in fair value

Council Council Group Group

$OOOS 2022 2021 2022 2021

Balance at beginning of year 612,330 536,364 - -

Gain/(loss) recognised in other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense 87,960 75,966 - -

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 700,290 612,330 - =
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Related party transactions
During the year the following receipts/(payments) were made from/(to) Port Otago Limited:

$000s ot ol
REVENUE TRANSACTIONS
Dividend payment made to Council 13,000 10,100
Rates 104 59
Other 46 16
Interest on borrowings 134 -
EXPENDITURE TRANSACTIONS
Harbour Control Centre and other costs 60 60
Finance costs 45 -

During the year Council and Port Otago Limited, entered into an agreement whereby Council will provide an
unsecured related party loans facility of up to a maximum of $100 million. The related party loan amounts, interest
rates and repayment dates match loans provided by the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA)
to Council. Port Otago Limited pays all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by Council in connection with the
establishment of its LGFA facility and ongoing fees associated with related party borrowing. Council or Port Otago
Limited may terminate the related party loan agreement by giving 24 months notice to the other party. All related
party loans under the agreement are unsecured.

As at 30 June 2022 Otago Regional Council had advanced loans of $99,960,000 to Port Otago Limited (2021: $Nil).
Related party loans are classified as non current due to the Council and Port Otago loan agreement requiring 24
months notice for termination of the facility. Related party loan repayment will match the LGFA loan outlines at Note
21.

Group Subsidiaries
Otago Regional Council is the head entity within the consolidated group. Port Otago Limited (100% owned) holds the
Group’s interest in the other subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures detailed below.

The principal activities of the entities are:
OWNERSHIP INTEREST

P P 2022 2021
Principal activities % %
SUBSIDIARIES
Chalmers Properties Limited Property investment 100 100
Te Rapa Gateway Limited Property investment 100 100
Fiordland Pilot Services Limited Shipping services 100 100

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the Council. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated surplus/(deficit) from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

17. Property Held for Sale

vores Sl Comel cmp o

BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR - - - -
Transfer from (to) investment property 12 - - 2,060 -
Disposals - - - -
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR - - 2,060 =

Property classified as held for sale is measured at:
o Fair value for items transferred from investment property, and

o Fair value less estimated costs of disposal, measured at time of transfer, for items transferred from property, plant
and equipment.

Property is classified as held for sale if the carrying amount will be recovered through a sales transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the property is
available for immediate sale in its present state. There must also be an expectation of completing the sale within one
vear from the date of classification. Property is not depreciated nor amortised while it is classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements:

Council Funding

This section contains analysis of the net assets of the group and
the council, accumulated funds and restricted reserves.

The notes in this section are as follows:
18. Reserves

19.  Public Equity

20. Public Equity Targeted Rates - Reserve Movements
21. Borrowing

22. Finance Costs
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18. Reserves

Restricted and Council Created Reserves

Restricted reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of
equity have been assigned. Reserves may be legally restricted or created by the Council.

Restricted reserves are those subject to specific conditions accepted as binding by the Council and which may not
be revised by the Council without reference to the Courts or a third party. Transfers from these reserves may be
made only for certain specified purposes or when certain specified conditions are met.

Also included in restricted reserves are reserves restricted by Council decision. The Council may alter them without
references to any third party or the Courts. Transfers to and from these reserves are at the discretion of the Council.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE REVALUATION RESERVE
The available-for-sale revaluation reserve arises on the revaluation of the shares in subsidiary (Council only) and
shares in listed companies (Group).

ASSET REPLACEMENT RESERVE
This reserve represents funds held for the replacement of Council operational assets.

EMERGENCY RESPONSE RESERVE
This reserve is separately funded to enable Council to respond appropriately to emergency situations.

.
cou nc"' Available for Sale Asset Replacement Emergency Response Kuriwao Endowment
$000s Revaluation Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve

OPENING BALANCES 30 JUNE 2020 516,364 3,756 3,901 6,397
TRANSFERS IN:

Transfers from general rate equity - 1,702 - 878
Transfers from targeted equity - - 535 -
Interest received - 34 40 68
Revaluation gain 75,966 - - -
75,966 1,736 575 946

TRANSFERS OUT:
Transfers to general rate equity - (2,555) - (31
Transfers to targeted rate equity - - - (250)
- (2,555) o (381)
CLOSING BALANCES 30 JUNE 2021 592,330 2,937 4,476 6,962

TRANSFERS IN:

Transfers from general rate equity - 2,465 - 63
Interest received - 49 87 134
Revaluation gain 87,960 - - -
87,960 2,514 87 197

TRANSFERS OUT:
Transfers to general rate equity - (2,911) - (53)
Transfers to targeted rate equity - - - (250)
- (2,911) - (303)
CLOSING BALANCES 30 JUNE 2022 680,290 2,540 4,563 6,856
CLOSING BALANCES 30 JUNE 2021 592,330 2,937 4,476 6,962
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KURIWAO ENDOWMENT RESERVE - RESTRICTED
This reserve represents the accumulation of net income from Kuriwao Endowment land less any distribution of that
income. The reserve is available to fund works for the benefit of the Lower Clutha District.

ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE
This reserve arises on the revaluation of investment property.

WATER MANAGEMENT RESERVE
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for water management initiatives in Otago.

HEDGING RESERVE
This reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments relating to interest payments that have not yet occurred.

BUILDING RESERVE
The purpose of this reserve is to set aside funding for a new head office for the Council.

ENVIRONMENTAL ENHANCEMENT RESERVE
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for the maintenance or enhancement of areas of the natural
environment within the Otago region.

Asset Revaluation Water Management Environmental
Reserve Reserve Building Reserve Enhancement Reserve Total Reserves
12,887 897 13,440 8 557,650
- - - 250 2,830
- - - - 535
- 8 133 1 285
1,542 - - - 77,508
1,542 8 133 251 81,158
- - (250) (2,936)
_ _ - (250)
o - (250) (3,186)
14,429 905 13,573 € 635,622
- - - 470 2,998
- 18 267 2 557
305 - - - 88,265
305 18 267 472 91,820
- (239) - (443) (3,646)
- - - - (250)
- (239) (443) (3,896)
14,734 684 13,840 38 723,545
14,429 905 13,573 € 635,622
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Group
$000s
OPENING BALANCES AT 1JULY 2020

TRANSFERS IN:
Transfers from general rate equity
Transfers from targeted rate equity
Interest received
Revaluation gain

Change in fair value of
interest rate swaps

TRANSFERS OUT:
Transfers to general rate equity
Transfers to targeted rate equity

Deferred tax arising on
fair value movement

CLOSING BALANCES 30 JUNE 2021

TRANSFERS IN:
Transfers from general rate equity
Interest received
Revaluation gain

Change in fair value of
interest rate swaps

TRANSFERS OUT:
Transfers to general rate equity
Transfers to targeted rate equity

Deferred tax arising on
fair value movement

Realised on sale of assets

CLOSING BALANCES 30 JUNE 2022

CLOSING BALANCES 30 JUNE 2021

Available for Sale
Revaluation Reserve

Asset Replacement
Reserve

3,756

1,702

34

1,736

(2,555)

(2,555)

2,937

2,465
49

2,514

(2,911)

(2.91)
2,450

2,937

Emergency Response
Reserve

3,901

535
40

575

4,476

87

4,563

4,476
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Kuriwao Endowment
Reserve

6,397

878

68

946

(131
(250)

(381)

6,962

63
135

198

(53)
(250)

(303)
6,856

6,962
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Asset Revaluation
Reserve

275,488

83,782

83,782

359,270

60,070

60,070

419,340

359,270

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022

Water Management Environmental
Reserve Building Reserve Enhancement Reserve Hedging Reserve Total Reserves
897 13,440 8 (2,036) 301,851
o = 250 = 2,830
o = o = 535
8 133 1 = 285
o = = = 83,782
o = > 2,200 2,200
8 133 251 2,220 89,652
o = (250) (2,936)
- o - (250)
- - - (622) (622)
= = (250) (622) (3,808)
905 13,573 ) (438) 387,695
- - 470 = 2,998
18 267 2 = 557
o = = = 60,070
o = o 2,388 2,388
18 267 472 2,388 66,013
(239) = (443) = (3,646)
= = = = (250)
(239) = (443) = (3,896)
684 13,840 38 1,950 449,81
905 13,573 ) (438) 387,695
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19. Public Equity

Public Equity - General Rates Council Council Group Group
$000s 2022 2021 2022 2021
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 63,761 72,647 334,015 340,758
NET SURPLUS (5,189) (8,354) 52,219 76,030
TRANSFERS IN
Transfer from Public Equity Targeted Rates 53,317 49,983 53,317 49,983
Kuriwao endowment reserve 53 131 53 131
Asset replacement reserve 2,91 2,555 2,91 2,555
Asset revaluation reserve - - - -
Water Management Reserve 239 - 239 °
Environmental Enhancement Reserve 443 250 443 250

Building Reserve - - - -

56,963 52,919 56,963 52,919
TRANSFER OUT
Transfer to Public Equity Targeted Rates (50,454) (48,260) (50,454) (48,260)
Kuriwao endowment reserve 197) (946) (197) (946)
Asset replacement reserve (2,514) (1,736) (2,514) (1,736)
Emergency response reserve 87) (575) (87) (575)
Asset revaluation reserve (305) (1,542) (60,070) (83,783)
Water management reserve (18) 9) (18) )
Building Reserve (267) (133) (267) (133)
Environmental Enhancement Reserve (472) (250) (472) (250)
(54,314) (53,451) (114,079) (135,692)
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 61,221 63,761 329,118 334,015
Public Equity - Targeted Rates
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 46,41 47,884 46,41 47,884
TRANSFERS IN
Transfer from Public Equity General Rates 50,454 48,260 50,454 48,260
Kuriwao endowment reserve 250 250 250 250
Emergency response reserve - - - -
50,704 48,510 50,704 48,510
TRANSFERS OUT
Transfer to Public Equity General Rates (53,317) (49,983) (53,317) (49,983)
(53,317) (49,983) (53,317) (49,983)
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR - REFER NOTE 17 (B) 43,798 46,411 43,798 46,41
Total Public Equity
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 110,172 120,531 380,426 388,642
NET SURPLUS (5,189) (8,354) 52,219 79,064
Transfers 35 (2,005) (59,729) (84,246)
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 105,019 110,172 372,916 380,426

Equity is the community’s interest in the Council and Group and is measured as the difference between total assets
and total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into a number of reserves.

Reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of equity have
been assigned. Reserves may be legally restricted or created by Council.
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20. Public Equity Targeted Rates - Reserve Movements

Targeted Rating COUNCIL AND GROUP - 2022 COUNCIL AND GROUP - 2021
. . . Opening Closing Opening Closing
Dlstrlct EqUIty balance balance balance balance
$000s 1July Transfers Transfers 30 June 1July Transfers Transfers 30 June
2021 in out 2022 2020 in out 2021

RIVER MANAGEMENT RESERVES

Central Otago River

Management 434 335 (335) 434 460 313 (339) 434
Clutha River Management 183 363 (593) 46) 183 332 (332) 183
Dunedin River Management 1,380 320 (440) 1,259 1,462 268 (350) 1,380
Queenstown River
Management 707 229 (142) 794 745 176 (214) 707
Waitaki River Management 529 422 (150) 802 512 407 (390) 529
Wanaka River Management (274) 224 (153) (203) 571 209 (1,054) (274)
Shotover Delta
Flood Mitigation 249 7 - 256 204 84 (39) 249
Stoney Creek 154 5 - 159 152 2 - 154
FLOOD AND DRAINAGE
SCHEME RESERVES
Alexandra Flood Protection 56 122 (266) (87) 146 96 (186) 56
East Taieri Drainage 454 820 (971) 303 346 658 (550) 454
Leith Flood Protection (14,976) 1,699 (1,091) (14,368) (15,734) 1,614 (856) (14,976)
Lower Clutha Flood
and Drainage (687) 2,557 (2,501) (631) 101) 3,256 (3,842) (687)
Lower Taieri Flood 1,337 3,065 (2,106) 2,296 955 1,577 (1,195) 1,337
Protection
Lower Waitaki Flood
Protection (6) 190 (214) (30) 4 203 (213) (6)
Tokomairiro Drainage 243 184 (277) 150 244 144 (145) 243
West Taieri Drainage (1,909) 1,058 (1,261) (2,112) (1,926) 889 (872) (1,909)
OTHER RESERVES
Clean Heat Clean Air - - - - 47 - (47) -
Dunedin Transport Services (6,489) 17,348 (19,645) (8,788) (4,504) 18,792 (20,777) (6,489)
Queenstown
Transport Services (843) 7,704 (8,535) (1,674) (359) 8,029 (8,513) (843)
Rural Water Quality 1,614 734 (1,445) 903 1,189 696 27) 1,614
Dairy Monitoring 74 193 (253) 14 80 192 (198) 74
Wilding Pines (289) 4,135 (4,264) (419) (205) 6,030 (6,114) (289)
Emergency Management (434) 2,997 (2,664) (101) (669) 2,852 (2,617) (434)
Lake Hayes Restoration (369) 219 (301) (450) (365) o 4) (369)
Biosecurity - 4135 (4,783) (648) = = = -
Infrastructural Assets 65,273 1,639 (928) 65,984 64,447 1,691 (865) 65,273

46,411 (53,317) 43,798 47,884 48,510 (49,983) 46,411

RIVER MANAGEMENT RESERVES
Targeted rating is used to fund river management works across the city and districts within Otago.

FLOOD AND DRAINAGE SCHEME RESERVES
Targeted rating is used to fund the costs associated with maintaining the level of flood and drainage protection
provided by these schemes.

TRANSPORT RESERVES
Targeted rating is used in Dunedin and Queenstown to fund the Council’s costs associated with the provision of bus
services.
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CLEAN HEAT CLEAR AIR RESERVE
The purpose of this reserve is to fund costs associated with the provision of funding associated with the
improvement of insulation and heating in homes located within the targeted rating district.

Schedule of Internal Borrowing for Public Equity Targeted Rates - Reserve

. Amount Funds Amount
Council 2022 borrowed borrowed Funds repaid borrowed
$000s asat30 during the during the Interest asat30

June 2021 year year charged June 2022

Flood Protection and Control Works 17,583 4,606 (5,437) 513 17,265
Environment 658 9,440 (8,614) 32 1,516
Safety and Hazards 431 2,656 (2,997) 7 97
Transport 7,332 27,916 (25,050) 263 10,461
26,004 44,618 (37,329) 815 29,339

. Amount Funds Amount
Council 2021 borrowed borrowed Funds repaid borrowed
$000s asat 30 during the during the Interest asat 30

June 2020 year year charged June 2021
Flood Protection and Control Works 17,761 5,590 (5,962) 194 17,583
Environment 570 6,11 (6,030) 7 658
Safety and Hazards 669 2,608 (2,852) 6 431
Transport 4,863 29,224 (26,822) 67 7,332
23,863 43,533 (41,666) 274 26,004
°
21. Borrowings
New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Council Council Group Group
2022 2021 2022 2021
$000s
CURRENT
Secured borrowings 67,956 - 67,956 -
Unsecured borrowings - - - -
TOTAL CURRENT BORROWINGS 67,956 @ 67,956 E
NON-CURRENT
Secured borrowings 47,200 - 47,200 -
Unsecured borrowings - - - -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS 47,200 = 47,200 o
FIXED RATE BORROWINGS 100,095 - 100,095 -
FLOATING RATE BORROWINGS 15,061 o 15,061 E
TOTAL BORROWINGS 115,159 - 115,159 -

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised
cost, with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the Income Statement over the
period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method. The carrying amount of borrowings reflects fair value
as the borrowing finance rates approximate market rates.

On 21 September 2021 Council entered into the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency (NZLGFA) as a
guarantor. The NZLGFA was incorporated in December 2021 with the purpose of providing debt funding to local
authorities in New Zealand and it has a current credit rating from Standard and Poor’s of AAA and a foreign currency
rating of AA+. NZLGFA has a local currency rating from Fitch of AA+ and a foreign currency rating of AA.

As at 30 June 2022, Otago Regional Council is one of 30 local authority shareholders and 38 local authority
guarantors of the NZLGFA. When aggregated with the uncalled capital of other shareholders, $20m is available in
the event that an imminent default is identified. Also, together with the other shareholders and guarantors, Otago
Regional Council is a guarantor of all of NZLGFA’s borrowings. At 30 June 2022, NZLGFA had borrowings totaling
$15,795milllion (2021: $13,605million).

Financial reporting standards require Otago Regional Council to recognise the guarantee liability at fair value.
However, Otago Regional Council has been unable to determine a sufficiently reliable fair value for the guarantee,
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and therefore has not recognised a liability. Otago Regional Council considers the risk of NZLGFA defaulting on
repayment of interest or capital to be very low on the basis that:

- We are not aware of any local authority debt default events in New Zealand; and

- Local government legislation would enable local authorities to levy a rate to recover sufficient funds to meet any
debt obligations if further funds were required.

When borrowing long-term from LGFA, borrower notes must be subscribed for in an amount of 2.5% of long-term
borrowings. Borrower notes are used by LGFA as a source of capital to ensure there is sufficient capital to match the
growth in the LGFA’s balance sheet. LGFA redeems the borrower notes plus interest when the related borrowings are
repaid or no longer owed to LGFA. At 30 June 2022, the Group had subscribed to borrower notes totaling $1,210,255
(2021: nil). The bond on issue are as follows:

Maturity Date Amount Interest Rate
30/11/2023 $179,000 3.02%
10/06/2029 $231,000 3.33%
28/01/2024 $131,000 2.72%
23/03/2025 $205,000 3.26%
28/01/2026 $205,000 2.86%
18/03/2026 $131,000 3.34%
10/06/2029 $128,000 3.47%

BorrOWing - Bank Council Council Group Group
$000s 2022 2021 2022 2021

CURRENT

Secured borrowings - - 8,250 5,240

Unsecured borrowings - - 5 -
TOTAL CURRENT BORROWINGS - - 8,250 5,240

NON-CURRENT

Secured borrowings - - - 73,850
Unsecured borrowings - - - -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS = = = 73,850
FIXED RATE BORROWINGS - = 8,250 79,090

FLOATING RATE BORROWINGS - - - =

TOTAL BORROWINGS = = 8,250 79,090

The Group has a $31 million (2021: $81 million) Short Term Advances Facility with ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited
(ANZ) which the Group may draw from for terms ranging from call to the termination of the agreement, which is 1
July 2024. In addition the Group has a revolving $29 million (2021: $29 million) Commercial Flexi Facility with ANZ
which is subject to an annual review. The next review is due on 30 November 2022 (2021: 30 June 2021).

The security for advances is a cross guarantee and indemnity between Port Otago Limited, Chalmers Properties
Limited and Te Rapa Gateway Limited in favour of the lender, general security agreement over the assets of Port
Otago Limited and Chalmers Properties Limited and registered first-ranking mortgages over land.

22. Finance Costs

Council Council Group Group

$000$ 2022 2021 2022 2021
Interest on loans 223 - 3,171 2,798
Capitalised borrowing costs - - (159) (190)
Other 1 - - _
224 - 3,012 2,608

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction of property, plant and equipment and
long-term investment property development projects are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements:

Financial Risk

Management

This section provides details Council and Group’s borrowings - a major
source of financing used to deliver services to the people of Otago. It also
includes information about the group’s financial instruments that are used to
manage the risks associated with borrowings and details Council and Group’s
exposure to a variety of financial risks and how these risks are managed.

The notes in this section are as follows:
23. Financial Instruments

24. Market Risk

25. Equity Price Risk

26. Credit Risks

27. Liquidity Risk
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23. Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Council has established a Treasury Management Policy, which combines the Local Government Act 2002
requirement for local authorities to adopt a Liability Management Policy and an Investment Policy. These provide a
framework for prudent debt management and the management of financial resources in an efficient and effective way.

The Council and Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
for speculative purposes.

Significant Accounting Policies for Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Council’s or Group’s Statement of Financial Position
when the Council and/or Group becomes a party to contractual provisions of the instrument.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as fair
value through surplus or deficit which are initially valued at fair value.

Financial Assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through surplus or
deficit’, ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets, and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through surplus or deficit, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been impacted. For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Council and Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at each balance date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group designates hedges of highly probable forecast transactions as cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense
and transferred to the cash flow hedge reserve in equity. The ineffective component of the fair value changes on the
hedging instrument is recorded directly in the surplus/(deficit).

When a hedging instrument expires or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the surplus/(deficit). When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the surplus or deficit.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the surplus/(deficit).

For qualifying hedge relationships, the Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.
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The net differential paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognised as a component of interest expense over the
period of the swap agreement.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument
is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The group carries interest rate derivatives (derivative financial instruments) at fair value. The fair value of interest
rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the reporting date,
taking into account current interest rates. These instruments are included in Level 2 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy. Interest rate derivative fair values are valued and are calculated using a discounted cash flow model using
FRA rates provided by ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited based on the reporting date of 30 June 2022.

COUNCIL GROUP
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2022
Financial assets at FVTSD:
Other financial instruments . . ) . : S . g2
Financial liabilities at FVTSD: . . . . . . . :
Other financial instruments
2021
Financial assets at FVTSD:
Other financial instruments . ) ) . . Lo . Lo
Financial liabilities at FVTSD:
Other financial instruments . . . . . (L225) ; (L225)
Council 2022 Fair Value Through Fair Value Through Financial
$000! Loans and Surplus or Deficit Other Comprehensive Liabilities at
s Receivables - Held for Trading Revenue and Expense Amortised Cost Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (note 7) 13,243 - - - 13,243
Trade and other receivables (note 8) 11,40 - - - 11,40
Related party receivable 99,960 - - - 99,960
Borrower notes 1,210 - - - 1,210
Other financial assets (note 15) - 23,434 - - 23,434
Other current assets 883 - - - 883
Shares in subsidiary (note 16) - 700,290 - 700,290

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 126,436 23,434 700,290 850,160

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables (note 13) - - - 18,196 18,196
Borrowing - - - 115,156 115,156
Provisions - - - - -

AL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES = = = 133,352 133,352
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Council 2021 Fair Value Through Fair Value Through Financial

$000 Loans and Surplus or Deficit Other Comprehensive Liabilities at
s Receivables - Held for Trading Revenue and Expense Amortised Cost Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (note 7) 4,380 - - - 4,380
Trade and other receivables (note 8) 8,318 - - - 8,318
Other financial assets (note 15) - 25,313 - - 25,313
Other current assets 698 - - - 698
Shares in subsidiary (note 16) - - 612,330 - 612,330
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 13,396 25,313 612,330 - 651,039

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables (note 9) - - - 17,031 17,031
Provision - - - 783 783
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - - - 17,814 17,814
Group 2022 Fair Value Throug.h Fair Value Throu_gh ) F.il'.la!ncial
$000s Reconahiss  ~HedforTrading  Revenueand Expense  Amortised Coat Total
g P
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (note 7) 13,323 - - - 13,323
Trade and other receivables (note 8) 22,690 - - - 22,690
Other current assets 3,593 - - - 3,593
Other financial instruments - 4,281 - - 4,281
Other financial assets (note 15) - 23,434 - - 23,434
Borrower notes 1,210 - - = 1,210

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 40,816 27,715 68,531

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other financial instruments - - o . -

Trade and other payables (note 9) - - - 27,017 27,017
Borrowings (secured) (note 20) - - - 123,406 123,406
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - - - 150,423 150,423
Group 2021 Fair Value Through Fair Value Through Financial
$000! Loans and Surplus or Deficit Other Comprehensive Liabilities at
s Receivables - Held for Trading Revenue and Expense Amortised Cost Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4,621 - - - 4,621
Trade and other receivables (note 12) 19,131 - - - 19,131
Other financial instruments - 1,021 - - 1,021
Other financial assets (note 5) - 25,313 - - 25,313

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 23,752 26,334 50,086

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other financial instruments - 1,255 - - 1,255
Trade and other payables (note 9) - - - 23,980 23,980
Borrowings (secured) (note 15) - - - 79,090 79,090
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - 1,255 - 103,005 104,260
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24. Market Risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in market prices of other financial assets
(principally Managed Funds - Equities and Shares in Listed Companies), foreign currency exchange rates and interest

rates.

There has been no change during the year to the group exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.

(A) Currency Risk

(B)

108

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group is exposed to currency risk in relation to the purchase of certain capital items
denominated in foreign currencies. Foreign currency forward purchase contracts are used to manage the
Group’s exposure to movements in exchange rates on foreign currency denominated liabilities and purchase
commitments. The Council is exposed to currency risk in relation to the investments denominated in

foreign currencies forming part of the managed fund portfolio. The policy governing Managed Funds places
restrictions on the currencies in which the fund manager may invest, and the amount of exposure to any one
currency.

Amount of Exposure to Currency Risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk for each class of financial instruments is as follows:

Council Council Group Group
$000s 2022 2021 2022 2021
Managed funds 8,092 8,340 8,092 8,340

TOTAL MANAGED FUNDS

The only significant sensitivity the group has in relation to changes in foreign currency relates to the Council’s
managed funds. The carrying value of investments in equity securities held in AUD, USD, GPB and EUR
denominated currency may fluctuate with changes in the exchange rate between the New Zealand dollar and
the foreign currency.

A favourable movement of 10% in the exchange rates at 30 June 2022 would have the impact of increasing
the carrying value of the managed funds, and the Council surplus, by $898,876 (2021: $926,579), and an
unfavourable movement of 10% would impact unfavourably to the extent of $735,929 (2021: $758,532).

Interest Rate Risk

The Council and Group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating interest rates. The risk is
managed by the use of floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps contracts. These swaps have the economic effect
of converting borrowings from floating rate to fixed rates.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating
rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to
mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on borrowings. The fair value of interest rate swaps are based on
market values of equivalent instruments at the reporting date.

The Council is also exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that it holds funds on demand, at call or in
floating interest rate instruments as part of cash and cash equivalent balances and the managed funds
portfolio.

The policy governing management of the managed funds places restrictions on how the funds may be
invested, and the amount of exposure to interest rates from funds held at call and on a floating rate basis.
Council invests surplus funds with Council-approved financial institutions, and holds sufficient funds on call as
part of its cash management procedures.

The following table discloses the impact of a movement of plus and minus 100 basis points in interest rates
applicable to those instruments.
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Sensitivity to Interest Rate Risk

2022 2021
Council Other Other Other Other
$000s Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity

-100bps -100bps +100bps +100bps -100bps -100bps +100bps +100bps
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Borrowings 388 - (388) - = o - -

TOTAL SENSITIVITY TO INTEREST RATE RISK 388 = (388) = - - - o
2022 2021

Group Other Other Other Other

$000s Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity

-100bps -100bps +100bps +100bps -100bps -100bps +100bps +100bps
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Borrowings 1,470 - (1,470) - 790 - (790) -
Derivatives - hedge accounted - 1,797 - 3,655 - (2,271) - 823
Derivatives - non-hedge accounted 1,142 - 1,993 - (229) - 923 -
TOTAL SENSITIVITY TO INTEREST RATE RISK 2,612 1,797 523 3,655 561 (2,271) 133 823

25. Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk on its investments held in publicly
traded securities.

The following information discloses the Group’s exposure and sensitivity to equity price risk.

Exposure to Equity Price Risk

Council Council Group Group
$000$ 2022 2021 2022 2021
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other financial assets 13,575 15,945 13,575 15,945
EXPOSURE TO EQUITY PRICE RISK 13,575 15,945 13,575 15,945
Sensitivity to Equity Price Risk
2022 2021
Council and Group 10% +10% -10% +10%
$000s -10% Other +10% Other -10% Other b Other
Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other financial assets (1,358) - 1,358 - (1,595) - 1,595 -
TOTAL SENSITIVITY EQUITY PRICE RISK (1,358) - 1,358 - (1,595) - 1,595 =

The sensitivity analysis shows the impact a movement of plus or minus 10% in the price of equities would have on the
fair value of the equities.
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26. Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group.

Council

The Council has no significant concentrations of credit risk arising from trade receivables, as it has a large number
of credit customers, mainly ratepayers, and Council has powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to
recover outstanding debts from ratepayers.

Council has credit risk exposure to related party for advance of $99.96 million.

Council trade and other receivables mainly arise from the Council’s statutory functions, therefore there are no
procedures in place to monitor or report the credit quality of debtors and other receivables with reference to internal
or external credit ratings.

The Council Treasury Management Policy details the objectives, policies and restrictions for management of the
fund. The policy includes the key objective of capital preservation, placing restrictions on the exposure to credit risk.

The Council is exposed to credit risk as a guarantor of all of the NZLGFA’s borrowings. Information about this
exposure is explained in note 21.

Group

The Group is predominantly exposed to credit risk arising from a small number of shipping line and warehouse
clients comprising the majority amount of subsidiary trade receivables. Regular monitoring of trade receivables is
undertaken to ensure that the credit exposure remains within the Group’s normal trading terms of trade.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowance for impairment,
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral
obtained.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counter parties are banks
with credit-ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure for each class of financial instrument is as follows:

$000s oz e i oo
Cash at bank and term deposits 13,243 4,380 13,323 4,380
Trade and other receivables 11,40 8,318 22,690 8,318
Related party receivable 99,960 - - -
Other financial assets (Note 5) 23,434 25,313 23,434 25,313
Other financial instrument- asset - - 4,281 1,004
Other financial instrument- liability - - - (1,255)
Shares in subsidiary 700,290 612,330 - 612,330

848,067 650,341 63,728 650,090
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27. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they
fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through
adequate committed credit facilities, and the ability to close out market positions.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial

assets and liabilities.

Contractual Maturity Analysis of Financial Instruments

The following contractual maturity information analyses the Group’s financial instruments into the relevant grouping
based on the remaining period at balance date to the contractual maturity date. Future interest payments on floating
rate debt are based on the floating rate of the instrument at balance date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

Council 2022

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Related party receivable
Managed fund:
Cash and call deposits
Fixed interest securities
Equity securities

Shares in subsidiary

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

Weighted
Average
Effective
Interest Rate

3.55

Carrying
Amount

$000
13,243
1,140
99,960

1,714
10,340
1,381
700,290

748,108

Contractual
Cash Flows

$000
13,243
11,140
116,229

1714
10,618
11,381
700,290

748,386

AGEING OF CASH FLOWS

Less Than
1Year

$000
13,243
11,140
55,510

1,714

358
1,381

37,836

1-5 Years
$000

60,719

Greater than
5Syears

$000

5,024

700,290

705,314

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Borrowing

Provision

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Council 2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Managed fund:
Cash and call deposits
Fixed interest securities
Equity securities

Shares in subsidiary

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Provision

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Weighted
Average
Effective
Interest Rate

(18,196)
(115,156)

(133,352)

Carrying
Amount

$000
4,380
8,318

2,113
10,108
13,092

612,330

650,341

(17,031)
(784)

(17,815)

(18,196)
(122,100)

(140,296)

Contractual
Cash Flows

$000

4,380
8,318

2,113
10,620
13,092

612,330

650,853

(17,031)
(784)

(17,815)

(18,196)
(69,052)

(87,248)

AGEING OF CASH FLOWS

Less Than
1Year

$000

4,380
8,318

2,113
2,982
13,092

30,885

(17,031)
(784)

(17,815)

(37,736)

(37,736)

1-5 Years
$000

(15,312)

(15,312)

Greater than
5years

$000

612,330

619,968
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AGEING OF CASH FLOWS

Group 2022 W:‘i,ge?;;: Carrying Contractual Less Greater than
Effective Amount Cash Flows Than1Year 1-5 Years Syears
FINANCIAL ASSETS Interest Rate $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents - 13,323 13,323 13,323 - -
Trade and other receivables - 22,690 22,690 22,690 - -
Managed fund:
Cash and call deposits - 1,714 1,714 1,714 - -
Fixed interest securities 342 10,340 10,618 358 5,236 5,024
Equity securities - 11,381 11,381 11,381 - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 59,448 59,726 49,466 5,236 5,024
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables - (27,017) (27,017) (27,017) - -
Borrowing (secured) 3.08 (123,406) (130,351) (69,052) (37,736) (15,312)
Provision - - - - - -
Other financial instruments - 4,281 4,739 1,208 3,223 308

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (146,142) (152,629) (94,861) (34,513) 15,004

AGEING OF CASH FLOWS

r 2021 Weightsd Carryin, Contractual Less Greater than

oup Average ying
Effective Amount Cash Flows Than1Year 1-5 Years 5years
Interest Rate $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents - 4,621 4,621 4,621 - -
Trade and other receivables - 19,131 19,131 19,131 - -
Managed fund: -
Cash and call deposits - 2113 2,113 2113 - -
Fixed interest securities 218 10,108 10,620 2,982 7,638 -
Equity securities - 13,092 13,092 13,092 - -

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables - (23,980) (23,980) (23,980) - -
Borrowings (secured) 2.70 (79,090) (84,340) (16,495) (67,845) -
Provision - (783) (783) (783) - o
Other financial instruments - (234) @7n) (716) 445 =
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (104,087) (109,374) (41,974) (67,400) -

The Council is exposed to liquidity risk as a guarantor of all LGFA’s borrowings. This guarantee becomes callable in
the event of the LGFA failing to pay its borrowings when they fall due. Information about this exposures is explained
in note 21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements:

Other Disclosures

The notes in this section are as follows:
28. Key Management Personnel Compensation

29. Remuneration (Council Only)

30. Subsequent Events

31. Commitments for Expenditure

32. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

33. Deferred Tax Balances

34. Leases

35. Related Party Disclosures
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28. Key Management Personnel Compensation

The compensation of the Councillors, Chief Executive and General Managers of the Council, and of the Directors and
other senior management of the Port Otago Limited Group was as follows:

Council Council Group Group

$000$ 2022 2021 2022 2021
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Short-term employee benefits 1,843 1,584 5,544 4,915

Post-employment benefits - - -

1,843 1,584 5,544 4,915

Full-time equivalent number of key management personnel 6 6 24 24
GOVERNING PERSONNEL

Councillors remuneration 862 860 862 860

Directors’ fees - 500 387

862 860 1,362 1,247

29. Remuneration (Council Only)

Employee Staffing Levels
The number of all employees, employed by the Council on the last day of the financial year was as follows:
ber of Employ Number of Employ
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Full-time employees 259 231
Full-time equivalent number of other employees 20.8 19.8

Council regards one full-time equivalent as an employee who works 37.5 hours weekly.

Employee Remuneration

The following table classifies the number of all employees employed on the last day of the financial year into
remuneration bands, calculated as the total annual remuneration (including the value of non-financial benefits) being
received as at the last day of the financial year.

ber of Employ ber of Employees

TOTAL ANNUAL REMUNERATION 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Less than $60,000 35 44
$60,000 to $79,999 90 74
$80,000 to $99,999 79 76
$100,000 to $119,999 48 33
$120,000 to $139,999 20 14
$140,000 to $159,999 8 8
$160,000 to $259,999 8 6
$260,000 to $369,999 0 2
$620,000 to $639,999 1 0
289 257

Chief Executive Remuneration
The Chief Executive of the Council is appointed under Section 42 of the Local Government Act 2002.

Sarah Gardner was employed as Chief Executive from 1 July 2021 until 18 May 2022. During the period to 30 June
2022 the Chief Executive Sarah Gardner received salary payments amounting to $284,252 (2021: $316,631), and
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the total cost including fringe benefit tax of the remuneration package received during that period is calculated at
$316,598 (2021: $360,026). Sarah Gardner received additional termination payments of $313,785 including accrued

annual leave of $73,978 and $25,000 as severance.

On 7 June 2022 Dr Pim Borren was appointing acting CEO and was paid $43,200 for the period up to 30 June 2022.

Elected Representatives’ Remuneration

The following tables disclose the total annual remuneration (including the value of non-financial benefits) received
by or payable to the Chairperson and other Councillors of the Council.

Council Remuneration 2022

Meetings Allowances
attended Remuneration Meeting fees and mileage Other Total
/eligible
COUNCILLOR meetings® $ $ $ $ $
Andrew Noone (Chairperson) 50/52 142,260 - 550 5,937 148,747
Kevin Malcolm (Deputy
Chairperson - from 26 May 2022) 52/52 68,118 - 7,614 410 76,142
Michael Laws (Deputy
Chairperson - to 25 May 2022) 41/48 85,480 - 5,435 189 91,104
Hilary Calvert 51/52 65,959 - 550 - 66,509
Michael Deaker 41/48 65,959 - 550 - 66,509
Alexa Forbes 48/50 65,959 - 7,916 677 74,551
Marian Hobbs 1313 20,985 - 275 - 21,260
Carmen Hope 44/48 65,959 - 7,077 - 73,035
Gary Kelliher 48/48 65,959 - 7,445 - 73,404
Gretchen Robertson 42/48 65,959 1,040 755 - 67,754
Bryan Scott 44/48 65,959 - 929 58 66,945
Kate Wilson 52/52 65,959 678 - 67,937
844,512 39,775 7,270 893,896
1 Eligible meetings include attendance at Council and Committee Meetings and Subcommittee Audit and Risk (for Crs Calvert, Noone,
Malcolm and Wilson). Councillors may have been absent on council business.
Council Remuneration 2021
Meetings Allowances
attended Remuneration Meeting fees and mileage Other Total
/eligible
COUNCILLOR meetings? $ $ $ $ $
Andrew Noone (Chairperson) 45/47 140,522 - 550 12,729 153,801
Michael Laws (Deputy Chairperson) 39/43 83,920 - 10,102 324 94,346
Hilary Calvert 46/47 62,239 - 550 - 62,789
Michael Deaker 41/43 62,239 - 1,045 - 63,284
Alexa Forbes 41/43 62,239 2,690 11,849 281 77,059
Marian Hobbs 40/43 62,239 - 3,415 - 65,654
Carmen Hope 37/43 62,239 - 10,701 97 73,037
Gary Kelliher 39/43 62,239 240 11,442 - 73,921
Kevin Malcolm 41/47 62,239 - 13,344 - 75,583
Gretchen Robertson 40/43 62,239 2,050 1,967 19 66,275
Bryan Scott 41/43 62,239 - 2,642 251 65,132
Kate Wilson 44/47 62,239 - 550 - 62,789
846,832 4,980 68,157 13,701 933,670

1 Eligible meetings include attendance at Council and Committee Meetings and Subcommittee Audit and Risk (for Crs Calvert, Noone,

Malcolm and Wilson). Councillors may have been absent on council business.

Severance Payments

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the Council had four (2021: one) severance payments of; $10,000, $10,000, $21,000 and
$25,000 (2021: $95,000). Included in these severance payments was $25,000 made to the CEO.
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30. Subsequent Events

On 6 September 2022 the Directors of Port Otago declared a final dividend of $1.0 million for the year ended 30
June 2022. As the final dividend was approved after balance date, the financial effect of the dividend payable of $1.0
million has not been recognised in the Balance Sheet.

31. Commitments for Expenditure

Capital Expenditure Commitment

At 30 June 2022 the Group had commitments for capital expenditure of $47 million (2021: 20.4 million). Included

in the above amounts are Council commitments of $0.3 million (2021: $0.2 million) relating to property, plant and
equipment acquisitions and contracts for capital expenditure. Port Otago Limited had commitments for capital
expenditure of $46.8 million (2021: $20.2 million) which relates to purchases and refurbishments of port assets and
investment property.

Lease Commitments

Finance lease liabilities and non-cancellable operating lease commitments are disclosed in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

32. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Council Only Contingent Liabilities
The Council has been advised of potential claims in relation to the issue of resource consents. The Council does not
expect any material uninsured liability to arise from these potential claims, (2021: $Nil).

Consistent with the nature of the Council’s activities, the Council is involved in Environment, High and District
Court proceedings resulting from decisions made by the Council as a planning and consenting authority under the
Resource Management Act.

Council Only Contingent Assets

The Council at 30 June has a contingent assets for bus trips which have been paid for but were not performed from
the bus operators in June 2022. At 30 June the financial impact of this assets was not able to be quantified.

Group

There are no contingent liabilities or assets at 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021: $Nil) other than those arising in the
normal course of business.
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33. Deferred Tax Balances

Deferred tax comprise taxable and deductible temporary differences arising from the following:

. Council
Council 2022 Council Council Charged to other Council
$000 Opening Charged to Comprehensive Closing
Balance Surplus/(Deficit) Revenue and Expense Balance
GROSS DEFERRED TAX ASSET:
Tax losses 98 - - 98
98 - - 98
A Council
Council 2021 Council Council Charged to other Council
$000 Opening Charged to Comprehensive Closing
Balance Surplus/(Deficit) Revenue and Expense Balance
GROSS DEFERRED TAX ASSET:
Tax losses 101 3) - 98
101 3) = 98
Group
Group 2022 Group Group Charged to other Group
$000 Opening Charged to Comprehensive Closing
Balance Surplus/(Deficit) Revenue and Expense Balance
GROSS DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:
Other financial assets (64) 337 927 1,200
Property, plant and equipment 10,759 (510) - 10,249
Investment property 7,309 4,555 - 11,864
Other (1,600) (365) = (1,956)
16,404 4,026 927 21,357
Group
GrouP 2021 Group Group Charged to other Group
$000 Opening Charged to Comprehensive Closing
Balance Surplus/(Deficit) Revenue and Expense Balance
GROSS DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:
Other financial assets (854) 169 622 (64)
Property, plant and equipment 1,365 (606) - 10,759
Investment property 5,110 2,199 = 7,309
Other (1,874) 273 = (1,600)
13,747 2,035 622 16,404

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when
the asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Council and Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the surplus/(deficit), except when it relates to
items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022 7

Council Meeting 2022.09.28

130



Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Notes to the Financial Statements - Other Disclosures

34. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Council and/or Group as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return
on the net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Council and/or Group as Lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at their fair value or, if lower, at amounts equal to the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against
income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Lease Incentives
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

Disclosures for Lessees

Leasing Arrangements

Operating leases relate to property, vehicles and equipment leases. All operating lease contracts contain market
review clauses in the event that the Council/Group exercises its option to renew. The Council/Group does not have an
option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.

Non-cancellable Operating Lease Payments

$000s -l R G
Less than 1year 653 491 1,153 1,029
1-2years 653 42 1,098 938
2 -3years 390 218 835 679
3-4years 246 60 691 505
4 - 5years 161 60 603 505
Longer than 5 years 338 45 1,832 1,984

2,438 1,351 6,212 5,640

Disclosures for Lessor

Operating Lease Commitments as Lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases. These non-cancellable leases have remaining non-
cancellable lease terms of up to 21 years.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

$000s Group Group
2022 2021

RENTALS RECEIVABLE
Within one year 28,766 24,329
After one year but not more than five years 94,126 83,197
More than five years 84,905 86,869
MINIMUM FUTURE LEASE RECEIVABLE 207,797 194,395
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35. Related Party Disclosures

Council

Otago Regional Council is the ultimate parent of the Group and controls one entity, being Port Otago Limited,
including its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

During the 30 June 2022 year, Councillors as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor arm’s

length transactions with the Council, such as the payment of rates.

RELATED PARTY ENTITY $

Councillor Andrew Noone

Ravensdown Limited

Silver Fern Farms Limited
Councillor Gary Kelliher

Springvale Downs Limited

Springvale Water Supply Company Limited
Councillor Hilary Calvert
Auripo Holdings Limited

Councillor Kate Wilson

Strath Taieri Agriculture and Rural Tourism Trust

Councillor Kevin Malcolm

J & E Soper Family Trust
Poltalloch South Trust

Relationship to
related party entity

Shareholder
Shareholder

Director/ Shareholder

Director

Shareholder

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

Total paid
by the entity
to Council

6,122
12,373

647
225

570

325

225
225

Total paid
to the entity
to Council

50,515

Outstanding
balance owed
by Entity

97

Outstanding
balance owed
by Council

9,959

During the 30 June 2021 year, Councillors as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor arm’s

length transactions with the Council, such as the payment of rates.

RELATED PARTY ENTITY $

Councillor Hilary Calvert
Auripo Holdings Limited
Councillor Marian Hobbs

Otago Natural History Trust

Orokonui Ecosanctuary Limited
Councillor Gary Kelliher

Springvale Downs Limited

Springvale Water Supply Company Limited
Councillor Kevin Malcolm

J & E Soper Family Trust
Poltalloch South Trust

Councillor Andrew Noone

Ravensdown Limited

Silver Fern Farms Limited
Councillor Kate Wilson

Predator Free Dunedin (Ceased Dec 2020)

Strath Taieri Agriculture and Rural Tourism Trust

Total paid Total paid Outstanding Outstanding
Relationship to by the entity totheentity balanceowed balance owed
related party entity to Council to Council by Entity by Council
Shareholder 273 - - 4,862
Trustee - - - 115,000
Director - 11,885 - -
Director/ Shareholder 76 - - -
Director 94 - - -
Trustee 21 - - -
Trustee 121 - - -
Shareholder 26,908 - - -
Shareholder 11,610 - - -
Trustee - 690,000 - -
Trustee 232 - - -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021—2022

Council Meeting 2022.09.28

132

19



Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Notes to the Financial Statements - Other Disclosures

Group
Refer to Note 16 for transactions between Council and Port Otago Limited.

Chalmers Properties Limited has provided an advance to Te Rapa Gateway Limited to fund its share of land
acquisition and development expenditure. The current intention of Chalmers Properties Limited is to provide ongoing
financial support to Te Rapa Gateway Limited.

Port Otago Limited and Chalmers Properties Limited have a $300,000 overdraft offset facility arrangement which is
included in the Group debt facility detailed in note 20. The purpose of this arrangement is to minimise any interest
costs to the two entities.

Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation

Related party transactions and outstanding balances with other entities in a group are disclosed in an entity’s
financial statements. Intra-group related party transactions and outstanding balances are eliminated in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements of the group.
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Purpose of this Statement

The purpose of this statement is to disclose the Council’s financial performance in relation to various benchmarks to
enable the assessment of whether the Council is prudently managing its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, and
general financial dealings.

The Council is required to include this statement in its Annual Report in accordance with the Local Government
(Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations). Refer to the regulations for more information,
including definitions of some of the terms used in this statement.

Rates Affordability Benchmark

The Council meets the rates affordability benchmark if:
e Its actual rates income equals or is less than each quantified limit on rates; and

o |tsactual rates increases equal or are less than each quantified limit on rates increases.

Rates (Income) Affordability

The following graph compares the Council’s actual rate income with a quantified limit on rate contained in the
financial strategy included in the Council’s Long-Term Plan.

The quantified limit is set in the Council financial summary statement and measured in thousands of dollars. The
quantified limits for rates are from the long-term plan 2018-2028. The quantified limit for 30 June 2022 is $45 million
or 50% of total revenue.

50,000
45,000
40,000
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000 -
15,000
10,000
5,000

$000'S

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
YEAR

. Quantified limit on rates income . Actual rates income (exceeds limit) . Actual rates income (at or within limit)
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Rates (Increases) Affordability

The following graph compares the Council’s actual rate increases with a quantified limit on rate increases included in
the financial strategy included in the Council’s Long-Term Plan. The quantified limit is an increase of 49% per annum,
(2021: 7%, 2018 - 2020: 12%).
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RATES AFFORDABILITY COMMENTARY

The Rates (increases) affordability graph shows the quantified limit was exceeded in 2018 and in the 2020. The
quantified limit included in the Long-Term Plan was an increase of 12% in 2018 and 2020, and the actual amount of
the increase was 31% and 14%. The Annual Plan 2019/20 provided for additional general rate funded expenditure,
primarily in the Environmental activity area and specifically associated with the water programmes.

Debt Affordability Benchmark

The Council meets the debt affordability benchmark if its actual borrowing is within each quantified limit on
borrowing. The Council specifies the quantified limit on borrowing as being the interest cost on borrowing as a
percentage of revenue (percentage of rates income in PY).

The following graph compares the Council’s actual interest costs as a percentage of borrowing with a quantified
limit specified in the financial strategy included in the Council’s Long-Term Plan. The quantified limit is interest costs
being a maximum of 20% of rates income, (2018-2021 20%).
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Balanced Budget Benchmark

The following graph displays the Council’s revenue (excluding development contributions, financial contributions,
vested assets, gains on derivative financial instruments, and revaluations of property, plant, or equipment) as a
proportion of operating expenses (excluding losses on derivative financial instruments and revaluations of property,
plant, or equipment).

The Council meets this benchmark if its revenue equals or is greater than its operating expenses.
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BALANCED BUDGET BENCHMARK COMMENTARY

The balanced budget benchmark graph shows that in 2022 - 2018, Council’s revenue was less than operating
expenses. The Council is required to ensure that estimated revenue is sufficient to cover estimated operating costs
unless Council resolves that in any particular year, it is financially prudent to fund a portion of operating costs from
other sources, including reserve funds.

In the 2018-2022 years, Council resolved to fund costs associated with particular activities from reserves, with the
activities most affected being the Environmental, Community and Transport activities.
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Essential Services Benchmark

The following graph displays the Council’s capital expenditure on network services as a proportion of depreciation on
network services.

The Council’s network services comprise flood protection and river management.

The Council meets this benchmark if its capital expenditure on network services equals or is greater than
depreciation on network services.
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Debt Servicing Benchmark

The following graph displays the Council’s borrowing costs as a proportion of revenue (excluding development
contributions, financial contributions, vested assets, gains on derivative financial instruments, and revaluations of
property, plant, or equipment).

Because Statistics New Zealand projects the Council’s population will grow more slowly than the national population
growth rate, Council meets the debt servicing benchmark if its borrowing costs equal or are less than 10% of its
revenue.
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Debt Control Benchmark

The following graph displays the Council’s actual net debt as a proportion of planned net debt. In this statement, net
debt means financial liabilities less financial assets (excluding trade and other receivables).

The Council meets the debt control benchmark if its actual net debt equals or is less than its planned net debt.

During the period 2017/18 to 2020/21, Council had budgeted net assets rather than net debt. During the 2021/2022
Council borrowed $15 million.
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Operations Control Benchmark

This graph displays the Council’s actual net cash flow from operations as a proportion of its planned net cash flow
from operations.

The Council meets the operations control benchmark if its actual net cash flow from operations equals or is greater
than its planned net cash flow from operations.
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OPERATIONS CONTROL BENCHMARK COMMENTARY
The Operations Control benchmark graph shows the actual net cash flow from operations as a percentage of the
planned net cash flow from operations.

In the 2022 year, the actual cash flow from operations was a new outflow of $2,198,000 compared to the planned net
inflow of $1,409,000. The major cause of this variance was caused by less fees and charges revenue being received
than budgeted.

In the 2021 year, the actual cash flow from operations was a net inflow of $271,000 compared to the planned net
outflow of $2,661,000. The major cause of this variance was an increase in grant revenue.

In the 2020 year, the actual cash flow from operations was a net outflow of $2,272,000 compared to the planned
net outflow of $82,000. The major cause of this variance was an increase in service on water policy, science, and our
emergency response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

In the 2079 year, the actual cash flow from operations was a net inflow of $129,000 compared to the planned net
outflow of $1,357,000. The major cause of this variance was an increase in spending on capital projects, investment
activities, in the current year.

In the 2018 year, the actual net cash flow from operations was a net outflow of $5,729,000 compared to the planned
net inflow of $293,000. The major cause of this variance is associated with a lower revenue level than budgeted

and an increased level of receivables than budgeted, concentrated on receivables from a small number of major
organisations associated with transport projects.
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Additional Information

Additional
Information

Rates Revenue

The rating base information in the table below is as at the preceding 30 June to the financial year shown in the table
and comprises the rating base for the region as a whole.

Rating Base Information for the Rating Base Information for the
Otago Region Year Ended 30 June 2022 Year Ended 30 June 2021
Total number of rating units 120,313 119,591
Total capital value of rating units $105,375,181,640 $92,993,220,030
Total land value of rating units $54,940,034,640 $49,147,606,280

Insurance of Assets

The total carrying value of all assets of the Council as at 30 June 2022 that are covered by insurance contracts
amounts to $17.928 million (2021: 16.978 million) and the maximum amount to which they are insured is $49.591
million (2021: $52.751 million).

The total value of all assets of the Council as at 30 June 2022 that are self-insured amounts to $97.349 million (2021:
$97.637 million).

Included in the value of self-insured assets are flood protection and drainage infrastructural assets of $65.167 million
(2021: $64.477 million), land of $29.344 million (2021: $29.060 million), transport infrastructural assets and hardware
of $1.388 million (2021: $2.212 million) and software of $1.450 million (2021: $1.888 million).

Flood protection and drainage infrastructural assets include floodbanks, protection works and drains and culverts.
Assets of this nature are constructions or excavations of natural materials on the land, and have substantially the
same characteristics of land, in that they are considered to have unlimited useful lives.

The Council does not maintain separate self-insurance funds and considers that the level of reserve funds held is
sufficient for the purpose of self-insuring assets that are not covered by insurance contracts.

As at 30 June 2022 the Council had not entered into any financial risk sharing arrangement for any assets held (2021:

$NiD).
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The Organisation

Directory

Otago Regional Council councillors

Chairperson
Deputy Chairperson

Regional Councillors

Otago Regional Council executive staff

Chief Executive
General Manager Corporate Services and Chief Financial Officer

General Manager Strategy, Policy and Science

General Manager Operations
General Manager Regulatory and Communications

General Manager Governance, Culture and Customer

Otago Regional Council details

Andrew Noone
Kevin Malcolm

Hilary Calvert
Michael Deaker

Alexa Forbes

Dunedin constituency
Moeraki constituency

Dunedin constituency
Dunedin constituency

Dunstan constituency

Marian Hobbs (resigned November 2021)
Carmen Hope

Gary Kelliher

Molyneux constituency
Dunstan constituency

Michael Laws Dunstan constituency
Gretchen Robertson Dunedin constituency
Bryan Scott Dunedin constituency

Kate Wilson Molyneux constituency

P Borren
N Donnelly

G Elsum July 2021 to March 2022
A Dawe March 2022 to current

G Palmer
R Saunders

A Vercoe
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Bankers Bank of New Zealand
Auditors Deloitte Limited on behalf of the Auditor-General, Wellington
Solicitors Ross Dowling Marquet and Griffin, PO Box 1144, Dunedin
Principal office Philip Laing House, Level 2, 144 Rattray Street, Dunedin 9016
Website www.orc.govt.nz
Phone 0800 474 082 | 0800 800 033 (Pollution hotline)
Email customerservices@orc.govt.nz
Port Otago Limited
Chairperson Paul Rea
Deputy Chairperson Pat Heslin
Directors Tom Campbell
Tim Gibson
Jane Taylor (resigned 31 March 2022)
Bob Fulton
Becky Lloyd
Chris Hopkins (appointed 1 July 2022)
Chief Executive Kevin Winders
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The Organisation

Office and Depot Locations

Offices

Dunedin office - Philip Laing House Queenstown office
Monday to Friday Monday to Friday

8.00am to 1pm, 2pm to 4.30pm 8.00am to 1pm, 2pm to 4.30pm
Closed on public holidays. Closed on public holidays.
Level 2 Terrace Junction

144 Rattray Street 1092 Frankton Road

Dunedin 9016 Queenstown 9300
Depots

We have staff located at depots throughout the region.
Please note that depots do not service general enquiries or accept payments.
Please contact us by email or phone for guidance or general enquiries.

Alexandra Cromwell Oamaru Taieri

13 Ngapara Street 14 Rogers Street 32 Ribble Street 173 Dukes Road North
Alexandra 9340 Cromwell 9310 Oamaru 9400 North Taieri
Balclutha Dunedin Palmerston Wanaka
Hasborough Place 70 Stafford Street 54 Tiverton Street 185 Riverbank Road
Balclutha 9230 Dunedin 9054 Palmerston 9430 Wanaka 9382

Statement of Compliance

In accordance with Part 3 of Schedule 10, Clause 34 of the Local Government Act
2002, the Council and management of Otago Regional Council confirm that all the
statutory requirements in relation to the Annual Report have been complied with.

Dr Pim Borren Andrew Noone
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRPERSON
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Independent Auditors’ Report

REPORT

TO COME
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Independent Auditors’ Report

REPORT
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Independent Auditors’ Report

REPORT

TO COME
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Bendigo, Central Otago
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8.2. Port Otago Statement of Corporate Intent

Prepared for: Council

Report No. CS2256

Activity: Governance Report

Author: Nick Donnelly, General Manager Corporate Services

Endorsed by: Nick Donnelly, General Manager Corporate Services

Date: 28 September 2022

PURPOSE

[1]  To receive Port Otago’s Statement of Corporate Intent for the three years to 30 June
2025.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

[2] Each year the Board of Port Otago Limited is required to provide Council as shareholder,

a Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI). The SCI for the three years to 30 June 2025 has
been received and is attached.

[31 The SCI sets out the objectives of the Port Otago group, and the intended nature and
scope of activities for the three-year period to 30 June 2025. The three-year scenario
covered by the SCl is reviewed annually on a rolling three-year basis.

[4]  The SCI process is the formal opportunity for Council, as 100% shareholder of Port
Otago, to have input into the intended activities of the company and its subsidiaries.

[5] In 2020 the Port substantially revised the SCI format to focus on sustainability and
introduced a materially process. The SCI has continued to be refined and developed as
part of Port Otago’s integrated reporting and materiality focus.

[6] The Port Board and management conducted a workshop with Council on the draft
contents of the SCI on 23 August 2022. Feedback from that workshop has been
incorporated in the attached SCI.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Council:

1) Receives this report and the attached Statement of Corporate Intent for Port Otago
Limited to 30 June 2025.

2) Endorses the Statement of Corporate Intent for Port Otago to 30 June 2025.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS
(7] Performance targets in relation to health, safety and wellbeing, financial, environmental,

and compliance with the Port and Harbour Safety Code are set out on page 16 of the
SCl.
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8]  The target level of shareholders’ funds as at June 2023 is $700 million rising to $730
million at June 2025.

[91  The dividend policy remains consistent with previous years. Dividends are:
“Based on the intention to pay dividends within the range of 50%-70% of the group’s
normalised operating surplus after tax”.

[10] Target dividend amounts are $14m for the year ending 30 June 2023 rising S1m per year
to $16m in 2025. These targets are consistent with Council’s Annual Plan 2022-23 and
Long-Term Plan 2021-31.

CONSIDERATIONS

Strategic Framework and Policy Considerations

[11] The dividend targets included in the SCI align to those included in Council’s Financial
Strategy.

Financial Considerations
[12] The dividend targets included in the SCI align to those included in Council’s Long-Term
Plan 2021-31 and Annual Plan 2022-23.

Significance and Engagement Considerations
[13] There are no significance and engagement considerations.

Legislative and Risk Considerations

[14] The Port Companies Act 1988 requires the Draft SCI to be delivered to Council within
one month of the commencement of each financial year and for the completed
document to be finalised within three months of the commencement of the financial
year.

[15] The primary risk is financial and relates to the Port’s actual performance meeting the
targets set out in the SCI and the Port’s ability to pay dividends to Council. This includes
underlying market risk which is inherent in the Port’s commercial activities. Dividends
levels outlined in the SCI are not guaranteed and are dependent upon the Port’s
underlying financial performance and Directors being satisfied the company will satisfy
the Companies Act 1993 solvency test requirements when those dividends are
approved.

Climate Change Considerations
[16] Climate change is considered in the SCI (see page 8, number 5 in the top 12 material
issues and page 12 our harbour taoka and beyond).

Communications Considerations

[17] There are no communications considerations.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2022 Port Otago Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025 [8.2.1 - 19 pages]
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Introduction

This Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI) outlines our plans for the next three years, FY2023, FY2024
and FY2025. We encourage you to read this SCl in conjunction with our 2022 Integrated Report,
Staying the course, a title which sums up FY22 for the port.

We applaud those in our supply chain already embracing integrated thinking and reporting and
encourage others to do the same. We continue to use the International Integrated Reporting
Council’s (IIRC) Integrated Reporting <IR> Framework, moving a little closer each year to the leading
IRs to which we aspire.

We undertook our third materiality process in 2022. This is now integral to how we engage with our
stakeholders on what matters most to them and how we are tracking (pages 7-9). With our
shareholder, community, iwi, customers, partners, suppliers, regulators and government, we
identified 12 material issues which — together with our strategy — form the basis of this SCl and our
2022 Integrated Report. As part of the materiality process, the ORC Port Liaison Committee shared
this reminder of the importance of our stakeholder relationships: “If a relationship isn’t strong, when
things go wrong, how do you broker a way forward? Every bright idea should be tested with those
that own you, those that will be affected by it and the people around you, and the port needs strong
relationships to be able to do this.”

Like everyone, we hoped that supply chain disruption would subside during the year. This has not
been the case. Our team has worked harder than ever with our customers, partners, suppliers and
community to continue delivering for our shareholder and the people of Otago. Disruption now
seems the new norm, making planning for the future even more critical. And this, alongside getting
our culture right, is critical to having the best team for the job.

There is some new content in this SCI compared to previous years, including progress against the
goals in the port’s Strategy for a better business (pages 9-14), and presentation of our Integrated
Sustainability Policy (page 5). We also encourage reference to the more detailed climate change

reporting in our 2022 Integrated Report (pages 72-75), as we gather more data and increase our

understanding of the challenges ahead.

About Port Otago

It was from Port Chalmers that New Zealand's first cargo of frozen meat left for London aboard the
refrigerated ship Dunedin in February 1882, signalling the start of our country’s modern export
trade. The Otago Harbour Board managed the port and harbour from 1874 until 1988, when the Port
Companies Act 1988 saw the registration of Port Otago Limited and the company’s shares vested in
the Otago Regional Council.

Port Otago is located on the Otago Harbour of the South Island of New Zealand. Port Otago benefits
from a deep natural harbour taoka, its strategic location for vessel rotation to and from deep-sea
destinations and a large primary export cargo region.

Port Otago is a Lifeline Utility under the Civil Defence Emergency Management (Act) 2002, defined
as entities that provide essential infrastructure services to the community. The company has a
responsibility to ensure its ability to function at the fullest possible extent during and after a civil
defence emergency.

Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025
Page 3
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Our region
Port Otago’s role facilitating trade for the region’s exporters and importers has a significant impact
on the economic, as well as the social and environmental, well-being of the Otago-Southland region.

Our region has the infrastructure required for a successful port,
including a fit-for-purpose road and rail network and a well-
developed warehouse and cool storage sector.

Port Otago operates two wharf systems — Port Chalmers and
Dunedin Bulk Port — within Otago Harbour. The lower harbour
channel depth is 14.0m, while the upper harbour channel is
8.5m.

Port Chalmers is one of New Zealand’s two deepest container
ports and can service the largest container ships in the New
Zealand. It can store more than 7000 containers and has one of
the highest number of reefer points of any New Zealand port,
with 1650.

The company has more than 38,000m? of covered warehousing at Port Chalmers, built to the high
standards required by the dairy industry. It also has two wharf-side cold storage facilities in Dunedin,
able to hold up to 10,500 tonnes of chilled product. This is used primarily to service fishing
customers.

Port Otago has a purpose-built forestry berth and adjacent 5.5 hectare log storage area at Port
Chalmers along with 4.6 hectare log storage facilities in Dunedin Bulk Port.

Port Chalmers is the primary South Island port for cruise ships and generally the port of call
immediately before or after visiting Fiordland.

Company structure

This SCI sets out Port Otago’s overall intentions and
objectives. It also covers our wholly owned subsidiary
companies, Chalmers Properties Limited, Fiordland Pilot
Services Limited and Te Rapa Gateway Limited.

Port Otago and its subsidiaries are “Port Companies”,
pursuant to the Port Companies (Act) 1988. This SCI has
been prepared in accordance with this Act. Pursuant to
section 5 of the Act, our principal objective is to operate
as a successful business.

The company reviews and updates its SCl annually, in
consultation with its shareholder. This SCI covers FY23,
FY24 and FY25.

Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025
Page 4
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Our Value Chain

The port’s business model to create value

Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025
Page 6
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Our material issues

Port Otago undertook its third materiality process in April/May 2022, engaging with key
stakeholders after another tough year. With Covid-19 still affecting everyone’s lives and supply chain
disruption now a given, speaking to our stakeholders about what is most important to them remains
high on our agenda. We worked hard this year to tackle disruption and did this in partnership with
stakeholders, our customers in particular. The materiality process provided a valuable opportunity to
hear how they think we are tracking, feedback on what more we can do, and their ideas for the
future.

The materiality process

The materiality process was undertaken independently by Materiality Counts. It looked at the
environmental, social and economic issues facing Port Otago now and into the future. Stakeholders
and the business were asked to:

e Rate the importance of the issues to the value Port Otago creates,
e Rate our performance in managing the issues,
e Select their top three priorities and explain why, and

e Select the top five United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) to which the port can
contribute and explain why.

Top 12 material issues in order of priority

#1 Safety:

Continuing our culture where safety is the number one priority and our team looks out for each
other so that everyone goes home safely. Keeping the focus on improving safety performance of
which our team can be proud.

#2 Relationships:

Building strong collaborative relationships with our customers, shipping lines, road and rail
transport, peers, shareholder and government. Taking the time to understand the challenges faced,
such as global container shortages and staffing impacts on customers’ operations. Communicating
effectively on the day-to-day and working together for a future of sustainable growth for us all.

#3 Growth:

Investing in opportunities to grow our business with a healthy balance sheet and cost efficiency.
Investing in infrastructure and driving the best supply chain logistics in partnership with our shipping
lines, road and rail transport and customers.

#4 Leadership:

Leadership that is transparent, accountable, accessible and visible, with strong governance and
ethics. Ensuring diversity and the right mix of skills to build sustainability into our strategy and
continue to learn and adapt into the future.

#5 Climate change response:

Identifying how to reduce our carbon emissions, both directly and with customers, to play our part
in achieving New Zealand’s goal of net zero carbon emissions by 2050. Working with our customers,
shipping lines, road and rail transport and peers to explore more efficient technology, fuel and
practices.

Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025
Page 8
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#6 Recruiting and retaining the best team for the job:
Training our people for their roles and providing opportunities for them to grow with succession
planning and recognition. Tackling skill shortages as best we can.

#7 Shipping volatility:

Shipping volatility continues with congestion at ports and disruption to shipping volumes and
schedules “the new norm”. Collaborating with other ports, shipping lines and customers to reduce
pressure on the supply chain. Working with our customers to boost container stocks and buffer
storage space, drawing on our property business for warehouse capacity.

#8 Financial returns:

Generating financial returns and balance sheet strength with our diversified bulk, container, cruise
and property business. Continuing our economic resilience in the face of Covid-19 impacts, including
ongoing shipping volatility, container shortages and challenges for our team. Maximising returns for
our shareholder and the people of Otago, alongside contributing to the local, regional and national
economy with jobs, supply chain spend and more.

#9 Culture and wellbeing hauora:

Building a workplace culture where everyone feels they belong. Prioritising mental wellbeing by
listening to our people and valuing their diversity. Providing great facilities to bring our team
together. Encouraging teamwork, and open and honest communication, including with the unions.
Working together for better work life balance through our rosters and equipping our people as best
we can for these times of change.

#10 Innovation:

Improving efficiency in our supply chain by introducing new technology, such as automation and
digitisation, and collating better data for tailored performance reporting. As with our climate change
response, working with our customers, shipping lines, road and rail transport and peers to innovate
and become more efficient.

#11 Cyber security:
Maintaining IT systems that protect cyber security and data privacy. Making cyber security part of
every decision, like safety, and implementing well-rehearsed plans to respond to cyber-attacks.

#12 Wharf capacity and infrastructure:

Increasing storage capacity through buffering storage space, relocation and investment in wharf
infrastructure. Working with customers on their plans for the future, including the need to service
larger ships.

Strategy for a better business

Our Strategy for a better business tackles the material issues and creates value for the ORC, our
stakeholders more broadly and the port. Board meetings are now structured around this strategy,
using what we call “strategy blocks” based on the six capitals. This reminds us to regularly look at
progress towards our goals.

Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025
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Our team

Material issues

Safety
Recruitment and retention of the best team for the job
Culture and wellbeing hauora

Goals Work ons

Develop a culture where workforce safety is the number Delivering wellbeing initiatives
one priority and our team looks out for each other so that

Improving work/life balance for
everyone goes home safely.

our Kaimabhi
Build a workplace where the wellness of our team is
supported through teamwork, accessible leadership, and
open and honest communication. Completing our new
office/museum

Improving our diversity

Safety

This year, our fellow ports in New Zealand have experienced the tragic loss of team members. This
serves as a stark reminder to us all not to become complacent about safety. It will always be our
number one priority. In fact, when one of our peers experiences a significant safety incident, we
devote our Leadership Team and Board meetings to reviewing our own risk management to make
sure we are doing everything we can.

Recruitment and retention of the best team for the job

Through last year’s materiality process, it was clear that recruiting and retaining the best team for
the job was becoming increasingly important and challenging to achieve. This year, stakeholders
ranked this issue as one of our top five material issues. Good people are the key to our future and
attracting talent is increasingly competitive. A key example of this is our IT capability. We are
building a team to work on systems innovation for our entire supply chain and enhance our cyber-
security.

Culture and wellbeing hauora

Port Otago has been here in some form for nearly 150 years, which is a long time for a culture to
become embedded. A concerted effort is required to change the culture to where it needs to be as a
leader in today’s society. We have opened the door to change through staff engagement workshops
this year, hearing firsthand what is working and, more importantly, what needs to change. We are in
the process of feeding back to our team on what we heard and how issues will be tackled.

Diversity in our workforce has emerged as something we need to tackle as a priority. This includes
making it more appealing for women to work at the port by improving rosters and working
conditions

Statement of Corporate Intent to June 2025
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Our wider team
Material issues

Relationships

Goals Work ons
Be a great neighbour by respecting what is important to our Increased customer engagement
community and iwi and enhancing our social licence to

Te Rauone Beach completion
operate.

. . . . Harbour plan engagement
Build stronger relationships with our customers, partners

and suppliers to better understand them, measure progress
and plan for the future.

Stakeholder relationships

Without effective relationships, very little can be achieved, let alone planning for a successful future
together. The port has worked harder than ever this year to address the pain points for our
container customers with ever changing shipping schedules, container shortages and general supply
chain disruption. Last year, through our materiality process, Fonterra highlighted a number of things
to work on. Working together, we have improved container supply and forecasting and removed
container upgrade constraints to meet Fonterra’s demand. With Maersk, we have achieved more
reliable vessel schedules.

Security remains critical for our region and further afield and we are grateful for the hard work done
by Customs. Over the past few years, the port’s relationship with Customs has grown. We continue
to build our understanding of their role as a regulator. From a more internal perspective, our
relationships with the unions are fundamental to day-to-day operations. These relationships need
work and we continue to focus on them and their impact on our culture.

We have managed things as best we can to protect our team, the community, customers, partners
and suppliers from Covid at the port. There has also been a focus on wellbeing throughout the
pandemic and we have seen increased usage of our Employee Assistance Programme (EAP).

The port takes pride in supporting projects that mean a lot to our community. At Te Rauone, the
beach is finally taking shape and we have something exciting planned for the younger members of
our community. Autumn planting took place at Flagstaff Hill, which is important to prevent
landslides that could threaten public safety, and we helped with the Taieri CCTV. Building our new
office as an integral part of the new maritime museum will bring us even closer to our community.

Planning for the future

While keeping things moving smoothly in the short term is a big task, we also need an eye on the
future. In fact, our stakeholders continue to encourage us to take a lead on supply chain disruption
and planning for the future, as the central link in the supply chain. Shipping line decisions have a
significant impact on everyone’s day-to-day operations, so we must continue to focus on those
relationships. Stakeholders, also increasingly look to the port for the development of a Harbour Plan
and we look forward to working with the ORC on this.

Keeping imports and exports moving across the port is our core business, but we must not forget
other critical relationships. Moving goods on land is also important. We will continue to work closely
with KiwiRail on the changes that lie ahead for them and how we can improve logistics on land
together.
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Our harbour taoka and beyond

Material issues
Climate change response

Goals Work ons

Identify how to reduce our carbon emissions, both directly Setting our science-based
and with our customers, such as harnessing renewable climate change target
energy.

Getting started on a climate
Play our part in achieving New Zealand’s goal of net zero change adaptation plan
carbon emissions by 2050.

Understand and adapt to potential future climate change
impacts on our assets.

Preserve our beautiful harbour and its biodiversity by
listening to our community and iwi, taking care and
monitoring these precious taoka closely.

Stakeholder sentiment on climate change

Our stakeholders told us to act now on climate change and invest in decarbonisation and adaptation
planning to avoid lagging behind. They called for a bigger team with the right capability and some
serious strategic work. It is clear that the Board and Leadership Team need to take the lead on
climate change and communicate to stakeholders on what the port is doing.

Climate change data and initiatives

“You can’t manage what you can’t measure”, so we are improving the completeness of our climate
change data. With this in mind, Toitu audited and verified our carbon emissions data this year. As
protecting the harbour is not only about climate change, we are also getting better at tracking our
performance with data collation through monitoring in other areas, such as biodiversity.

We had a number of small wins with our climate change initiatives, led by the Project Footprint
Team at the port. These included LED lighting, rapid sliding freezer doors to minimise energy loss
and solar panels at Sawyers Bay. We moved to electric vehicles, but are also looking at the potential
to move our straddles and cranes from diesel to electric, developing a Straddle Plan.

Working with our shipping partners

Noise complaints have come down dramatically from 88 in 2019/20 to 18 in 2021/22. Noisy vessels,
such as the Monte Rosa, no longer service the port, and silencers have been fitted on others. We
thank Maersk for their excellent communication on expected noise levels, in particular Rio generator
issues.
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Our know-how and skills

Material issues
Innovation

Cyber-security

Goals Work ons

Improve our efficiency through automation and digitisation, Getting our Learning Management
such as systems for berth management, property System (LMS) platform up and
management and supply chain connectivity. running

Work with our supply chain partners to embrace new and Achieving full cyber security

agile ways of working landside. protection

Explore aligned business diversification to provide a
sustainable future for the port.

Develop a strong platform to train and develop our team.

Establish effective processes to protect the port from cyber-
attacks and respond rapidly.

Innovation

It is an ongoing effort to unravel the legacy of our old IT systems and databases at the port. Like
many organisations, these have evolved over time, often without records of how issues were “fixed”
along the way. That said, this is a long term project. We continue to invest in recruiting a strong
team to tackle our IT challenge, which encompasses innovation for the supply chain and cyber-
security.

While we may just be a port in the South Island of New Zealand, for the exceptional producers of the
region, we are the gateway to the rest of the world. We take this seriously and strive to innovate.
One example is our use of Yardi, an asset management platform used for all lease and facilities
management workflows and record keeping. We are also collaborating with Napier Port on the
Sharewater Harbour Management System, a cloud-based harbour management system that
performs three key functions — berth planning, shipping movement planning and capturing data for
the purposes of billing.

Cyber-security

Whilst New Zealand sits at the end of the supply chain and may therefore not be on the radar for
geopolitical cyber-attack in the same way as other markets, Ransomware remains a real and present
threat. Cyber-attack could impact critical IT, such as safety systems that prevent people from getting
hurt. We have just completed a cyber-review resulting in 13 immediate actions, and 10 medium.
These actions have all been implemented, demonstrating the seriousness with which the port takes
its cyber-security.

Training is also fundamental to becoming an Employer of Choice. This year we implemented Safety
Leadership Training and a new approach to Fire VR Training by engaging the community through the
local fire brigade.
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Our assets

Material issues
Shipping volatility

Wharf capacity and infrastructure

Goals Work ons

Grow the container business by investing in additional Ravensdown and Cross Wharf
storage and depot capability. upgrades

Grow the bulk business by increasing storage capacity and Delivering a great cruise
enhancing shipping flexibility with Victoria Channel experience for our region

improvements. Relocate storage (where it makes sense),
develop wharf replacement options and work with
customers on fit-for-purpose infrastructure to meet future
needs.

Completing our three new
warehouses on time and on
budget

Respond dynamically to shipping volatility with storage and
digital solutions.

Rebuild the cruise business by engaging with the cruise
industry, investing in Pilot accommodation, maintaining
capability and having safe landside practices ready to go.

Continue to build a sustainable property portfolio as a
fundamental part of the port’s financial sustainability.

Shipping volatility

Global shipping remains a tale of disruption and last minute schedule changes. The difference is that
we have all learned to live with it, operating more smoothly with disciplined planning horizons.
Earlier visibility of things that require solving, such as additional storage space and shortfalls in
container supply, has helped. Port Otago hasn’t experienced the congestion affecting some other
ports in New Zealand, helping us to service our customers efficiently.

Achieving the right balance between bulk and container storage and accommodating cruise ships as
they return will always be an operational priority. When we get this right, customers have the wharf
space they need, unaware of the balancing act taking place in the background.

Wharf capacity and infrastructure

Infrastructure development has continued at the port this year with the Crane 3 upgrade finally
progressing after Covid delays. We also developed our own car park, freeing up parking spaces on
local roads. Building our new office has also been a focus. An exciting development with our partners
in the community, this multi-stakeholder project integrates our new office building with a new
Maritime Museum.

When something is built at the port, it could be here for 100 years. Hence the need for a Strategic
Asset Plan that incorporates long term forecasts of likely exports from Otago in the next 10, 20 and
30 years. Implications for land transport, in particular rail, also play a part, as do changing storage
needs, such as cold stores. Climate change impacts now also feature with respect to the produce it
will be possible to grow in Otago in decades to come. With so many moving parts, future planning in
this space definitely presents a challenge worth investing time in.
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Property business

It has been a big year for innovation in our property business, working with IAG, Steel & Tube and NZ
Windows to meet their needs. We are also proud to be using our property know-how to build an
exciting new office for the ORC.

Return of cruise ships

Last but not least, we finally have the green light for cruise ships to return. After a long hard slog
lobbying for this outcome with our partners, Cruise NZ, we look forward to seeing cruise ships
berthed on our wharf again before too long.

Our financial value
Material issues

Growth

Financial returns

Goals Work ons

Provide consistent shareholder dividends with a portfolio Meeting the dividend

that optimises returns, builds resilience and facilitates expectations of our owner

investment in the future. - .
Bringing back cruise revenue as

one of the four pillars of our
business

Growth

Healthy growth is the only way to remain relevant. If any part of our business shrinks, we run the risk
of losing our share of an increasingly competitive market. We need to be the port all the shipping
lines want to visit, the preferred shipping point for exporters and the most desirable cruise
destination. We also have the potential to be the port offering end-to-end supply chain solutions
using our unique property business know-how. We want to invest in this growth and thank the ORC
for facilitating access to funds from the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA).

Financial returns

Our financial returns need to remain strong to provide consistent dividends to the ORC, ultimately
benefitting the people of Otago. Throughout the pandemic, we worked hard to maintain healthy
financial performance for this reason.

With the loss of cruise, one of the four pillars of our business, our reliance on converting
development opportunities in our property business grew. But as a port, we will always rely on cash
flow from moving product across the wharf. Retaining and growing the container part of our
business depends on many things, including customer relationships. These are based on good day-
to-day communications and planning for the future, sufficient wharf capacity and up-to-date
facilities. We make sure our container customers know how important they are to us, as we work
together for improved mutual returns.
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Capital reference Objectives Key performance measures Targets
2023 2024 2025 |
Our Team Health, safety and Critical Risk: Visible Leadership 1000 1000 1000
well-being Conversations
Our Team Health, safety and Total recordable incident <10 <10 <10
well-being frequency rate (per 1 million
hours)

Our Financial Value Financial EBIT $30m $35m $40m
Our Financial Value Financial Shareholders’ funds (Equity) or $700m  $710m $730m
Net Assets *

Our Assets Financial Stay in business capex (SIB) $50m $15m $15m
Our Harbour taoka and Financial Investment in growth $60m S$50m $50m

Beyond
Our Financial Value Financial Return on equity * 2.5% 3.0% 3.5%
Our Financial Value Financial Equity Ratio* Between 70%-85%
Our Financial Value Financial Interest cover ratio 6 6 6
Our Financial Value Financial Dividend ** $14m $15m $16m
Capital reference Objectives Key performance measures Targets
2023 2024 2025
Our Harbour taoka and Environmental Number of harbour spills caused 0 0 0
Beyond by Port Otago
Our Know-How and Skills Environmental Percentage of resource consent 100% 100% 100%
compliance monitoring events
achieving full compliance
Our Harbour taoka and Compliance with The requirements of the PHSC Yes Yes Yes
Beyond Port & Harbour continue to be met
Safety Code (PHSC)
Our Know-How and Skills Compliance with Risk assessments of new tasks or Yes Yes Yes
Port & Harbour reviews post incident completed
Safety Code (PHSC)

*Excludes future unrealised fair value movements of investment properties and hedging interest rate
swaps.

** Based on the intention to pay dividends within the range of 50-70% of the group’s normalised
operating surplus after tax.

Financial performance Definition

measure

EBIT Earnings before interest, taxation, realised and unrealised investment property gains
Return on equity Profit divided by average shareholder’s equity

Equity ratio The percentage that equity represents of total assets within the target range between

70% and 85%

Interest cover ratio The number of times interest is covered by the profit before tax, interest, unrealised
fair value movements and unrealised impairment charges.
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Governance and leadership
The board

Port Otago’s shareholder appoints the directors to govern and direct the company’s activities. The
board is the overall and final body responsible for the proper direction and control of the company’s
activities and decision making. The board’s responsibilities include the overall objectives, strategy,
stewardship, performance and reporting of the company.

Statement of corporate intent (SCI)

The SCl is prepared based on the requirements within the Port Companies Act 1988. The board
submits a draft SCI to the company’s shareholder after due consultation with the shareholder and,
after considering its comments, the board approves the final SCI and delivers it to the shareholder.

Board operation
The Port Otago board’s operation is subject to the company’s constitution and board charter, which
sets out how the board and directors shall undertake their responsibilities.

The board chair leads the board and its relationship with the shareholder and other major
stakeholders. The chair maintains a close professional relationship with the company’s CE and,
through the CE, the leadership team (LT).

New directors undertake an induction process to familiarise them with matters related to the
company.

Conflicts of interest policy
These documents require all directors and employees to:

e Act with integrity, honesty, transparency, openness and in good faith

e Comply with the law, apply good judgment and proactively identify, disclose and manage
conflicts of interest

e Promptly disclose or report any significant potential or perceived conflict or wrongdoing.

The company maintains an Interests Register that is reviewed at the start of every scheduled board
meeting.

Policies
The board reviews the company’s key policies at regular intervals. Our Integrated Sustainability
Policy is presented for the first time in this SCl on page 5

Board performance and review
The board regularly reviews its performance and the performance of the CE. The reviews aim to
identify opportunities and set plans for performance development and improvement.

Board meetings and committees

The board meets approximately 11 times per year. Additional meetings are convened as and when
required. The board’s annual work programme is set by the board before the start of each financial
year. The board receives formal agenda papers and regular reports, generally a week in advance of
meetings. Senior managers are regularly involved in board discussions. Directors also have other
opportunities to obtain information and may seek independent expert advice.
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The board delegates some responsibilities and tasks to board committees, but the board retains the
ultimate responsibility and accountability for any committee’s actions or inactions. Subject to any
conflict issues, all directors receive agenda papers for committee meetings and all directors may
attend committee meetings.

The board’s three standing committees are:

e Audit and Risk Committee — which liaises with the company’s independent external auditor, and
reviews the quality and reliability of internal controls and financial and regulatory information
used by and issued by the board.

e Health and Safety Committee — which assists the board in discharging its responsibilities with
respect to health, safety and well-being.

e Remuneration Committee — which reviews the company’s remuneration policies and practices,
and reviews and sets the remuneration of the company’s CE and LT.

Liability insurance and indemnity

Port Otago arranges comprehensive liability insurance policies for the company, directors and

officers within the limits and requirements set out in the Companies Act 1993 and the company’s

constitution. The company also indemnifies directors and employees within the limits and
requirements set out in the Act.

Legislative compliance

The board receives regular updates and representations from management on legislative
compliance. Areas of relevant law include industry-specific regulation, health and safety, corporate,
taxation, financial reporting, commercial, environmental, human resources and privacy.

Auditor

Ernst & Young, on behalf of the Auditor-General, is auditor of the company.

Our compliance with relevant legislation
Port Otago will continue its legislative compliance programmes and aim to ensure we meet our
obligations under relevant legislation and regulations.

Reporting to our shareholders

Port Otago submits its draft SCI to its shareholder for consultation annually, as required under the
Port Companies Act 1988. Where appropriate, we will submit a revised SCI to our shareholder. (See
appendices for performance targets.)

We will submit an annual report to our shareholder. This annual report will include:

e Audited financial statements
e Performance relative to the targets set in this SCI
e Key issues and progress with sustainability

e Otherinformation to enable an informed assessment of the group's performance and financial
position.

Port Otago values shareholder communication facilitated by the Port Liaison Committee which
enables periodic interchange with our shareholder
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We will also submit an interim report to our shareholder. This report will contain unaudited
information similar in content to our annual report and will comply with financial reporting standard
NZ IAS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting.

Port Otago’s accounting policies comply with applicable NZ IFRS standards and interpretations. We
have applied the same accounting policies when preparing the SCI’s financial forecasts, as for our
audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022. Our actual accounting policies during
the three-year period of this SCI may change as a result of changes to NZ IFRS standards and
interpretations.

No surprises policy
The company will endeavour to inform our shareholder prior to any significant decision being made
public and will engage via the Port Liaison Group as required.

The commercial value of our shareholder’s investment

Port Otago estimates the commercial value of its shareholder’s investment in the group is at least
that which is stated as shareholder’s equity in our audited financial statements. This is reassessed
annually, alongside our audited financial statements.

Activities subject to compensation
The company will provide the following services for the Otago Regional Council, for which Port
Otago expects to be remunerated or reimbursed by the council:

e Assistance in matters of good navigation and safety on Otago Harbour.
e Provision of such services as may be requested by the Regional Council.
e Construction of a new office.
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8.3. Consent Fees Support - Policy Review

Prepared for: Council

Report No. REG2206

Activity: Regulatory: Consents and Compliance

Author: Joanna Gilroy, Manager Consents

Endorsed by: Richard Saunders, General Manager Regulatory and Communications
Date: 28 September 2022

PURPOSE

[11  The purpose of this paper it to seek approval for an updated Financial Support for
Resource Consent Processing Fees — Environmental Enhancement Projects Policy.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

[2] Changes were proposed to the Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees —
Environmental Enhancement Projects Policy (the Policy). These changes were adopted
by the Regulatory Committee at the meeting on 15 September 2022.

[31 The Policy is now being presented to full Council for approval in accordance with the
appropriate delegation.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Council:

1) Notes this report.

2) Approves the updates to the Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees —
Environmental Enhancement Projects Policy.

DISCUSSION
(4] Council originally approved the Policy in June 2021. Following a review, changes were
recommended to ensure the policy best met the outcomes sought by Council.

[5]1 The Regulatory Committee adopted the updated Policy at a meeting on 15 September
2022.

[6] Due to the delegations set out in the register it is necessary to bring this paper to full
Council for approval.

[71  The paper to the regulatory committee is included as Attachment 1. The updated policy
for approval is included as Attachment 2.

OPTIONS
(8] Option 1 (Recommended option): Approve the updated policy.

[9] Option 2: Do not approve the updated policy.
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[10] The advantages and disadvantages are set out in the paper to the Regulatory Committee
which is included as Attachment 1.

CONSIDERATIONS
Strategic Framework and Policy Considerations
[11] The recommended changes to the policy are consistent with the strategic framework.

Financial Considerations
[12] Budget for fees support is included in the annual plan budget

Significance and Engagement
[13] This decision is not considered significant when reviewed against He Mahi Rau Rika.

Legislative and Risk Considerations
[14] There are no legislative or risk considerations associated with this decision.

Climate Change Considerations
[15] There are no climate change considerations associated with this decision.

Communications Considerations
[16] The changes to this fund will be communicated through a media release, updates to key
stakeholders and catchment groups and on the ORC website.

NEXT STEPS
[17] Subject to approval by Council staff will implement the communications plan as set out
in paragraph 15.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Review of Consent Fee Support Policy [8.3.1 - 15 pages]
2. Financial Support for Resource Consent Fees Draft Policy for Approval [8.3.2 - 5 pages]
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7.1. Review of Consent Fee Support Policy

Prepared for: Regulatory Committee

Report No. REG2204

Activity: Regulatory: Consents and Compliance

Author: Joanna Gilroy, Manager Consents

Endorsed by: Richard Saunders, General Manager Regulatory and Communications
Date: 15 September 2022

PURPOSE

[1] The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Council on the newly established
Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees — Environmental Enhancement
Projects Policy (the Policy), and make recommendations to update the Policy.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

[21  Council approved a new Policy and associated fund to provide financial support for
projects which have an environmental benefit during Long Term Plan Considerations in
2021. Staff were requested to report back to Council at the end of the 2021/2022 year.

31 A total of three applications for fees support were received during the 21/22 year with
three being approved. The total amount of financial support allocations from the fund
has been $13,342.

[41  Staff have undertaken a review of the Policy and are recommending two changes. These
changes would ensure that more projects can receive the benefits of this funding and
that ongoing compliance costs can be covered subject to full compliance being
maintained.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Committee:

1) Notes this report.

2) Adopts the recommended changes to the Resource Consent Fees Support Policy being:
a. An amendment that allows individuals to access the fund provided they meet all other
criterial and there is no commercial advantage obtained from the project.
b. An amendment to enable projects to claim for ongoing compliance costs provided the
consent maintains a fully compliant audit grade.

3) Notes that the adopted Policy changes will be referred to full Council for final approval.

4) Requests that staff undertake a further assessment of the fund and report back to Council
at the end of the 2022/2023 year.

Regulatory Committee 2022.09.15
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BACKGROUND

[5] During LTP deliberations in 2021 staff were requested to develop a policy for assisting
with resource consent costs for environmental enhancement projects. A budget of
$50,000 was included in the budget for this purpose.

(6] At the Council meeting on 23 June 2021 staff presented a draft policy for the
consideration of Council. It was resolved that the Council:

1) Receives this report.

2) Approves the ORC Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees -
Environmental Enhancement Projects Policy — 2021, referred to as Option 1 in the
paper, and its implementation from 1 July 2021

3) Approves an update to the Otago Regional Council Delegations Manual to reflect
the new Policy and delegate under the policy to the General Manager Regulatory
and Communications

4) Notes that staff will report quarterly to the Regulatory Committee on the
implementation of this Policy

5) Requests that staff review the policy at the end of the 2021/2022 year and report
back to Council on any recommended changes

(71 Staff have promoted the new fund and actively encouraged applicants to seek financial
support if they meet the criteria set in the Policy.

DISCUSSION

Summary of applications 2021/2022

[8] During the 2021/2022 year a total of three applications for funding support were
received by the Consents team. No applications were declined.

[9] Of those approved a total of $13,342 was allocated to resource consent fees.

[10] Attachment 1 lists all applications received for funding support along with the outcome
and where applicable the amount of financial support received.

Review of Policy

[11] Staff have caried out an assessment of the existing policy. While for the most part it is
the opinion of staff that the policy responds to the original intent of Councillors there
are opportunities to broaden the scope of the policy which could provide support to
additional projects.

[12] Staff are recommending two changes to the policy. A copy of the existing policy with
track changes in included as Attachment 2. A copy of the proposed new policy without
track changes is included as Attachment 3.

[13] The first change will make it possible for an individual undertaking a project to access
support from the fund. This change recognises that some projects consistent with the
intent of the fund are undertaken by individual landowners rather than catchment or
community groups. The key criteria relating to commercial gain will still apply to these
applications from individuals.
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[14] The second change will provide for compliance and administration costs associated with
the granted consent to be covered by the fund subject to the applicant maintaining an
audit grade of full compliance. This change ensures that all funds can be directed to
further environmental work rather than covering ongoing costs associated with the
granted resource consent. The criteria included in the proposed changes require the
consent holder to maintain an audit grade of full compliance in order to ensure there
are no adverse effects from the project and that any reporting requirements are
fulfilled.

OPTIONS
[15] There are three options available to Council.

[16] Option 1 — Recommended Option. The Committee endorses the two recommended
changes to the policy.

Advantages
e More non-commercial environmental enhancement projects will qualify for funding
support.

e ORC will be seen actively supporting non-commercial projects which deliver
environmental enhancement for the region

e The recommended changes to the policy will ensure that more funding can be
diverted to on the ground actions as opposed to covering the costs of regulatory
activity associated with projects.

Disadvantages
e The inclusion of compliance fees in the scope of the policy may create some pressure
on the fund in future years.

[17] Option 2 — The Committee recommends further changes and endorses the Policy.
e Depending on the nature of the additional changes this option is considered to have
similar advantages and disadvantages to option 1.

[18] Option 3 — The Committee recommends no changes to the Policy

Advantages
e There is unlikely to be pressure on the fund in future years.

Disadvantages

e Some non-commercial environmental enhancement projects will fail to meet the
criteria for funding support.

e ORC may be seen to be missing an opportunity to support additional environmental
enhancement projects in the region.

e No changes to the policy will mean that project funding will need to be diverted to
meet ongoing regulatory costs rather than being invested into on the ground
actions.

CONSIDERATIONS

Strategic Framework and Policy Considerations

[19] The recommended changes to the policy are consistent with the ORC strategic
framework.
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Financial Considerations
[20]  Funding for this policy is included in the 2022/2023 Annual Plan.

Significance and Engagement Considerations
[21] This decision is not considered significant when reviewed against He Mahi Rau Rika.

Legislative and Risk Considerations
[22] There are no legislative considerations associated with this decision.

[23] Without changes to the existing policy there is a potential risk to ORC’s reputation. The
organisation could be viewed as failing to provide adequate support to projects which
aim to deliver environmental enhancements to the region.

Climate Change Considerations
[24]  Projects which deliver climate change outcomes may qualify for financial support under
the existing and proposed policy.

Communications Considerations

[25] This fund has previously been promoted. Should the changes be approved staff will work
with the Communications and Marketing team to further promote this fund to the
Otago community.

NEXT STEPS
[26] Subject to endorsement from the Committee and final ratification at the next Council
meeting staff will undertake the following actions:
a. Update the policy information on the website.
b. Communicate the updates to the policy both through general channels and directly
with key stakeholder groups.
c. Provide a report to Council at the end of the 2023/2024 year reviewing the policy
and the funding provided to projects.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Applications received for Financial Support [7.1.1 - 1 page]
2. Financial Support for Resource Consent Fees Proposed Track Changes [7.1.2 - 5 pages]

3. Financial Support for Resource Consent Fees Draft Policy for Approval [7.1.3 - 5 pages]
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Attachment 1: List of Consents that have Applied for Financial Support

Number Applicant Project Description Approved / Declined Amount

1 Wanaka Community Community Green Waste and Worm Farm Operation Approved $1,363
Garden Trust

2 Mana Tahuna Environmental improvement projects at a range of sites | Approved $10,000
Charitable Trust in the Lake Hayes Catchment (517,244 total)

3 Otago Peninsula Billboard promoting biodiversity activities on the Otago | Approved $1,979
Biodiversity Trust and Peninsula
Vauxhall Yacht Club

Note: No applications were declined. Discussions at pre-lodgement stage identify suitable projects for financial support before an applicant commits time to
completing an applications
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Otago Regional Council

Financial Support for Resource Consent
Processing Fees - Environmental
Enhancement Projects

| July-2021 October 2022

Document Name: Financial Support for Resource Consent
Processing Fees - Environmental Enhancement Projects
Document Owner: General Manager Regulatory

Authorised By: Council

Implementation Date: 1 July-October 20221

Review Period: Annual
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1. INTRODUCTION

The Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees - Environmental Enhancement Projects
Policy provides guidance to those groups_or individuals wishing to apply for support for a project
which requires a resource consent. The policy confirms the Council’s support for qualifying groups_or
individuals who are delivering environmental enhancement projects which are consistent with the
Council’s Strategic Directions or priorities listed in other statutory documents.

2. PURPOSE

The purpose of the policy is to give clear direction to applicants seeking support for resource consent
processing fees for environmental enhancement projects.

3. SCOPE

The scope of this policy is limited to resource consent processing fees associated with
applications made by qualifying groups or individuals for eligible environmental enhancement
projects and the ongoing compliance and monitoring fees associated with a granted resource
consent. The following costs are not within scope of this policy and will not qualify for support:

work required in response to any actual or potential enforcement action

administrative charges and annual consent monitoring fees asseciated-with-a-granted
eensentwhere an audit grade of full compliance has not been maintained

.
costs associated with retrospective consents

costs associated with physical work or reporting required to address non-compliance associated
with a granted consent

any costs incurred by the applicant in the preparation of the application

costs associated with the Implementation of the activity for which consent is sought.

In addition fees support will not be provided for a publicly notified application or costs associated
with a hearing for a limited notified application.

4. DELEGATIONS

Decisions on applications for fees support will be made by the General Manager Regulatory and
Communications. The final decision is at Council’s discretion and will be considered on a case-
by-case basis. Approval of fees support is entirely at the discretion of Council and is subject to
budget availability. There is no objection or appeal rights.

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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Budget availability and an indication of support for any application will be provided by staff at the
required pre-commencement meeting.

5. CRITERIA

To qualify for fees support the application for consent must be lodged by an ret-fer-prefit-individual
or not for profit organisation such as:

‘ * Landowner
¢ Catchment Groups
* Community groups
« lwi/hapu groups
* Incorporated societies
*  Community trusts
* Resident and ratepayer groups
¢ Educational institutes

and they must be able to demonstrate that their activity will deliver an environmental enhancement
or service. For example, it:

¢ Supports or delivers improved water quality in Otago

* Supports or delivers improved air quality in Otago

*  Supports or delivers improved biodiversity outcomes in Otago

¢ Protects the Otago environment

¢ Enhances the Otago environment

*  Promotes the Otago environment (e.g. does it inform or create an awareness in the
community or educate people?)

The project must also be consistent with Council’s priorities as set in the Strategic Directions, Long
Term Plan or other ORC statutory documents.

Decisions on applications for fees support will be made by the General Manager Regulatory and
Communications, who may approve or decline the application. No further consideration of the
application will be undertaken following issue of the final decision. There are no objection or appeal
rights.

‘ The maximum amount of support offered for consent processing fees on an individual project will be
$10,000. Costs over and above this amount will be payable by the applicant in accordance with ORC’s
Fees and Charges Schedule. Applicants will have the right to object to these additional fees under the
standard provisions of section 357B of the Resource Management Act. There is no cap on support for
the ongoing compliance and monitoring charges provided the consent holder maintains an audit
grade of full compliance.

Consent processing fees support is a first come first served process. If the allocation is exhausted no
further applications will be considered until the following financial year.

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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6. PROCESS

In order to receive consent processing fees support the group or individual applying for the consent
must lodge a written request to the General Manager for processing fees to be supported before the
application for consent is submitted to Council for processing. The relevant application form can be
found on the ORC website. Information required to enable consideration of the application includes:

how it meets the criteria in the policy; and

confirmation that the group is a not for profit group (where applicable) and there is
no commercial gain to be generated by the project; and

confirmation that a pre-application meeting has been or will be held with ORC
consent staff prior to lodgement of the consent application.

Written confirmation of acceptance for support will be provided to the applicant within 10 working
days of the request being received. This confirmation letter should be included with the application
material at the time the consent application is lodged.

7. RELATED DOCUMENTS

- Resource Consent Fees Support Application Form

- Ecofund Funding Checklist and Application form (Note: your project may qualify for
additional support from ORC)

- Revenue and Financing Policy

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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1. INTRODUCTION

The Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees - Environmental Enhancement Projects
Policy provides guidance to those groups or individuals wishing to apply for support for a project
which requires a resource consent. The policy confirms the Council’s support for qualifying groups or
individuals who are delivering environmental enhancement projects which are consistent with the
Council’s Strategic Directions or priorities listed in other statutory documents.

2. PURPOSE

The purpose of the policy is to give clear direction to applicants seeking support for resource consent
processing fees for environmental enhancement projects.

3. SCOPE

The scope of this policy is limited to resource consent processing fees associated with
applications made by qualifying groups or individuals for eligible environmental enhancement
projects and the ongoing compliance and monitoring fees associated with a granted resource
consent. The following costs are not within scope of this policy and will not qualify for support:

work required in response to any actual or potential enforcement action

administrative charges and annual consent monitoring fees where an audit grade of full
compliance has not been maintained

costs associated with retrospective consents

costs associated with physical work or reporting required to address non-compliance associated
with a granted consent

any costs incurred by the applicant in the preparation of the application

costs associated with the Implementation of the activity for which consent is sought.

In addition fees support will not be provided for a publicly notified application or costs associated
with a hearing for a limited notified application.

4. DELEGATIONS

Decisions on applications for fees support will be made by the General Manager Regulatory and
Communications. The final decision is at Council’s discretion and will be considered on a case-
by-case basis. Approval of fees support is entirely at the discretion of Council and is subject to
budget availability. There is no objection or appeal rights.

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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Budget availability and an indication of support for any application will be provided by staff at the
required pre-commencement meeting.

5. CRITERIA

To qualify for fees support the application for consent must be lodged by an individual or not for
profit organisation such as:

¢ Landowner

¢ Catchment Groups

* Community groups

« lwi/hapu groups

* Incorporated societies

*  Community trusts

* Resident and ratepayer groups
¢ Educational institutes

and they must be able to demonstrate that their activity will deliver an environmental enhancement
or service. For example, it:

¢ Supports or delivers improved water quality in Otago

¢ Supports or delivers improved air quality in Otago

* Supports or delivers improved biodiversity outcomes in Otago

¢ Protects the Otago environment

¢ Enhances the Otago environment

¢  Promotes the Otago environment (e.g. does it inform or create an awareness in the
community or educate people?)

The project must also be consistent with Council’s priorities as set in the Strategic Directions, Long
Term Plan or other ORC statutory documents.

Decisions on applications for fees support will be made by the General Manager Regulatory and
Communications, who may approve or decline the application. No further consideration of the
application will be undertaken following issue of the final decision. There are no objection or appeal
rights.

The maximum amount of support offered for consent processing fees on an individual project will be
$10,000. Costs over and above this amount will be payable by the applicant in accordance with ORC’s
Fees and Charges Schedule. Applicants will have the right to object to these additional fees under the
standard provisions of section 357B of the Resource Management Act. There is no cap on support for
the ongoing compliance and monitoring charges provided the consent holder maintains an audit
grade of full compliance.

Consent processing fees support is a first come first served process. If the allocation is exhausted no
further applications will be considered until the following financial year.

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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6. PROCESS

In order to receive consent processing fees support the group or individual applying for the consent
must lodge a written request to the General Manager for processing fees to be supported before the
application for consent is submitted to Council for processing. The relevant application form can be
found on the ORC website. Information required to enable consideration of the application includes:

how it meets the criteria in the policy; and

confirmation that the group is a not for profit group (where applicable) and there is
no commercial gain to be generated by the project; and

confirmation that a pre-application meeting has been or will be held with ORC
consent staff prior to lodgement of the consent application.

Written confirmation of acceptance for support will be provided to the applicant within 10 working
days of the request being received. This confirmation letter should be included with the application
material at the time the consent application is lodged.

7. RELATED DOCUMENTS

- Resource Consent Fees Support Application Form

- Ecofund Funding Checklist and Application form (Note: your project may qualify for
additional support from ORC)

- Revenue and Financing Policy

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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Processing Fees - Environmental Enhancement Projects
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Review Period: Annual
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1. INTRODUCTION

The Financial Support for Resource Consent Processing Fees - Environmental Enhancement Projects
Policy provides guidance to those groups or individuals wishing to apply for support for a project
which requires a resource consent. The policy confirms the Council’s support for qualifying groups or
individuals who are delivering environmental enhancement projects which are consistent with the
Council’s Strategic Directions or priorities listed in other statutory documents.

2. PURPOSE

The purpose of the policy is to give clear direction to applicants seeking support for resource consent
processing fees for environmental enhancement projects.

3. SCOPE

The scope of this policy is limited to resource consent processing fees associated with
applications made by qualifying groups or individuals for eligible environmental enhancement
projects and the ongoing compliance and monitoring fees associated with a granted resource
consent. The following costs are not within scope of this policy and will not qualify for support:

work required in response to any actual or potential enforcement action

administrative charges and annual consent monitoring fees where an audit grade of full
compliance has not been maintained

costs associated with retrospective consents

costs associated with physical work or reporting required to address non-compliance associated
with a granted consent

any costs incurred by the applicant in the preparation of the application

costs associated with the Implementation of the activity for which consent is sought.

In addition fees support will not be provided for a publicly notified application or costs associated
with a hearing for a limited notified application.

4. DELEGATIONS

Decisions on applications for fees support will be made by the General Manager Regulatory and
Communications. The final decision is at Council’s discretion and will be considered on a case-
by-case basis. Approval of fees support is entirely at the discretion of Council and is subject to
budget availability. There is no objection or appeal rights.

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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Budget availability and an indication of support for any application will be provided by staff at the
required pre-commencement meeting.

5. CRITERIA

To qualify for fees support the application for consent must be lodged by an individual or not for
profit organisation such as:

e Landowner

e Catchment Groups

¢ Community groups

* Iwi/hapu groups

* Incorporated societies

¢ Community trusts

* Resident and ratepayer groups
* Educational institutes

and they must be able to demonstrate that their activity will deliver an environmental enhancement
or service. For example, it:

*  Supports or delivers improved water quality in Otago

*  Supports or delivers improved air quality in Otago

* Supports or delivers improved biodiversity outcomes in Otago

*  Protects the Otago environment

* Enhances the Otago environment

* Promotes the Otago environment (e.g. does it inform or create an awareness in the
community or educate people?)

The project must also be consistent with Council’s priorities as set in the Strategic Directions, Long
Term Plan or other ORC statutory documents.

Decisions on applications for fees support will be made by the General Manager Regulatory and
Communications, who may approve or decline the application. No further consideration of the
application will be undertaken following issue of the final decision. There are no objection or appeal
rights.

The maximum amount of support offered for consent processing fees on an individual project will be
$10,000. Costs over and above this amount will be payable by the applicant in accordance with ORC’s
Fees and Charges Schedule. Applicants will have the right to object to these additional fees under the
standard provisions of section 357B of the Resource Management Act. There is no cap on support for
the ongoing compliance and monitoring charges provided the consent holder maintains an audit
grade of full compliance.

Consent processing fees support is a first come first served process. If the allocation is exhausted no
further applications will be considered until the following financial year.

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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6. PROCESS

In order to receive consent processing fees support the group or individual applying for the consent
must lodge a written request to the General Manager for processing fees to be supported before the
application for consent is submitted to Council for processing. The relevant application form can be
found on the ORC website. Information required to enable consideration of the application includes:

how it meets the criteria in the policy; and

confirmation that the group is a not for profit group (where applicable) and there is
no commercial gain to be generated by the project; and

confirmation that a pre-application meeting has been or will be held with ORC
consent staff prior to lodgement of the consent application.

Written confirmation of acceptance for support will be provided to the applicant within 10 working
days of the request being received. This confirmation letter should be included with the application
material at the time the consent application is lodged.

7. RELATED DOCUMENTS

- Resource Consent Fees Support Application Form

- Ecofund Funding Checklist and Application form (Note: your project may qualify for
additional support from ORC)

- Revenue and Financing Policy

Otago Regional Council Performance Management and Disciplinary Policy
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8.4. RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy

Prepared for: Council

Report No. REG2207

Activity: Regulatory: Consents and Compliance

Author: Tami Sargeant, Manager Compliance

Endorsed by: Richard Saunders, General Manager Regulatory and Communications
Date: 28 September 2022

PURPOSE

[1]1  This report seeks the adoption of minor changes to the RMA Compliance and

Enforcement Policy.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

[21  The RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy sets out the approach and principles by
which the Otago Regional Council (ORC) promotes and enforces compliance with the
RMA and provides an outline of how RMA compliance and enforcement is managed. The
policy is intended to ensure a consistent and integrated approach to compliance and

enforcement under the RMA by ORC.

[3] Two minor changes to the Policy are recommended to align with national and sector
best practice. These amendments have been endorsed by the Regulatory Committee
and are now presented to Council for adoption in accordance with the relevant

delegations.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Council:
1) Notes this report.

2) Adopts the recommended changes to the RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy.

BACKGROUND

(4] On 11 March 2021, the Regulatory Committee adopted the RMA Compliance and
Enforcement Policy (the Policy). The Policy sets out the approach and principles by
which the ORC promotes and enforces compliance with the RMA and provides an
outline of how RMA compliance and enforcement is managed. The Policy also ensures a
consistent and integrated approach to compliance and enforcement under the RMA by

ORC.

[5] At the Regulatory Committee on 15 September 2022, staff proposed two changes to the
Policy for the Committee’s endorsement. It was resolved that the Regulatory

Committee:

1) Notes the Quarterly Update Report from the Regulatory Group.
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2) Recommends adoption of the proposed changes to the RMA Compliance and
Enforcement Policy included as Attachment 2.

3) Notes that the RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy will be referred to full
Council for formal adoption.

(6] Staff have updated the revised Policy based on feedback from the Regulatory
Committee.

DISCUSSION

[71  Two minor changes to the Policy to align with the national and sector best practice are

proposed for the Council’s consideration (marked as track changes on Attachment 1).

Conflict of interest

(8]

[9]

The updated Policy proposes a new section on ‘conflict of interest’ and how ORC will
manage actual or perceived conflicts of interest (refer to Section 4, page 4 of the Policy).
This is in line with sector practice for compliance and enforcement activities and
policies.

At the Regulatory Committee on 15 September 2022, Councillors sought clarification
that independent support would always be sought in cases where the ORC might be
involved in activities considered significantly non-compliant. The updated Policy includes
a statement that “where ORC may be involved in potential significant non-compliance,
independent support will be sought”.

Warning

(10]

(11]

The Solicitor General’s Guidelines for the Use of Warnings for public prosecution and
enforcement agencies were updated in December 2021. The Guidelines provide a
framework to ensure agencies are using warnings in the appropriate circumstances and
are meeting the requirements of natural justice when they administer warnings.

To align with the Guidelines, the Policy includes a minor change to clarify the purpose of
formal warnings where a minor breach has occurred and “is issued in lieu of an
infringement” (refer to Section 8, page 10).

OPTIONS

[12]

It is recommended that the RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy as endorsed by
the Regulatory Committee is adopted. The Policy is based on RMA requirements, the
Regional Sector Strategic Compliance Framework, the MfE Best Practice Guidelines, case
law and a review of best sector practice for compliance and enforcement activities and
policies.

CONSIDERATIONS
Strategic Framework and Policy Considerations

[13]

This report considers the adoption of the RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy.

Financial Considerations

(14]

There are no financial considerations.

Significance and Engagement

[15]

There are no implications for significance and engagement.
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Legislative and Risk Considerations

[16] Compliance, monitoring and enforcement activities are a mandatory function under the
RMA, and case law has provided guidance and direction on factors to consider when
considering enforcement action. The RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy is based
on case law guidance, RMA requirements and Solicitor General’s Guidelines.

[17] There are environmental, legal, social and reputational considerations associated with
compliance, monitoring and enforcement activities and these have been considered in
the RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy.

Climate Change Considerations
[18] There are no implications for climate change.

Communications Considerations
[19] If adopted, the updated RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy will be published on
the ORC website.

NEXT STEPS
[20] If adopted, the RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy will be published on the ORC
website.

[21] Standard operating procedures will be updated to reflect the Council direction on non-
compliance and enforcement activities.

ATTACHMENTS
1. ORC RMA Enforcement Policy September 2022 Update [8.4.1 - 11 pages]
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Date approved 11 March 2021

Review date March 2026

Policy owner Manager Compliance
| Version 214.0

1 Introduction

The Otago Regional Council (ORC) is responsible for regulating activities affecting
water, air, land and coastal environments to promote the sustainable management of
our environment. Compliance monitoring and enforcement is a significant tool in
achieving the overarching sustainable management purpose of the Resource
Management Act 1991 (RMA)".

This policy sets out the approach and principles by which the ORC promotes and
enforces compliance with the RMA and provides an outline of how RMA compliance
and enforcement is managed. This policy is intended to ensure a consistent and
integrated approach to compliance and enforcement by ORC.

2 Approach to non-compliance

The ORC has a ‘spectrum’ approach to encouraging positive behaviour change and
ensuring the highest levels of compliance possible.

The ORC'’s approach to ensuring compliance with the RMA is based on ‘4Es model’? of
Engage, Educate, Enable and Enforce:

o Engage — consult with regulated parties, stakeholders and community on matters
that may affect them. This will require maintaining relationships and communication
until final outcomes have been reached. This will facilitate greater understanding of
challenges and constraints, engender support and identify opportunities to work
with others.

o Educate — alert regulated parties to what is required to be compliant and where the
onus lies to be compliant. Education should also be utilised to inform community
and stakeholders about what regulations are in place around them, so that they will
better understand what is compliant and what is not.

e Enable - provide opportunities for regulated parties to be exposed to industry best
practice and regulatory requirements. Link regulated parties with appropriate
industry advisors. Promote examples of best practice.

1 Section 5 of the Resource Management Act 1991

2 The 4Es model is drawn from the CESIG Regional Sector Strategic Compliance Framework 2019-2024

Otago Regional Council RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy Page 2
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o Enforce — when breaches of regulation, or non-compliance, are identified then an
array of enforcement tools and actions are available to bring about positive
behaviour change. Enforcement outcomes should be proportional to individual
circumstances of the breach and culpability of the party.

Non-compliance with the RMA is taken seriously by the ORC. Except in exceptional
circumstances some form of action will be taken in response to non-compliance.

ORC'’s approach and use of enforcement tools and actions depends on the issue,
context and seriousness of the breach as illustrated belows?:

3 Principles of enforcement

Underlying the ORC'’s approach to compliance and enforcement action are the
following principles*.

Transparency - We will provide clear information and explanations to the community,
and those being regulated, about the standards and requirements for compliance. We
will ensure that the community has access to information about the change to
environmental impacts of industry as well as actions taken by us to address
environmental issues and non-compliance.

Consistency of process— Our actions will be consistent with the legislation and within
our powers. Compliance and enforcement outcomes will be consistent and predictable
for similar circumstances. We will ensure that our staff have the necessary skills and
are appropriately trained, and that there are effective systems and policies in place to
support them.

Fair, reasonable and proportional approach — We will apply regulatory interventions
and actions appropriate for the situation. We will use our discretion justifiably and
ensure our decisions are appropriate to the circumstances, and that our interventions

3 Influencing behaviour change is based on the CESIG Regional Sector Strategic Compliance Framework

4 These principles are drawn from the CESIG Regional Sector Strategic Compliance Framework 2019-
2024

Otago Regional Council RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy Page 3
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and actions will be proportionate to the seriousness of the non-compliance and the
risks posed to people and the environment.

Evidence-based and informed — We will use an evidence-based approach to our
decision making. Our decisions will be informed by a range of sources, including sound
science, the regulated parties, information received from other regulators, members of
the community, industry and interest groups.

Collaborative — We will work with and, where possible, share information with other
regulators and stakeholders to ensure the best compliance outcomes for our region.
We will engage with the community, those we regulate and government to explain and
promote environmental requirements and achieve better community and environmental
outcomes.

Lawful, ethical and accountable — We will conduct ourselves lawfully and impartially
and in accordance with these principles and relevant policies and guidance. We will
document and take responsibility for our regulatory decisions and actions. We will
measure and report on our regulatory performance.

Targeted — We will focus on the most important issues and problems to achieve the
best environmental outcomes. We will target our regulatory intervention at poor
performers and illegal activities that pose the greatest risk to the environment. We will
apply the right tool for the right problem at the right time.

Responsive and effective — We will consider all alleged non-compliances to
determine the necessary interventions and action to minimise impacts on the
environment and the community and maximise deterrence. We will respond in an
effective and timely manner in accordance with legislative and organisational
obligations.

4 Conflict of interest

From time to time, ORC may be in a position where an actual or perceived conflict of
interest associated with compliance activity exists. In these situations, it may be
appropriate to request the support of an independent party which may include providing
advice; undertaking any investigation; making recommendations on potential
enforcement action; or reviewing an investigation. This ensures any action is consistent
with the principles of enforcement set out in section 3 of the Policy. In particular, that
compliance and enforcement action is lawful, ethical and accountable.

The decision to request independent support for an investigation is made by the
General Manager Regulatory and Communications following a recommendation from
the Manager Compliance.

Where ORC may be involved in potential significant non-compliance, independent
support will be sought.

Otago Regional Council RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy Page 4
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\ 54 The investigation and enforcement process at a glance

Notification

Potential non-compliance or offending may be detected through:
Compliant received  Monitoring by ORC officer Major incident

\ 4

Initial investigation

Determine facts and extent of issue, gather evidence and attempt to resolve by
education and cooperative process as the preferred approach.

\ 4 \ 4

Issue identified as minor, solution Issue identified as more serious

agreed and implemented.
Investigation

Education and advice provided, and May include site inspection, sampling,
issue resolved. measuring, photographing, expert
advice and interviews

\ 4

Considering principles, enforcement action factors and public interest tests.

\ 4 ¥ \ 4

Enforcement options Enforcement option Enforcement option

Enforcement decision

No further action Prosecution

¥

Enforcement order

¥

Education

Letter of direction

Formal warning

Abatement notice

Infringement notice

Environment court

Considers the
application and issues
order if satisfied that the
order is reauired.

District court

Determines guilt and
imposes sentence, if
guilty.

Otago Regional Council RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy
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65 Gathering information

If a breach, or potential breach, of the RMA occurs then information must be gathered
about how and why the breach occurred. The purpose of an investigation is to establish
the truth of what has occurred and enable informed decisions to be made. The depth
and scope of the investigation will be dependent on the seriousness of the incident.

Investigation activities may include:

- Visiting private property to collect information or potential evidence such as
samples, photographs, measurements, or ecological assessments.

- Talking to people about what they know about the incident. People interviewed
may be witnesses to an incident or potentially liable parties. These
conversations will be recorded in writing or by electronic means.

- For serious matters interviews of potentially liable parties are conducted under
caution to ensure their rights are understood.

When visiting private property it is vital to respect the rights of the lawful owner or
occupier. ORC staff must ensure that all entry to private property is done so lawfully.

The Chief Executive Officer of the ORC has the authority to issue staff with warrants of
authority. A warranted enforcement officer has the ability to enter private property
(excluding dwelling houses) for the purpose of assessing compliance with
environmental regulation. This can be completed without providing prior notice to the
occupier or landowner.

However, there are times when access to property has to be conducted with informed
consent or search warrant. Staff must attend specific training® and be familiar with all of
their statutory obligations before carrying out any enforcement functions.

76 Enforcement decision

The ORC takes a rational and principled approach to regulation. In general, the ORC
advocates a policy of education-first and co-operation towards compliance. However,
the Council recognises that there are times when the use of punitive measures is
necessary.

Enforcement of the RMA can be complex. The Sentencing Act 2002 and the courts
have provided helpful guidelines® as to what factors are appropriate to consider in RMA
cases to determine the seriousness of a breach. It is widely accepted across the
regional sector that these are the appropriate factors to consider in enforcement
decision making.

5 Warranted ORC staff gather information in keeping with best practice detailed in Basic Investigative
Skills for Local Government

6 Machinery Movers Limited v Auckland [1994] 1 NZLR 492 & Selwyn Mews Ltd v Auckland City Council
HC Auckland CRI-2003-404-159
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Factors to consider when considering enforcement action:

e What were, or are, the actual adverse effects on the environment?

o What were, or are, the potential adverse effects on the environment?

o What is the value or sensitivity of the receiving environment or area affected?
o What is the toxicity of discharge?

e Was the breach as a result of deliberate, negligent or careless action?

e What degree of due care was taken and how foreseeable was the incident?

e What efforts have been made to remedy or mitigate the adverse effects?

e What has been the effectiveness of those efforts?

e \Was there any profit or benefit gained by alleged offender(s)?

o s this a repeat non-compliance or has there been previous enforcement action
taken against the alleged offender(s)?

e Was there a failure to act on prior instructions, advice or notice?

o Is there a degree of specific deterrence required in relation to the alleged
offender(s)?

¢ Is there a need for a wider general deterrence required in respect of this activity or
industry?

Not every factor will be relevant every time. On occasion one single factor may be
sufficiently aggravating, or mitigating, that it may influence the ultimate decision. It is
inappropriate to take a matrix or numerical approach to weighing and balancing these
factors. Each case is unique and the individual circumstances need to be considered
on each occasion to achieve a fair and reasonable outcome.

The discretion to take enforcement action, or not, sits solely with those delegated to
make decisions in the regulatory agency’, including:

- The appropriate defendant to pursue;
- The appropriate enforcement tools to use in the circumstances; and

- Withdrawal of an enforcement action that has been commenced.

7 New Zealand Law Commission ‘Prosecution decisions and the discretion to prosecute’
http://www.nzlii.org/nz/other/nzlc/report/R66/R66-5 .html
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The prosecution test:

The Solicitor-General’s Prosecution Guidelines provides direction on what factors
should be considered before a decision to prosecute is made. There are two parts of
the test to be met. The first part of the test is the evidential test and requires a legal
assessment of whether:

- A specific person being responsible for the offending (whether natural or legal).
- The evidence is credible.

- The ORC can produce the evidence before the court and it is likely it will be
admitted by the court.

- The evidence can reasonably be expected to satisfy a court beyond a
reasonable doubt, that the person has committed a criminal offence.

- Whether the defendant can successfully make out a statutory defence based on
the information available to the ORC; which will include any information
supplied by the likely defendant as well as other persons.

- There is any other evidence the ORC should seek out which may support or
detract from the case.

Once it has been established that there is sufficient evidence to provide a reasonable
prospect of conviction, the test for prosecution requires a consideration of whether the
public interest. The Solicitor-General’s Prosecution Guidelines states that broadly the
presumption is that the public interest requires prosecution where there has been a
contravention of the criminal law. A case-by-case assessment is necessary to displace
that presumption.

87 Enforcement options

Part XlI of the RMA includes “formal” enforcement tools that are available to deal with
breaches of the RMA. Informal enforcement tools are also used by the ORC as part of
its enforcement options. It is important to ensure these tools (both formal and informal)
are applied consistently across the myriad of activities and resource use across the
region.

Enforcement tools can be categorised into three general areas.

- Informal actions are focused on providing education and incentive-based
responses to allow the person to become better informed and develop their own
means to improved compliance.

- Directive actions are about looking forward and giving direction and righting
the wrong.

- Punitive actions are about looking back and holding people accountable for
what they have done.

Otago Regional Council RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy Page 8
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Description of action Potential impacts | When this action may be
for the liable appropriate
party
Education and This is a non- Education and other
engagement formal process incentive-based
and as such has interactions are reserved
2 To prevent further no legal for low level offending and
-2 br.e.aches, or to remedy or implication. when dealing with
Q mltlga.te the effects of non- cooperative parties, who
T compllarjce, OR_C can are motivated to do the
E | provide information or right thing but lack the
S gmdange around rules and knowledge or skills
- regqlatlons to.enable necessary to achieve and
part|e§ to achieve maintain compliance.
compliance.
Letter of direction Such a direction is | Letters of direction should
not legally be reserved for dealing with
To prevent further enforceable. cooperative parties, who
br.e.aches, or to remedy or are motivated to follow the
mitigate the effects of non- direction, and where the
com_pllanC(_e, ORC can give breach is of a minor nature,
a written direction for a consistent with a breach
party to take ,Or cease a that would perhaps also
particular action. receive a formal warning.
4 Abatement notice A direction given An abatement notice may
2 L through an be appropriate any time
b An abatement nghcg Isa abategment notice | that fhperepis a riskyof further
4 ifsrdn::flt‘ev(\;r:f:se':;gvs -1t is legally breaches of environmental
5 . - Y enforceable. To regulation or when
.g ORC instructing an breach an remediation of mitigation is
= individual or <.:o.mpany .to. abatement notice | required as a result of non-
cease an activity, prohibit is to commit an compliance.
them from commencing an offence against
activity or requiring them the RMA and Other considerations are
to do something. The make liable parties where no action has been
form, content and scope of open to punitive taken to rectify a situation
an abatement notice are actions. when less formal processes
prescribed in statute. have been used, and/or
where non-compliance is
ongoing.

Otago Regional Council RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy
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Description of action Potential impacts | When this action may be
for the liable appropriate
party
Enforcement order A direction given An application for an
) , through an enforcement order may be
Like an abatement notice, enforcement order | appropriate any time there
a,n enforcement order can is legally is a risk of continuing
dlregt a party. to take enforceable. breaches of environmental
2 partlculgr a.ctlon. However, regulation, or remediation
S an application for an To breach an or mitigation is required as
3 enforcement order must fenforcemerjt order |  osult of non-compliance.
o be made to the is to commit an
2 Environment Court but can | offence against Other considerations are
§ also be made during the the RMA and for a repeat offence where
a course of an RMA make liable parties | effects are significant and
prosecution, or open to punitive where no progress has
sentencing. actions. been made when using
other enforcement tools.
Formal warning No further action A formal warning may be
o will be taken in given when an
A formal warning is respect of that administrative, minor or
documented by way of a breach. technical breach has
!etter tp a culpable party occurred_and is issued in
2 | offonce against the RMA | warning form part | 2.0 21 inffingemen; and
8 has beengcommitted and |ofa hisgtory of nrz)n- the enyironment_al effect or
g that they are liable , compliance and potential effect, is minor or
g y ’ . P . trivial in nature; and the
2 will be considered subject does not have a
g ::](t:r:;;tzrsffg;r_e history of non-compliance;
o ) and the matter is one which
compliance. can be quickly and simply
put right; and a written
warning would be
appropriate in the
circumstances.
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Description of action

Potential impacts
for the liable

party

When this action may be
appropriate

Infringement notice

An infringement notice is a
written notice which
requires the payment of a
fee. The amount of the fee
Is set in law. Depending
on the breach the fine will
be between $300 and
$1000.

No further action
will be taken in
respect of that
breach. However,
the infringement
notice forms part
of the history of
non-compliance
and will be
considered if there
are future
incidents of non-
compliance.

An infringement notice may
be issued when:

There is prima facie (on the
face of it) evidence of a
legislative breach; and a
one-off or isolated
legislative breach has
occurred which is of minor
impact and which can be
remedied easily; and where
an infringement notice is
considered to be a
sufficient deterrent.

Punitive actions

Prosecution

A prosecution is a process
taken through the criminal
courts to establish guilt or
innocence and, if
appropriate, the court will
impose sanctions.

RMA matters are heard by
a District Court Judge with
an Environment Court
warrant.

All criminal evidential rules
and standards must be
met In a RMA prosecution.

A successful
prosecution will
generally result in
a conviction, a
penalty imposed
and consideration
to costs of the
Investigation.

A prosecution
forms part of the
history of non-
compliance and
will be considered
if there are future
incidents of non-
compliance.

A prosecution may be
considered appropriate
when the factors listed in
section 6 indicate that the
matter is sufficiently serious
to warrant the intervention
of the criminal law.

Otago Regional Council RMA Compliance and Enforcement Policy Page 11
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8.5. Approve Minor Amendment to Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2022

Prepared for: Council
Report No. OPS2231
Activity: Governance Report

Michelle Mifflin (Manager Engineering)

Author:
uthor Alison Weaver (Team Leader Commercial and Regulatory)
Endorsed by: Gavin Palmer, General Manager Operations
Date: 28 September 2022
PURPOSE

(1]

Minor changes are required to the legend on some of the maps contained in the
schedules to the Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2022 (“Bylaw”). In accordance
with the Local Government Act 2002 (“LGA”), approval is sought from Otago Regional
Council (“Council”) for these minor changes or correction of errors.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

(2]

The Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2022 was adopted by Council on 29 June
2022 following the review of Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2012 (“2012
Bylaw”). Following this adoption, it was established that some of the references in the
legends to the maps were not clearly referenced to the flood protection works provided
for in the Bylaw.

[3] In accordance with section 156 of the LGA, minor changes may be made to the Bylaw or
the correction of errors in the Bylaw may occur by resolution of Council provided the
changes do not affect an existing right, interest, title, immunity or duty of any person to
whom the Bylaw applies or an existing status or capacity of any person to whom the
Bylaw applies. The changes proposed are minor and create certainty for interpretation
of the effects of the Bylaw.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council:

1) Notes this report.

2) Approves the minor changes to the Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2022 by
adopting the maps in Attachments 3 and 4 to replace the current maps shown in
Attachments 1 and 2.

3) Approves the public notification of the minor changes to the Flood Protection

Management Bylaw 2022.

1

Bylaw Review Adoption, Report ENG2202, Report to 29 June 2022 meeting of Otago

Regional Council.
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BACKGROUND

[4]  The Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2022 was adopted by Council on 29 June
20222 and it came into effect on 1 September 2022.

[5] It has since become apparent that some of the descriptions in the legend to some of the
maps did not precisely reflect the title within those maps or the descriptions provided
for in the Bylaw. There are also two cases where the title of the map records the wider
location of the area rather than the specific flood protections works.

[6] Under section 156(2) of the LGA, Council may make minor changes to, or correct errors
in, a bylaw provided the changes do not affect the existing position of a person to whom

the Bylaw applies3.

DISCUSSION

(71 Attachments 1 and 2 to this paper contains the maps currently contained in the Bylaw as
the Second and Third Schedule. Attachments 3 and 4 to this paper contains the
proposed amended Second and Third Schedule. The changes are described below.

Second Schedule
First sheet Floodbanks Defence Against
Water

Second sheet Riverside Access Track Defence Against | Brown Line and purple
Henley Floodbank Water line changed to red
Floodbanks

Third Sheet Riverside Access Track Defence Against | Brown line changed to
Floodbanks Water red

Fourth sheet Floodbanks Defence Against

2 |bid

3 156 Consultation requirements when making, amending, or revoking bylaws made under this Act
(1) When making a bylaw under this Act or amending or revoking a bylaw made under this Act, a
local authority must—
(a) use the special consultative procedure (as modified by section 86) if—
(i) the bylaw concerns a matter identified in the local authority’s policy under section 76AA as
being of significant interest to the public; or
(ii) the local authority considers that there is, or is likely to be, a significant impact on the public
due to the proposed bylaw or changes to, or revocation of, the bylaw; and
(b) in any case in which paragraph (a) does not apply, consult in a manner that gives effect to the
requirements of section 82.
(2) Despite subsection (1), a local authority may, by resolution publicly notified,—
(a) make minor changes to, or correct errors in, a bylaw, but only if the changes or corrections do
not affect—
(i) an existing right, interest, title, immunity, or duty of any person to whom the bylaw applies; or
(ii) an existing status or capacity of any person to whom the bylaw applies:
(b) convert an imperial weight or measure specified in a bylaw into its metric equivalent or near
metric equivalent.
(Italics added)
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Water
Fifth Sheet Floodbanks Defence Against
Water
Sixth Sheet Floodbanks Defence Against
Water
Seventh Sheet Floodbanks Defence Against
Water
Eighth Sheet Flood Banks Defence Against
Water
Ninth Sheet Henley Floodbank Defence Against | Purple line changed to
Floodbanks Water red
Tenth Sheet Leith Linsday Defence | Defence Against
Against Water Water
Eleventh Sheet | Floodbanks Defence Against
Water
Twelfth Sheet Albert Town Buttress Defence Against
Water
Third Schedule
First Sheet Lower Clutha Floodway Floodway
Second Sheet Riverside Road Floodway Floodway
Third Sheet Gordon Road Floodway Floodway
Fourth Sheet Taieri River Floodway Floodway
Otokia Floodway
Miller Road Floodway
Fifth Sheet and | Taieri River Floodway Floodway
Sixth Sheet
Seventh Sheet Miller Road Floodway Floodway
Eighth Sheet Otokia Floodway Floodway
Ninth Sheet Hendersons and Waikoura | Floodway
Creek Floodway
Tenth Sheet Hilderthorpe Floodway Floodway
Third Schedule
Second Sheet Lower Taieri (Upper Pond) | Riverside Road
Floodway
Third Sheet East Taieri Silver Stream Gordon Road
Floodway

[8] As required by s156 of the LGA to enable the minor changes?, the proposed changes and
corrections do not affect the existing rights or interests or status or capacity of any
person as the changes only alter the description of the flood protection works in the
Bylaw maps.

[9] The proposed changes assist by reducing the possibility of disputes regarding the
definition of flood protection works as, with this change, the legend on the maps will

4 ibid
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reflect the description of flood protection works in the Bylaw. In two cases, the titles
will reflect the usual description of the flood protection works in those maps.

OPTIONS

[10] One option is to not make the proposed changes and corrections to the Bylaw. The
possible consequence is potential disputes over interpretation of the Bylaw in the
future. The flood protection works could be at risk if ORC is unable to enforce Bylaw
provisions.

[11] The recommended option is to approve the proposed changes and corrections to the
Bylaw. This will mean that the words in the legend on the maps matches the words used
for flood protection works in the body of the Bylaw.

CONSIDERATIONS

Strategic Framework and Policy Considerations

[12] There are no strategic framework and policy considerations associated with receiving
this report.

[13]  With the minor changes and corrections to the Bylaw in place, Council can be confident
that strategies such as the approach to asset renewal or improved environmental
performance can continue to occur with certainty.

Financial Considerations
[14] There are no financial considerations for ORC associated with receiving this report.

[15] If the changes and corrections are not approved, additional expense could arise if a
dispute arose regarding the interpretation of the Bylaw.

Significance and Engagement

[16] Consultative procedures under the LGA occurred during the review of the Bylaw.
Pursuant to s156 of the LGA, minor amendments may be made if it does not affect the
existing position of people. No consultation is required under the LGA.

[17] These changes and corrections do not trigger the need for consultation under the
Significance and Engagement Policy or the LGA.

Legislative and Risk Considerations
[18] This proposed minor change and correction to the Bylaw is in accordance with the LGA.
Public notice of the changes will occur if the amendment is approved by Council.

[19] If the minor changes and corrections are not approved by Council, the Bylaw will
continue to operate but ORC may be at risk of potential disputes arising regarding
interpretation of the Bylaw and this may lead to difficulties in enforcement which could
place flood protection works at risk.

Climate Change Considerations
[20] The assets subject to the Bylaw and proposed minor changes and corrections assist in
adaptation to the effects of future climate change.
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Communications Considerations
[21] If the proposed changes and corrections are approved, the public will be notified of the
amendment by newspaper notice and notice on the ORC website.

[22] Stakeholders and submitters on the Bylaw review will be notified of the changes by

email.
NEXT STEPS
[23] If Council resolves to approve the minor changes and corrections to the Bylaw:
a. The electronic version of the Bylaw will be updated and published.
b. An updated paper version of the Bylaw will be published.
C. Notice of the amendment will be published in the regional newspaper.
d. Notice of the amendment will be emailed to stakeholders and submitters.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Second Schedule original 29 June 2022 [8.5.1 - 12 pages]
2 Third Schedule original 29 June 2022 [8.5.2 - 11 pages]
3. Second Schedule revised for approval [8.5.3 - 12 pages]
4 Third Schedule revised for approval [8.5.4 - 11 pages]
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8.6. Approve Amendments to Waitaki Designation Notice of Requirements

Prepared for: Council
Report No. 0OPS2233
Activity: Governance Report
Author: M.ichelle Mifflin, Manager Engineering'
Alison Weaver, Team Leader Commercial and Regulatory
Endorsed by: Gavin Palmer, General Manager Operations
Date: 28 September 2022
PURPOSE

(1

To obtain Council approval of the amended Notice of Requirement (“NoR”) following
public consultation and for the lodgement of the application for designations with the
Waitaki District Council (“WDC”) as part of WDC's Proposed District Plan (“the Plan”)
review. This is to provide for designations of land on which Otago Regional Council
(“ORC”) flood protection works and assets are situated.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
[2] At the Council meeting on 25 May 2022, Council approved?:
a. The recommendation to request new designations;
b. The NoR for public consultation; and
C. Proceeding with public consultation on the proposed NoR.
[3] Council staff have now undertaken public consultation. A Consultation Outcomes report
is attached (Attachment 1).
[4] The NoR has been updated to reflect public consultation and is attached (Attachment 2).
[5] Council approval is now sought for lodging the NoR with WDC to be included in the WDC
plan review.
RECOMMENDATION

That the Council:

1) Notes this report.

2) Notes the Consultation Outcomes report (Attachment 1).

3) Approves the amended Notice of Requirement and the lodgement of this with Waitaki
District Council for inclusion in its Proposed District Plan.

1 Waitaki Designation Notice of Requirements, Report OPS2202, Report to 25 May 2022 meeting of
Otago Regional Council.
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BACKGROUND

(6]

(71

(8]

(9]

As part of its district plan review the WDC has, as required under the Resource
Management Act 1991 (“RMA”), invited ORC to formally confirm if it wishes to make any
modifications to designations listed in the current district plan.

Council staff recommended seeking new designations for the land on which structures
are situated. These are structures that are owned and managed by ORC within the
Waitaki District. Council adopted this recommendationZ.

The structures are identified in the NoR (unchanged from the NoR presented to Council
on 25 May 2022) and provide flood protection for the local community and lifeline
utilities which pass through the area.

The structures and the location of the structures are unchanged from that provided at
the 25 May 2022 Council meeting and recorded in the table below. For ease the mapped
locations are contained in Attachment 3.

Table 1: Summary of Proposed Designations

Site/Asset Specific Asset

Hilderthorpe Floodway Channels conveying flood water from surrounding farmland

and tributaries of the Waitaki River. As shown on page 6 of
Attachment 3.

Hendersons and Waikoura Channels conveying flood water from surrounding farmland
Creek Floodways and tributaries of the Waitaki River. As shown on page 5 of
Attachment 3.
Groynes adjacent to the Embankments built out from a riverbank to help control
Waitaki Riverbed erosion. As shown on pages 2-4 of Attachment 3.
Cross banks adjacent to the Banks which have built to guide water away from entering low
Waitaki Riverbed lying land. As shown on pages 2-4 of Attachment 3
[10] Council staff have undertaken public consultation as detailed in the Consultation
Outcomes (Attachment 1) and now seek Council approval of the NoR as amended to
reflect the consultation (Attachment 2).
[11]  If Council approves the NoR, the NoR will be lodged with WDC. The NoR will then form
part of the WDC plan review process.
DISCUSSION
[12] Consultation consisted of:
a. A mail out to all landowners identified as having an ORC flood protection asset on
their property.
b. Email to individual stakeholders inviting feedback and offering to meet.
C. A drop in event in Oamaru (no attendees).
[13] Stakeholder comments are recorded in Attachment 1. Engagement has occurred with
the following:
a. Waitaki District Council Roading.
2 |bid
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Aukaha Limited (ongoing).

Waka Kotahi New Zealand
KiwiRail Limited.

A Richardson.
Transpower Limited.
Environment Canterbury.

R i

Lower Waitaki Irrigation Company Limited.

Transport Agency.

Department of Conservation.

[14] All proposed changes to the NoR have been ‘tracked’ in the NoR (Attachment 2). Key

changes are summarised below:

Summary of changes to NoR

Page # Description

Comment

17, 18, 20 Statutory
assessment; Part 2 of

Comment on need for collaboration with Te Rinanga o
Moeraki

RMA
20-25 National Policy Te Mana o Te Wai assessment
statements
38, 39 Regional Policy Comment on consultation with mana whenua. Reference
Statement/Proposed | to Te Mana o Te Wai assessment.
Regional Policy
Statement
53 Other designations Comment on discussions with Waka Kotahi, KiwiRail,
Transpower.
53 Draft Waitaki District | New addition to NoR following release of draft plan on 1
Plan June 2022. Assessment of impact of draft provisions on
ORC flood protection works.
68 Waitaki lwi Inclusion of comments on the 2019 plan in addition to the
Management Plan 2005 plan. The 2019 plan relates to mpost of the assets
2019 included within the NoR, and the 2005 plan relates only
to the Hilderthorpe Floodway.
72 Kai Tahu Ki Otago Reference to Hilderthorpe Floodway.

Natural Resource
Management Plan
2005

70 Assessment of
environmental
effects

Comment on consultation with providers of
infrastructure.

Proposed
Conditions

Addition of provision for engagement with mana whenua
on Outline Plans of Work, groynes, floodways.

Additional provisions under Earthworks.

Additional provision under Transportation of Material.
Amendment to NZS reference under Spraying.

New provisions for Fuel and Hazardous Materials.
Amended provision of Accidental Discovery Protocol.

Appendix E

Consultation Outcomes report added
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[15] As referred to in the Consultation Outcomes report, ORC will continue engagement with
Aukaha Limited. The community and stakeholders will have the opportunity to submit
on the Draft Waitaki District Plan as part of the WDC's plan review process.

OPTIONS
[16] The first option is to lodge the NoR as attached with Waitaki District Council.

This is the next step in the process to seek the designations and additional protection of
ORC flood protection works in the Waitaki region.

[17]  An alternative option is to not proceed with lodging the NoR.

This does not prevent ORC seeking designations in the future, but this could be a more
costly option as it will occur outside of the plan review process currently being
undertaken by Waitaki District Council. Flood protection works will retain protection as
they are subject to the Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2022, but they will not
have the protection or be given the awareness provided by designation under the
Waitaki District Council plan.

[18] Itis recommended that the first option is approved by Council as there is a cost saving in
undertaking the designation process as part of the WDC plan review and the designation
will ensure that the flood protection works are afforded protection through the District
Council Plan which in turn creates an increased awareness of those works.

CONSIDERATIONS

Strategic Framework and Policy Considerations

[19] The effective delivery of flood protection and land drainage infrastructure contributes to
community resilience to natural hazards, which is a key component to ORC’s vision for
Otago. The application of designations will uphold ORC’s strategic commitments of:

a. Protecting strategic infrastructure,

b Evidence-based and timely decision making,

C. Effective community engagement (through consultation), and

d Partnering with mana whenua and making Matauranga Kai Tahu an integral part

of decision-making.

[20] The designation process aligns with the Infrastructure Strategy, which was approved by
Council on 1 March 2021, in that it provides protection of the integrity and operation of
Council flood protection and land drainage infrastructure which provides certainty for
actions contemplated by the Strategy.

[21] With the designation in place, Council can be confident that strategies such as the
approach to asset renewal or improved environmental performance can occur with
certainty.

[22] Seeking designation is consistent with prior decisions regarding flood protection and
land drainage infrastructure. The approach taken for hard structures is consistent with
the policy direction in the Partially Operative Regional Policy Statement (2019) and the
Notified Proposed Regional Policy Statement (2021). Council staff have been engaging
with WDC staff in preparation of the Waitaki District Plan to ensure consistency with the
Regional Policy Statement.
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Financial Considerations

[23]

[24]

[25]

Persons wishing to undertake activity on land subject to a designation may need to seek
approval from ORC. Bylaw authority is already required for areas where designations are
proposed. Accordingly, the designation of these assets will not result in any greater
restriction of those activities that may be undertaken on the land than already exists,
other than requiring the approval of the ORC in some cases (further discussed at
paragraphs 28-30 below). Designation applications are processed alongside bylaw
authority applications and a fee is payable by the applicant. One assessment is
completed, and one fee is payable for bylaw authority and designation approval.
Coupled with the low response from the owners of properties affected by the NoR
during the consultation undertaken, it is considered unlikely that the ORC will be
required to purchase properties impacted by the NoR.

There are no other additional financial considerations associated with receiving this
report. The costs of consultation and application for a notice of requirement are
provided for in the 2021-31 Long Term Plan.

If Council recommend further consideration of one or more options outlined in this
report, there will be a financial consideration, and this would need to be considered
under separate Council approval.

Significance and Engagement Considerations

[26]

[27]

The Consultation Outcomes report sets out the engagement with the community and
stakeholders. The report and the consultation strategy approved at the Council meeting
of 25 May 20223 incorporate considerations from the ORC Significance, Engagement and
Maori Participation Policy.

The assets subject to the proposed designation are existing infrastructure assets. No
acquisition or disposal is occurring.

Legislative and Risk Considerations

[28]

[29]

(30]

As previously stated* designations can pose a risk to a requiring authority that relates to
a designation restricting an existing use of land and/or eroding the land’s value below its
market value. In such scenarios the Environment Court may order the requiring
authority (in this case ORC) to purchase the land.

In the event that the designation is seen as restricting an existing use of land or eroding
the land’s value, compensation may be payable, or the Environment Court could order
ORC to purchase the land. This is an unbudgeted cost risk for ORC. The assets in
question provide beneficial effect to the landowners or/and are already subject to the
Bylaw. The risk is considered as minor. Compensation has not been raised during the
consultation.

It continues to be the case that, if ORC found that the designation process was likely to
lead to an order for acquisition, ORC could choose not to include that asset in the
designation.

3 ibid
4 ibid
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Climate Change Considerations
[31] The assets that are the subject of the proposed designations assist in adaptation to the
effects of future climate change.

Communications Considerations
[32] Communications engagement has supported consultation as stated above and recorded
in the Consultation Outcomes report.

NEXT STEPS

[33] If the Council approves the NoR, Council staff will request that the General Manager of
Operations exercises his delegated authority to lodge the NoR with Waitaki District
Council.

[34] Following lodgement of the NoR, the process is determined by the Waitaki District
Council as part of its plan review process.

[35] Report back to Council after submissions close with Waitaki District Council’s plan
review process. This timeframe is not yet known to Council staff.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Consultation Outcomes [8.6.1 - 6 pages]
2. Notice of Requirement [8.6.2 - 169 pages]
3. Maps [8.6.3 - 6 pages]
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Memorandum

To: Otago Regional Council
From: Mitchell Daysh Limited
Date: 27 July 2022

Re: Lower Waitaki Notice of Requirement — Consultation Outcomes

INTRODUCTION

This memorandum sets out results of the consultation undertaken in respect of the Notice of
Requirement (NoR) for the Otago Regional Council’s flood protection assets on the Lower Waitaki
Plain. All feedback received is set out in the attached table, which also identifies what changes, if

any, are required to the Draft NoR.

CONSULTATION IMPLEMENTATION

Consultation commenced on 1 June 2022, with a mail out to all landowners identified with an Otago

Regional Council Flood Protection Asset on their property.

In addition, individual stakeholders received emails inviting feedback and offering to meet, as

required.
Since consultation commenced, engagement has occurred with the following:
Waitaki District Council Roading (Email received 7 June);

Aukaha Limited (Ongoing; Hui held 27 July to discuss comments and concerns, awaiting formal
written comment);

Lower Waitaki Irrigation Company Limited (Meeting 30 June, follow up emails early July);
Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency (email received 20 June);
KiwiRail Limited (Email received 22 July);

Department of Conservation (emails received 30 June, 5 July, awaiting formal written

comment);
Andrew Richardson (email received 26 June);

Transpower Limited (meeting held 8 July, awaiting formal written comment); and

Waitaki Designation — Consultation Outputs 1
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Environment Canterbury (Email received 5 July);

In addition, a drop-in session was held at the North Star in Oamaru on 30 June 2022, however there

were no attendees.

CONSULTATION COMMENTS

The attached table attributes specific feedback to individual stakeholders and notes potential

responses to the feedback received.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the amendments identified below are carried out to provide the stakeholders

with confidence that their views have been received.

It is further recommended that engagement with mana whenua, Transpower and the Department of

Conservation continue as required to obtain formal feedback.

Waitaki Designation — Consultation Outputs 2
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__ reseeree _

Waitaki District Council 1. Can the proposed ORC designations overlap with existing road reserve Yes, however the earlier designation takes precedence. Response provided.
Roading (consultant) designations?
2. When will an outline plan be provided? When any specific works are proposed. Response provided.
3. Table 1'Other designations’ within the Notice of Requirement does not This oversight will be corrected with the version that is lodged with the WDC in The NOR has been updated to correct this oversight.
identify Council’s roads. October.
4. Appendix D documents conditions, but only address transportation of Vehicular access, circulation, provision for parking and any other matters to avoid, Response provided.
material. Itis anticipated that where flood protection assets are located remedy or mitigate adverse effects on the environment are required to be
close or across roads that normal traffic flows/access may be impacted by addressed in an outline plan. Traffic management would therefore be addressed
construction activities. Appropriate traffic management may be required. via this process and would be specific to the works proposed and the nature of the

affected road.

5. If Council plans work on their road infrastructure assets Section 177(1) of the Resource Management Act provides guidance in this regard, as  Response provided.

follows:
(@) which may impact flood protection assets, appropriate communication

and notification will be required? Subject to sections 9(2) and 11 to 15, where a designation is included in a district

(5)  Under the proposed designation, does the same apply to ORC plan, and the land that is the subject of the designation is already the subject of an

communicating and notifying Council? earlier designation or heritage order,—
(a) the requiring authority responsible for the later designation may do anything
that is in accordance with that designation only if that authority has first
obtained the written consent of the authority responsible for the earlier

designation or order; and

(b) the authority responsible for the earlier designation or order may,
notwithstanding section 176(1)(b) and without obtaining the prior written
consent of the later requiring authority, do anything that is in accordance
with the earlier designation or order.

As such, in this instance the WDC may undertake works without reference to the
ORC, but ORC will require WDC approval for any works.

6. The NoR states ‘No outline plan shall be required for the maintenance of the ~ What sort of detail is required? No works are proposed at this time, and as such, no  Response provided. Offer to meet declined at this
crossbanks/groynes/floodways, provided there is no overall increase in its real detail is available. stage.
height’. More information will be required for Council to adequately consider
the implications.

Aukaha Initial correspondence indicated concerns with the proposed NoR, and a huiwas ~ Noted. Hui held 27 July 2022 NA
held to further understand concerns from Te Riinanga o Moeraki. Written
comments will also be provided, but were unavailable at the time of preparing
this summary.

Concerned at the conclusion reached in the AEE regarding the consistency of Agreed to update the AEE to reflect this discussion, and to provide the tabular Reframe AEE in this regard, amendments also made
the proposal with the principle of Te Mana o Te Wai. As the works consist of a advice that was provided to Aukaha prior to the meeting. to the wider statutory assessment
blockage between the Henderson/Waikoura catchment and the Waitaki River (a Discussion also suggested the development and implementation of a Continue dialogue with Aukaha and Te Rinanga to
statutory acknowledgement), the proposed designation is not consistent with the  framework/best practice process/SOP regarding the management of the works. work towards a management framework that could
first priority. Te RGnanga considers that the proposal does meet the second and

Waitaki Designation — Consultation Outputs 3
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__ reseeree _

third priorities and would be prepared to accept flood protection works on these
grounds.

This could include practices to encourage planting that reduces sedimentation etc
discharge into the Waitaki River. Ongoing engagement can occur up until the time
the NoR is heard, and this partnering approach could strengthen ORC's relationship
with Aukaha and may even ultimately result in iwi support of the NoR.

be similar to/consistent with the EMP used for the
global consent.

The NoR should better reflect the importance of stock exclusion practices.
Requested the inclusion of a condition that required the implementation of a
stock exclusion zone within the Henderson/Waikoura Creeks Floodway
(concerns did not include the Hilderthorpe Floodway) and requiring the
implementation of this in each farm’s freshwater farm plan.

The requirements for stock exclusion are plain in the Resource Management
Regulations 2020. While the suggested approach does seek to deal with a land
use effect, it’s inclusion would result in significant restriction on the use of the
underlying land and the inclusion of this condition would therefore not achieve the
purpose of the designation, As such it's not appropriate to include this as a
condition on the designation.

Amend AEE to reflect concerns expressed.

Include provision for education and monitoring within
management framework.

Update Iwi Management Plan used.

Noted and agreed

Update AEE to reflect the 2019 Iwi Management Plan

Collaboration should occur in the preparation of Outline Plans of Works.

Noted and agreed

Additional condition included to require collaboration
and the reporting of its outcomes.

Reframe cultural conditions to reflect archaeological requirements.

Noted and agreed

Condition replaced.

Lower Waitaki Irrigation
Company Limited

Waka Kotahi, NZ Transport
Agency

Requested additional detail regarding the implications of the designation on their
existing and proposed assets.

Planting project at Waitaki mouth to commence in October

Advised that written approval of requiring authority would be required for any
works that could prevent or hinder the ORC'’s ability to give effect to the
designation.

Noted

Additional detail including an explanation of section
176 of the Resource Management Act 1991 was
provided. No further changes required to NoR.

No action required.

Are the floodways ‘rivers’ under RMA? Is the Waikoura/Henderson Floodway a
river and then a modified watercourse?

The Hilderthorpe floodway is an artificial watercourse, the 1985 plans for the
Floodway were attached to the draft Notice of Requirement. As such, the
Hilderthorpe Floodway is unlikely to be considered a “river” within the definition of
the Resource Management Act.

The Henderson/Waikoura Floodway follows the course of those creeks, and while
over its lower reaches the course of this waterway has been modified, it is
expected to meet the definition of “river” for its entire length.

No further changes required to NOR.

If the stock exclusion rules do apply, who should pay for the fencing? If grazing
doesn’t occur as a result of concern about the costs associated with re-fencing
after a flood event, will the ORC need to spray the margins of the watercourse?

All State Highways (SH 1, 8, 83 and 85) within the Waitaki District are designated
under the Waitaki District Plan. The Designation provides for Waka Kotahi, either
itself or through its agents, to control, manage and improve the State Highway
Network including planning, design, research, construction and maintenance
relating to all land within the designation. Such activities may also involve, but
not necessarily be limited to, realignment of the road and alterations to its
physical configuration with the limits of the designation.

Waitaki Designation — Consultation Outputs
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__ reseeree _

According to the interactive map and description within the NOR, the proposed
designations will interact with both State Highway 1and State Highway 83 within
the Lower Waitaki area. It is noted that where the proposed designation may
overlap with an existing State Highway Designation, Waka Kotahi would be the
primary designation holder, and as such, ORC would be required to consult with
Waka Kotahi for any proposed works occurring within these areas. Similarly,
Waka Kotahi will continue to work with ORC and consult on any works Waka
Kotahi are intending to undertake in these areas.

Noted

Comment included in NoR at assessment of Waitaki
District Plan.

KiwiRail Limited

The Main South Line (MSL) rail corridor extends through the Waitaki District and
is designated for railway purposes within the Waitaki District Plan. KiwiRail seeks
to protect its ability to continue to operate, maintain and upgrade this line into
the future.

Noted

Comment included in NoR at assessment of Waitaki
District Plan.

The NoR and overview maps indicate that the proposed designations will
overlap with the existing MSL designation where MSL Bridge 150 extends over
the Waitaki River. KiwiRail seek to ensure that the MSL rail corridor designation is
listed as the primary designation requiring ORC to consult KiwiRail for any
proposals within the designated rail corridor.

Noted

Comment included in NoR at assessment of Waitaki
District Plan.

KiwiRail request early engagement on works within and in proximity to the rail
corridor. KiwiRail would support a condition requiring ORC to consult KiwiRail on
flood control works which may have a downstream impact on our rail assets,
particularly Bridge 150.

Noted

Comment included in NoR at assessment of Waitaki
District Plan.

Department of
Conservation

Seeking reassurance that designation won’t impact on river restoration activities,
that include vegetation clearance, planting natives, braided river bird and
whitebait habitat restoration.

Advice provided

No specific response required.

Correct/update agrichemical standard.

Should refer to NZ58409:2021.

Agrichemical standard contained in conditions has
been updated to reflect current guidance (see
Appendix D).

Provided overview of DoC’s interests and roles in the area, including threatened Noted. NA

and endangered species found in the area. DoC is currently partnering with

other agencies and organisations (including mana whenua) in respect of the

Waitaki River.

Noted Ngai Tahu interests and Statutory Acknowledgements. Noted NA

Include additional conditions relating to earthworks and stockpiling, the use of Noted Additional conditions have been inserted to address

fuels and hazardous substances and vehicle and machinery movements.

DoC supported the inclusion of the cultural condition.

This condition has been undated subsequent to engagement with Aukaha.

DoC'’s concerns.

NA

Andrew Richardson, Opposes NoR because the control of flood protection structures and waterways Noted Additional discussion to be included in the Existing
are already controlled by ORC. It seems unnecessary to try and attach another Environment section of the NoR to set out what the
Waitaki Designation — Consultation Outputs 5
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498 McPherson Road level of bureaucracy to the district plan. Wants Council to recognise that it designation is and why it is necessary. While not
already has policies and procedures on the control of these assets and liaise directly relevant to this section, this is a logical place
with WDC to ensure that this control will continue. Landowners know best how to to explain the present controls that cover the assets
control these assets. and provide some explanation as to the necessity of

the designation.

Transpower Limited Transpower to undertake some additional work to ensure identification of the Noted. Response anticipated, but not received to date. NA
proximity of the assets to its structures/network.

Likely to request specifically worded condition that requires ground-conductor
clearance (12 metre clearance likely required), and consideration of impact on
foundations as required.

Environment Canterbury No concerns with proposal. Noted No action required.

Waitaki Designation — Consultation Outputs 6
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FORM 18

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENBY REQUIRING AUTHORITY FOR

DESIGNATION
Sections 145, 168(1), (2), 1684nd 181, and clause 4 of Schedule, Resource Management
Act 1991

To Waitaki District Council

1. The Otago Regional Council (“ORC’)gives notice of a requirement for a designation for a

public work where a restriction is necessary for the safe and efficient functioning and
operation of that public work. The purpose of the designation is:

Lower Waitaki Flood Protection which includes all groynes, cross banks and floodways
and those works, structures, facilities, devicesand appliances associated with the assets
and all activities relating fo the assets, including construction, operation, maintenance,
repair, reconstruction, extension, modification, replacement and improvement.

The ORC is a requiring authority pursuant to section166 of the Resource Management Act
1991 {the RMA” or “the Act”).

2. The sites to which the requirement applies are described as flood protection assets in the
Lower Waitaki, as shownin the Appendices. Legal descriptions of the sites are set out in
Appendices A - C.

The notice of requirement includes land that is located within the RuralScenic and Rural
General Zones under the Operative Waitaki District Plan Copies of plans and

photographs of the works are included in the Appendices.

3. The nature of the work is:

The Otago Regional Council’s existing flood protection assets on the Lower Waitaki Plain
In general, this includes

e Henderson and Waikoura Creeks Floodway
e Hilderthorpe Floodway

e  Flood protection assets
The flood protection assets that are the subject of this Notice of Requirement include:

e Groynes - embankments built out from a riverbank to help control erosion.
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e Cross-banks — banks that have been built to guide water away from entering low
lying land.

e Floodways — channels that convey flood water; in respect of the Lower Waitaki
Floodways these convey water from surrounding farmland and tributaries of the
Waitaki, rather than the riveritself.

The existing infrastructure at these sites will continue to operate within the terms of the
designations. Thework includes the operation, erection, installation, maintenance,
replacement, alteration, upgrading, improvement and removal ofthe works, structures,
facilities and devices.

Plans and photographs are attached within Appendices A - C.

This Notice of Requirement is for designationsfor the ongoing use of the sites for flood
protection purposes. The designations also provide for the ongoing operation,
maintenance and upgrading of these facilities. Any changes to the established
infrastructure will be subject to the Outline Plan procedures as set out in Section 176A of
the RMA, and the conditions of the designation as set out in Appendix D attached.

4. The nature of the proposed conditions that would apply are:

The designation purpose sought for these sites is:

e Henderson and Waikoura Creeks Floodway
e Hilderthorpe Floodway

e  Flood protection asset

The nature of the work is defined in Section 3 above. This will allow for existing works and
facilities on the site, as well as any future upgrades.

This Notice seeks to establish conditions on the new designations which have been
designed to:

* Provide a level of consistency forthe operational requirements of the assets;

* Balance managing potential environmental effects with the operational requirements of
flood protection assets; and

* Reflect the predominant character of the area in which they are located.

The conditions cover the following:
e The bulk and location of structures;
e Accidental discovery protocols; and

e Construction and maintenance noise.
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An advice note detailing when an Outline Plan of Works is required is also proposed.

These conditions are proposed to ensure that any potential environmental effects are
avoided, remedied, or mitigated where necessary and to an appropriate level.

Please refer to Appendix D for the proposed designation conditions to apply to the
respective designations.

5. The effects that the work will have on the environment, and the ways in whichany adverse
effects will be mitigated, are:

Annexure B sets out the full assessment of environmental effects and details of the ways
in which any adverse effects will be mitigated, along with a statutory assessment

The Notice of Requirement enables the continued reliance on the existing flood protection
assets and any further works consistent with the purpose of the designation, subject to
compliance with the designation’s conditions. Detail of any new works to be undertaken
will be provided and managed in accordance with the Outline Plan process (section 176A
of the Act) and the conditions of the designation.

6. Alternative sites, routes and methods have been considered to the following extent:

In considering the effects on the environment of allowing the requirement, section 171 (1) of
the RMA requires the Council to have particular regard to whetheradequate consideration
has been given to alternative sites, routes, methods of undertaking the work, only if:

a) The Requiring Authority does not have an interest in the land sufficient for
undertaking the work; or

b) Itis likely that the work will have significant adverse effects on the environment.

In the case ofthe ORC’sflood protection assets, consideration of alternative sites and
locations is not required, and has not occurred. Flood protection assets already exist on
the sites and have been in place for several years. While many of the specific assets are
on Crown land, immediately adjoining property owners are direct beneficiaries of this
infrastructure. Similarly, theland occupied by the floodways continues to be available for
general rural activities when not in use.

Some of the assets cross legal road reserve that is administered by Waitaki District Council
and/or Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency railway land which is administered byKiwiRail,
or the high voltage line corridor, administered by Transpower New Zealand Limited.

There will be no significant adverse effects on the environment resulting from the works
(refer Section 5 above, and the attached assessment of environmental effecty. Onthis
basis, no consideration of alternative sites is required.
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Alternative Planning Methods:

Alternative planning methods have been considered and partially implemented. It is
considered that the designation process is appropriate in terms of providing for this
infrastructure. Designating the land provides certainty forthe ORCthat the land can be
used for flood protection purposes. It also providesthe ORC with flexibility to manage its
assetsin a manner thatensures its effectiveness while enabling the continued use of the
land by its owners. In addition, the designation process allows for theflood protection
assets to be clearly defined for each site and the specific boundaries of the activity to be
identified in the Waitaki District Plan.

In addition to the protection offered by the designation, the Council has an established
bylaw in place (the Flood Protection Management Bylaw 2012), which also manages
activities in proximity to these assets. The designation offers a complementary approach,
highlighting the importance of these assets at a local level.

A designation therefore provides certainty to both the requiring authority and the
community in terms of what can be expected to occur on the site into the future.

7. The work and designation are reasonably necessary forachieving the objectives of the
requiring authority because:

The objectives of the Requiring Authority are as follows:

e  To protect the ongoing integrity and e ffectiveness ofthe ORC’s flood protection
assets within the Lower Waitaki area from inappropriate development.

e Toenable ongoing reliance on the existing flood protection assets across the Lower
Waitaki.

e To provide positive outcomes that provide for the health and safety of the local
community.

e To enable the control of activities that can impact on the efficiency and effectiveness
ofthe ORC’s assets.

These sites sought to be designated are currently, and will continue to be, used to
accommodate floodways, stop banks and river groynes associated with the ORC’s flood
protection assets in the Lower Waitaki.

The existing assets on the sites sought to be designated are an integral and important part
of what are now the ORC’s flood protection assets within this geographic area. The assets
were first established in the 1950°s with groynes being established as part ofthe 1977
Lower Waitaki Catchment Control Scheme. Active berm management commenced as part
of the 1984 Scheme review. As a whole, these assets service both the local communities
and wider public with flood protection.

fae zaq uAuGA Bay j sa&zx8A U< i &}a | zJAWB a¢UkAh 48z 4{l zacAz Oz 4

Council Meeting 2022.09.28

277



Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

The continued operation, maintenance and improvement of the ORC’s flood protection
assets is vital and it is important that the assets are correctly designated under the RMA to
ensure that the range of necessary activities and suitable land uses are appropriately
provided for in the District Plan.

It is important to ensure that the Waitaki District Council recognises these needs and gives
a clear indication to the public of the location and use of the sites through their
designation in the District Plan.

Consideration has also been given to the use ofthe designation procedure. Designating
the land provides certainty for the ORC that the land can be used for flood protection
purposes. Designating the land will enable the subject land to be used for its intended
purpose, while accurately specifying the boundaries of the land to which these activities
will occur. The Notice of Requirement also states that the designation of the subject land
will provide the flexibility for the Requiring Authority to upgrade the site in the future to
reflect demand and changing technology.

Maintenance and upgrades are an essential function of the ORC’s flood management
functions and can occur on both a planned and unplanned basis. Upgrades are
anticipated to take the form of raising the heights of cross banks and groynes, and
deepening floodways. The outline plan procedure under section 176 A of the Act provides
the requiring authority with a degree of certainty that it can conduct essential maintenance
when needed in the future. Italso provides the requiring authority and territorial authority
with an effective and efficient means for communicating and regulating activities for
ensuring compliance with the RMA, and the site’s neighbours with reasonable
expectations as to the nature of activities that may occur within the designation.

8. The following consultation has been undertaken with the parties that are likely to be
affected:

As the flood protection assets that are the subject of this notice of requirement are
existing, the effects of the works are known. Consultation willoccurinthe second halfof
022, andthis-section-willbe-updated-once-consultation-has-occurred—Consultation has

occurred with the owners and occupiers of land upon which the flood protection assets

are located, and with key stakeholders and other requiring authorities. Feedback from this
consultation has been incorporated into the NoR as required. A full record of consultation

carried out and responses received is attached asAppendix E.

9. The Otago Regional Councilattaches the following information required to be included :

The following is attached to this Notice of Requirement:

Annexure B- Assessment of Relevant Statutory Plans and Assessment of Environmental
Effects
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Appendix A — Henderson and Waikoura Creeks Floodway
o Legaldescription and ownership detail

o0 Record of Title

o Photographs

o Plan

Appendix B — Hilderthorpe Floodway:

o0 Legaldescription and ownership detail

0 Record of Title

o Photographs

o Plan

Appendix C — Flood Protection Assets (cross banks and groynes):

0 Legaldescription and ownership detail
0 Record of Title

o Photographs

o Plan

Appendix D — Conditions
Appendix E — Consultation Record

The Operative District Plan identifies the following specific information requirements for

notices of requirement, and the table below identifies where each matter is discussed

within this notice of requirement.

Details of the Order in Council or empowering legislation which allows
the applicant to be a requiring authority, including any specified terms or
conditions attached to the Order in Council.

Form 18, paragraph 1

Astatement of how the requirement meets Part 2 of the Act.

Annexure A

Astatement of the objectives the project or work is aiming to achieve.

Form 18, paragraph 7

The degree to which the requirement meets the objectives and policies Annexure A
of the Plan.
The relationship of the work to, or effect on, any relevant provisions of Annexure A

national or regional policy statements and regional plans.

Details of land ownership, acquisition and site clearance.

Form 18, paragraph 2,
and appendices

The proposed sequence and timing of the work, clearly identifying any
part which may not be commenced or completed within 5 years time.

NA - existing assets
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Proposals for the use and maintenance of those parts of the land which NA - existing assets
willnot be developed for 5 years or more, in particular, identification of
those buildings and structures which could continue to be used and
maintained in the meantime.

Identification of any other designation or heritage order applying to the Annexure A
site, whether it has been given effect to, and the effect the requirement
may have on the existing designation or heritage order.

Signature:
Otago Regional Council

General Manager Operations — Dr Gavin Palmer
Dated at Dunedin this _____ day of 2022

Address for Service:  Mitchell Daysh Limited

PO Box 489

Dunedin
Telephone: 034777884
Email: kirsten.tebbutt@mitchelldaysh.co.nz
Contact person: Kirsten Tebbutt

Note to person giving notice

If the notice relates to a requirement for a designation, or an alteration to a designation,
under section 168Aof the Resource Management Act 1991, you must use-

e this form if the requirement is lodged with the Environmental Protection Authority; or

e form 20 ifthe requirement is not lodged with the Environmental Protection Authority.

If the requirement is lodged with the Environmental Protection Authority, you must also
lodge a form in form 16 A at the same time.
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You must pay any charge payable to the territorial authority for the requirement or
alteration to the requirement under the Resource Management Act 1991

If this notice is to the Environmental Protection Authority, you may be required to pay
actual and reasonable costs incurred in dealing with this matter see section 497D of the
Resource Management Act 1991).

fae zaq uAuGA Bay j sa&zx8A U< i &}a | zJAWB a¢UkAh 48z 4{l zacAz Oz 8

Council Meeting 2022.09.28

281


https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2003/0153/latest/link.aspx?id=DLM230264
https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2003/0153/latest/link.aspx?id=DLM2418406#DLM2418406

Council Meeting Agenda - 28 September 2022 - MATTERS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

1

ANNEXURE B

Assessment of Relevant Statutory
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STATUTORY ASSESSMENT

Section 171(1) of the Resource Management Act 199RMA” or “the Act”) outlines the
matters that a territorial authority must have particular regard to when considering a Notice
of Requirement (“NoR”). Subject to Part 2,*the territorial authority must consider the
effects on the environment of allowing the NoR, having particular regard to any relevant
provisions of a policy statement or plan.

Aside from the Resource Management Act 1991 the relevant policy statements and plans
include:

National Policy Statement for Freshwater Management 2020
New Zealand Coastal Policy Statement 2010

National Policy Statement for Electricity Transmission 2008
Partially Operative Otago Regional Policy Statement 2015
Proposed Otago Regional Policy Statement

Regional Plan: Water for Otago

Regional Plan: Coast for Otago

Waitaki District Plan

Waitaki Draft District Plan

Waitaki lwi Management Plan 2019

Kai Tahu ki Otago Natural Resource Management Plan 2005

Flood Protection Management Bylaw 20212
PART2 OF THE RMA

Section 5

The flood protection assets that the Otago Regional Council (‘ORC”) is responsible for are
a physical resource of significant regional importance to the Lower Waitaki community.
The provision of reliable and effective flood protection is critical for the social and
economic wellbeing of the local community and for its health and safety. The assets play a
vital role in managing natural hazards and their potential impacts on the local community,

1 Itis understood that the Court of Appeal decision in R J Davidson Family Trust v Marlborough District Council
means that there is no need to resort to Part 2 unless doing so would add something beneficial to the
process. This is not the case here because the relevant planning documents are valid documents that give
complete coverage over the proposed activity and potential effects. However, should the Council be assisted
by such an assessment in this case, consideration of Part 2 is provided.

fae zaq uAuGA 